
 

OFFICIAL 
OFFICIAL 

North Yorkshire County Council 

Business and Environmental Services - Executive Members & Corporate Director Meetings - 
Department 

 

Friday, 12 November 2021 / 2.00 pm 

A G E N D A 

 

 

1   Apologies for Absence  

 

2   Declarations of Interest  

 

3   Exclusion of the public from the meeting during consideration of item(s) # on the grounds 
that it/they each involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 

paragraph(s) # of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 as amended 
by the Local Government (Access to information)(Variation) Order 2006  

 

Items for Executive Member decision  

Items for Corporate Director decision  

4   A64 National Highways Consultation Response (Pages 3 - 16) 

 

Louise Neale 

5   DfT-OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review EVs (Pages 17 - 
54) 

 

Louise Neale 

6   Malton and Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
(Pages 55 - 208) 

 

Louise Neale 

Items for Assistant Director decision  

7   Changes to Services to be delivered by Yorwaste Ltd using the 

Teckal Procurement Exemption (Pages 209 - 214) 

 

Suzanne Williamson 

Any Other Business  

8   Date of future formal meetings  

 

  

 

Circulation: 

 
Executive Members Officer attendees Presenting Officers 

Derek Bastiman 
Don Mackenzie 

Karl Battersby 
Jane Connolly 

Michael Leah 

Louise Neale 
Suzanne Williamson 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 - Executive Members 
A64 National Highways Consultation Response/1 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

North Yorkshire County Council 
 

Business and Environmental Services 
 

12 November 2021 
 

A64 National Highways Consultation Response 
 

Report of the Assistant Director – Highways and Transportation  
 

1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To seek approval from the Corporate Director, Business Environmental Services 

(BES) in consultation with the BES Executive Member for Access to provide a 
response to the National Highways (NH) A64 consultation. 

 
 

2.0 Background 
 
2.1 The A64, namely the section of single carriageway between Hopgrove Roundabout 

and Barton Le Willows, continues to be a significant barrier to investment, 
productivity and economic growth in the region.  

 
2.2 The A64 Growth Partnership was set up to be the voice of businesses in the region 

and is supported by the local councils, including NYCC, Ryedale District Council and 
Scarborough Borough Council, and also the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP). 
They also have the support of Transport for the North, who most recently wrote to the 
Secretary of State for Transport in September 2019 reiterating their strong 
endorsement and justification for improvements along the A64 between York and 
Scarborough. Local MP’s, including Kevin Hollinrake MP, have been actively 
campaigning in support of the scheme for a number of years. The partnership aims to 
highlight the issues for businesses and local communities caused by the inadequate 
nature of the A64 east of York where the trunk road is mostly single carriageway of 
variable standard. The partnership aims to ensure the allocation of Road Investment 
Strategy funding to deliver the necessary improvements.  

 
2.3  National Highways have now selected this scheme as one of over 30 that they are 

considering around the country, as part of their ‘pipeline of schemes’. The pipeline 
schemes were announced in NH 2020-25 Delivery Plan, which includes items that 
will be considered for potential construction beyond 2025, but currently there is no 
commitment from government to develop this scheme beyond the current stage.  

 
2.4 To help develop the plans National Highways are seeking views on the A64 between 

Hopgrove Junction and Barton-le-Willows, they are asking for views on how changes 
to the road may improve livelihoods and quality of life, and help to address concerns 
about congestion, environmental issues, and safety. The main aim of this 
consultation is to gather information to help NH develop a list of options and build the 
case for improvements to the road.  

 
2.5 Officers have therefore drafted a response for the consultation, which is due for 

submission by 21 November 2021.   
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 - Executive Members 
A64 National Highways Consultation Response/2 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

3.0 Consultation Response 
 
3.1 A full copy of the consultation response is attached as Appendix A, the key points of 

which are highlighted below.   
 
3.2 Concerns about the route  

We propose to respond that the major concerns about the road include air quality, 
congestion, impact on businesses, negative experiences of using the road, noise, 
safety and speed and that we would like to see all of the aforementioned issues 
addressed. 

 
3.3 We intend to add that as Local Highway Authority we are impacted by problems on 

the road because the A64 provides a key strategic link for us, with traffic flows at 
twice the recommendation for this category of road. This encourages users to choose 
unsuitable alternative routes. Journey times are significantly affected, particularly at 
weekends /holidays, due to this section of route being single carriageway causing 
increased congestion and a number of accidents, therefore, we also noted we are 
concerned about user safety. The problems on the route have a detrimental effect on 
the regional economy, something heavily evidenced by the Growth Partnership. We 
are concerned about accidents occurring and the unattractiveness of active modes 
due to the poor quality of active travel facilities adjacent to the A64 especially missing 
links/ connections with LHA roads and Public Rights of Way. 

 
3.4 Although there is no opportunity to add this information to the online response the 

scheme could potentially affect sites designated as being of both European and 
national nature conservation importance. There are also potential impacts on the 
viability of populations of protected species such as Otter and Badger. There have 
been initial meetings jointly with the Ecologist at City of York Council and the 
consultants working on behalf of National Highways, which North Yorkshire County 
Council has attended where National Highways have identified the key ecological 
receptors and have a suite of ecological surveys on going or planned in order to 
inform the assessment process. 

 
3.5 Please note there is a character limit associated with some of the questions. It is 

planned that we share our full response (as above) via the email address provided on 
the website.  

 
3.6 Impact of improvements on quality of life or livelihood 
 We intend to respond that If improvements are made users will be safer and less 

likely to use alternative unsuitable routes, which increases risk. Increased journey 
time reliability through reduced congestion will support the local economy specifically 
for businesses and tourism. The health (through active travel opportunities and air 
quality improvements) of the local population could also be improved.  

 
4.0 Equalities 
 
4.1 There are no equalities issues arising from this report. See Appendix B. 
 
5.0 Finance 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications associated with responding to the consultation 

apart from officer time.  There could be financial implications in the future if this 
scheme is included in the ‘pipeline of schemes’.  Any financial implications would be 
reported at the appropriate time 

 

Page 4



 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 - Executive Members 
A64 National Highways Consultation Response/3 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

6.0 Legal 
 
6.1 Consideration has been given to any legal implications in submitting a consultation 

response and none appear to arise at this stage.  
 
7.0 Climate Change 
 
7.1 A climate change impact assessment has been carried out. Please see Appendix C. 
 
8.0 Recommendation 
 
8.1 It is recommended that the Corporate Director, Business Environmental Services in 

consultation with the BES Executive Member for Access approves the response to 
the consultation to be submitted to National Highways by 21 November 2021 as 
detailed in Section 3 and Appendix A. 

 
 
 
BARRIE MASON 
Assistant Director - Highways & Transportation 
 
 
Author: Keisha Moore 
 
 
Background documents: None 
 
 

Page 5



Appendix A 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 - Executive Members 
A64 National Highways Consultation Response/4 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

A64 National Highways Consultation Questions  
 

1. Thinking about the A64 between Hopgrove junction and Barton-le-Willows, how does 
it make you feel? 

 
Very happy 
Happy 
Neutral 
Unhappy 
Very unhappy 

 
2. What are your concerns about the road?  

(click as many options as needed) 
 

Air quality 

Congestion 

Ecology and wildlife 

Impact on business 

Experience of using the road, e.g. road surface 

Noise 

Safety 

Speed 

No concerns 

Other 
 

3. How are you impacted by the problems on the road? 76 word limit (Optional)

 
 

As LHA the A64 is a key strategic link, with AADT at twice the recommendation for 
single carriageway roads. Journey times are significantly affected, particularly at 
weekends /holidays. We are concerned about user safety. It has a detrimental effect 
on the regional economy, something heavily evidenced by local businesses and 
stakeholders. We are concerned about safety issues occurring due to the quality of 
active travel facilities adjacent to the A64 especially missing links/ connections with 
LHA roads & PROW.  

4. How supportive are you of improvements to tackle the problems on this road? 

Very supportive 

Supportive 

Neutral 

Unsupportive 

Very unsupportive 
 

5. Which issues would you like to see addressed to improve the road? 
(click as many options as needed) 

Page 6



Appendix A 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 - Executive Members 
A64 National Highways Consultation Response/5 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

 

Air quality 

Congestion 

Ecology and wildlife 

Experience of using the road, e.g. road surface 

Noise 

Safety 

Speed 

Impact on business 

Other 
 

6. How would an improved road impact your quality of life or livelihood?(Optional)

 
 

Users will be safer and less likely to use alternative unsuitable routes, which increases 
risk. Increased journey time reliability through reduced congestion will support the local 
economy specifically for businesses and tourism. The health (through active travel 
opportunities and air quality improvements) of the general population could be improved. 
 
7. What type of road user are you? 

 

General road user (leisure or commuting) 

Commercial road user 

Resident 

Cyclist 

Horse rider 

Pedestrian 
 

8. What age group do you belong to?(Optional) 

16 and under 

17-24 

25-34 

35-44 

45-54 

55-64 

65+ 

Prefer not to say 
 

Page 7



Appendix A 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 - Executive Members 
A64 National Highways Consultation Response/6 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

9. We’d like to understand how far you live from the A64. Can you provide your 

Postcode?(Optional)  
DL7 8AE 

 
10. We may ask you for more information about your responses. Can you provide a 

contact email?(Optional)  
Keisha.moore@northyorks.gov.uk 

 

 
I consent to National Highways and partners processing my personal data for the 
purpose of feedback.  

Data protection policy - National Highways is fully committed to compliance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR). We collect and handle a variety of 
personal data so that we can deliver services to our customers and anyone using 
England’s motorways and major A roads. For our full GDPR policy please 
visit: https://highwaysengland.co.uk/about-us/privacy-notice/ 

 

Page 8



Appendix B 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 - Executive Members 
A64 National Highways Consultation Response/7 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

Initial equality impact assessment screening form 
(As of October 2015 this form replaces ‘Record of decision not to carry out an EIA’) 
 
This form records an equality screening process to determine the relevance of 
equality to a proposal, and a decision whether or not a full EIA would be 
appropriate or proportionate.  
 
Directorate  Business and Environmental Services 
Service area Highways and Transportation 
Proposal being screened Response to the consultation to be submitted to 

National Highways regarding improving the A64 
between Hopgrove Roundabout, York and Barton 
Le Willows.  

Officer(s) carrying out screening  Keisha Moore  
What are you proposing to do? Respond to the consultation to be submitted to 

National Highways regarding improving the A64 
between Hopgrove Roundabout, York and Barton 
Le Willows.  

Why are you proposing this? What 
are the desired outcomes? 

To ensure the allocation of Road Investment 
Strategy funding from National Highways to 
deliver the necessary improvements  

Does the proposal involve a 
significant commitment or removal 
of resources? Please give details. 

No 
 

Is there likely to be an adverse impact on people with any of the following protected 
characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010, or NYCC’s additional agreed 
characteristics? 
As part of this assessment, please consider the following questions: 
 To what extent is this service used by particular groups of people with protected 

characteristics? 
 Does the proposal relate to functions that previous consultation has identified as 

important? 
 Do different groups have different needs or experiences in the area the proposal relates 

to? 
 

If for any characteristic it is considered that there is likely to be a significant adverse 
impact or you have ticked ‘Don’t know/no info available’, then a full EIA should be 
carried out where this is proportionate. You are advised to speak to your Equality rep 
for advice if you are in any doubt. 
 
Protected characteristic Yes No Don’t know/No 

info available 
Age     
Disability     
Sex (Gender)     
Race     
Sexual orientation     
Gender reassignment     
Religion or belief     
Pregnancy or maternity     
Marriage or civil partnership     
NYCC additional characteristic 
People in rural areas     

Page 9



Appendix B 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 - Executive Members 
A64 National Highways Consultation Response/8 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

People on a low income     
Carer (unpaid family or friend)     
Does the proposal relate to an area 
where there are known 
inequalities/probable impacts (e.g. 
disabled people’s access to public 
transport)? Please give details. 

Unknown at this stage, National Highways are 
gathering information to inform options.  

Will the proposal have a significant 
effect on how other organisations 
operate? (e.g. partners, funding 
criteria, etc.). Do any of these 
organisations support people with 
protected characteristics? Please 
explain why you have reached this 
conclusion.  

No  

Decision (Please tick one option) EIA not 
relevant or 
proportionate: 

 
 

Continue to 
full EIA: 

 

Reason for decision This is a response to a high level National 
Highways consultation and has no impact on 
people with protected characteristics. 

Signed (Assistant Director or 
equivalent) 

Barrie Mason 
 

Date 03/11/21 
 

 

Page 10



Appendix C 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 - Executive Members 
A64 National Highways Consultation Response/9 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

Climate change impact assessment                                                                                                                                                               
 
The purpose of this assessment is to help us understand the likely impacts of our decisions on the environment of North Yorkshire and on our 
aspiration to achieve net carbon neutrality by 2030, or as close to that date as possible. The intention is to mitigate negative effects and identify 
projects which will have positive effects. 
 
This document should be completed in consultation with the supporting guidance. The final document will be published as part of the decision 
making process and should be written in Plain English. 
 
If you have any additional queries which are not covered by the guidance please email climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Title of proposal A64 National Highways Consultation Response 
Brief description of proposal To provide Members with outline details of the A64 National Highways 

Consultation response proposed to be submitted by the County Council. 
Directorate  BES 
Service area Highways and Transportation  
Lead officer Keisha Moore 
Names and roles of other people involved in 
carrying out the impact assessment 

 

Date impact assessment started 25/10/2021 
 

 
 
 

Please note: You may not need to undertake this assessment if your proposal will be subject to any of the following:  
Planning Permission 
Environmental Impact Assessment 
Strategic Environmental Assessment 
 
However, you will still need to summarise your findings in in the summary section of the form below. 
 
Please contact climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk for advice.  
 

P
age 11



Appendix C 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 - Executive Members 
A64 National Highways Consultation Response/10 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

 
 

Options appraisal  
Were any other options considered in trying to achieve the aim of this project? If so, please give brief details and explain why alternative options were not 
progressed. 
No 
 
 
 
What impact will this proposal have on council budgets? Will it be cost neutral, have increased cost or reduce costs?  
 
Please explain briefly why this will be the result, detailing estimated savings or costs where this is possible. 
 
 
None, no funding is being requested as a result of this report.  
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 12



Appendix C 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 - Executive Members 
A64 National Highways Consultation Response/11 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

How will this proposal impact 
on the environment? 
 
N.B. There may be short term 
negative impact and longer 
term positive impact. Please 
include all potential impacts 
over the lifetime of a project 
and provide an explanation.  

P
o

si
ti

ve
 im

p
ac

t 
(P

la
ce

 a
 X

 in
 th

e 
bo

x 
be

lo
w

 w
he

re
 

N
o

 im
p

ac
t 

(P
la

ce
 a

 X
 in

 th
e 

bo
x 

be
lo

w
 w

he
re

 
l

t)
N

eg
at

iv
e 

im
p

ac
t 

(P
la

ce
 a

 X
 in

 th
e 

bo
x 

be
lo

w
 w

he
re

 
l

t)

Explain why will it have this effect and 
over what timescale?  
 
Where possible/relevant please 
include: 

 Changes over and above business 
as usual 

 Evidence or measurement of effect 
 Figures for CO2e 
 Links to relevant documents 
 

Explain how you 
plan to mitigate any 
negative impacts. 
 

Explain how you 
plan to improve 
any positive 
outcomes as far as 
possible. 

Minimise 
greenhouse gas 
emissions e.g. 
reducing emissions 
from travel, 
increasing energy 
efficiencies etc. 
 

Emissions 
from travel 

 X     

Emissions 
from 
construction 

 X     

Emissions 
from 
running of 
buildings 

 X     

Other  X     

Minimise waste: Reduce, reuse, 
recycle and compost e.g. 
reducing use of single use plastic 

  X     

Reduce water consumption  X     

Minimise pollution (including air, 
land, water, light and noise) 
 

 X      

P
age 13



Appendix C 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 - Executive Members 
A64 National Highways Consultation Response/12 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

How will this proposal impact 
on the environment? 
 
N.B. There may be short term 
negative impact and longer 
term positive impact. Please 
include all potential impacts 
over the lifetime of a project 
and provide an explanation.  

P
o

si
ti

ve
 im

p
ac

t 
(P

la
ce

 a
 X

 in
 th

e 
bo

x 
be

lo
w

 w
he

re
 

N
o

 im
p

ac
t 

(P
la

ce
 a

 X
 in

 th
e 

bo
x 

be
lo

w
 w

he
re

 
l

t)
N

eg
at

iv
e 

im
p

ac
t 

(P
la

ce
 a

 X
 in

 th
e 

bo
x 

be
lo

w
 w

he
re

 
l

t)

Explain why will it have this effect and 
over what timescale?  
 
Where possible/relevant please 
include: 

 Changes over and above business 
as usual 

 Evidence or measurement of effect 
 Figures for CO2e 
 Links to relevant documents 
 

Explain how you 
plan to mitigate any 
negative impacts. 
 

Explain how you 
plan to improve 
any positive 
outcomes as far as 
possible. 

Ensure resilience to the effects 
of climate change e.g. reducing 
flood risk, mitigating effects of 
drier, hotter summers  

 X     

Enhance conservation and 
wildlife 
 

 X     

Safeguard the distinctive 
characteristics, features and 
special qualities of North 
Yorkshire’s landscape  

 

 X    
 

 

Other (please state below) 
 

 X     

 
 
 

P
age 14



Appendix C 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 - Executive Members 
A64 National Highways Consultation Response/13 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

Are there any recognised good practice environmental standards in relation to this proposal? If so, please detail how this proposal meets those 
standards. 

 
N/A 
 

 
 

Summary Summarise the findings of your impact assessment, including impacts, the recommendation in relation to addressing impacts, including any legal 
advice, and next steps. This summary should be used as part of the report to the decision maker. 
 
This consultation seeks views on an existing situation. The outcomes of the study are aimed at supporting improvements to the highway.  
 

 
 
Sign off section 
 
This climate change impact assessment was completed by: 
 
Name Keisha Moore 
Job title Transport Planning Officer  
Service area Highways and Transport  
Directorate BES 
Signature K Moore 
Completion date 25/10/2021 

 
Authorised by relevant Assistant Director (signature): Barrie Mason 
 
Date: 03/11/21 
 

 
 

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/1 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

North Yorkshire County Council 
 

Business and Environmental Services 
 

Executive Members 
 

12 November 2021 
 

Department for Transport/Office for Zero Emissions Future of Transport Regulatory 
Review: Electric Vehicles 

 
Report of the Assistant Director – Highways and Transportation 

 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To seek approval from the Corporate Director, Business Environmental Services (BES) 

in consultation with the BES Executive Member for Access to provide a response to the 
Department for Transport (DfT) and Office for Zero Emission Vehicles (OZEV) Future of 
Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles  

 
 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 Section 1 of the Climate Change Act 2008 sets out the Government’s target for 

reducing emissions of greenhouse gases by 2050.  The Climate Change Act 2008 
(2050 Target Amendment) Order 2019 amended section 1 in June 2019 so that the 
target is for net zero greenhouse gas emissions to ensure the UK ends its 
contribution to climate change. In November 2020, the Government committed to 
ending the sale of new petrol and diesel cars and vans by 2030, with all vehicles 
required to have a significant zero-emissions capability (for example, plug-in and full 
hybrids) from 2030 and to be 100% zero emissions from 2035. The Government has 
committed £2.5 billion to support consumers to make this transition.  
 

2.3 The Office of Zero Emission Vehicles (OZEV) is seeking views on new primary 
legislation that would give the government powers to introduce requirements in 4 
areas. They are asking for views on whether to introduce: 
 a statutory obligation to plan for and provide charging infrastructure 
 requirements to install chargepoints in non-residential car parks 
 new powers to support the delivery of the Rapid Charging Fund 
 requirements to improve the experience for electric vehicle consumers 

 
2.4  The consultation is the third iteration of the regulatory review and is aimed at helping 

Government ensure that there is a sufficient charging infrastructure and appropriate 
consumer protections in place to meet the needs of electric vehicle (EV) drivers. It 
aims to address areas of transport regulation that are outdated, a barrier to 
innovation, or not designed with new technologies and business models in mind. 

 
2.5 Officers have therefore drafted a response for the consultation, which is due for 

submission by 22 November 2021.   
 
3.0 Consultation Response 
 
3.1 A full copy of the consultation response is attached as Appendix A, however, the 

key points are highlighted below.   
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/2 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

3.2 Statutory obligation to plan for and deliver a charging infrastructure 
It is highlighted in the response there should be a statutory duty to plan for and make 
provision of infrastructure for residents, businesses and visitors. It is suggested that 
Local Authorities should have legal responsibility to plan for and make provision of 
electric vehicle charge points (EVCP’s) to meet the needs of residents and visitors, 
however, central Government should have legal responsibility for businesses.  

 
3.3 This enables a more coordinated approach to delivery, working with subnational 

transport bodies and neighbouring authorities to understand how best to deliver 
EVCP to meet the needs of residents and visitors. It enables alignment with local 
transport plans and other local planning policies. It also means that an LA can take a 
balanced approach to investment, inviting private investment but retaining control. 

 
3.4 Charge points in non-residential car parks 
 We have responded that the government should seek powers to set a minimum level 

of EV charging infrastructure for all non-residential car parks which should include 
both publically accessible and not publically accessible (but provided for the use of a 
particular group for example workplace car parks) car parks. We have suggested that 
there should be 1 chargepoint per 10 spaces which supports current evidence which 
suggests there is 1 chargepoint available per 10 electric vehicles subject to regular 
review. We have suggested that exemptions should be made in cases where: 
1. Costs to install EVCP’s are excessive 
2. There is insufficient electricity supply 
3. In car parks with less than 10 spaces 
4. In parking locations with a maximum 30 minutes stay 

 
3.5  The new powers will provide government with the option to intervene to ensure there 

is sufficient charging infrastructure to support the transition to EVs although 
Government do not have immediate plans to use these powers and will continue to 
monitor the delivery of charging infrastructure, using the powers if they deem it 
appropriate. It is expected the private sector will increasingly install chargepoints in 
their car parks as the EV transition accelerates, without the need of these 
regulations. If Government seek to introduce requirements and use these powers, 
they would have to introduce secondary legislation and run a further consultation. 

 
3.6 Making the Rapid Charging Fund 

The Rapid Charging Fund is a new £950 million fund to future-proof electrical 
capacity at motorway and major A road service areas to support the phase-out of 
petrol and diesel cars and vans. The fund will support the cost of providing additional 
or upgraded electrical connections at motorway and major A road service areas. The 
fund will be administered by an independent delivery body. There is a legal risk to the 
fund because the majority of motorway service areas in England have an exclusive 
provider of open access chargepoint services. This could lead to any funding being 
challenged on state subsidy or other grounds. Government are considering taking 
new powers to make the exclusive elements of existing chargepoint service 
arrangements void and unenforceable. To ensure long-term competition is 
maintained at such sites Government are considering requiring service area 
operators and large fuel retailers to tender chargepoint service contracts openly and 
to have a minimum of two different chargepoint operators which operate open access 
charging at a particular site. 

 
 
 
 

Page 18



 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/3 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

3.7  We have responded that Government should have the power to mandate more 
competition between operators, remove existing exclusivity clauses and offer open 
access charging across all sites. Open access charging should be defined as “the 
ability to 'plug and play' at any chargepoint in the country using a single 
application/access card”. We have also suggested that Government should be able 
to act as freeholder of an electricity connection for such sites.  
 

3.8 Improving the experience for electric vehicle consumers 
Government are already introducing regulations to improve reliability and ease of 
payment on the public charging network. However, current legislation does not cover 
the full spectrum of EV consumer needs so they are proposing new primary powers 
to ensure that: 
 Inclusively designed chargepoints are available for all 
 Consumers feel safe when charging on route 
 Consumers have rights to redress if something goes wrong.  

 
3.9  Government are seeking primary powers to: 

 Ensure adequate consumer protections when encountering issues using public 
chargepoints 

 Set accessibility (inclusive design) and safety requirements at public 
chargepoints 

 Mandate aspects of chargepoint design such as familiarity, look and feel and 
which will include accessibility and safety features. 

 
3.10 We agree that Government should implement a consumer protection service 

including the option for financial redress.  We agree that accessibility standards for 
public and private residential chargepoints should be mandated to make charging 
inclusive/accessible for all. 

 
3.11 We agree that Government should mandate industry participants to provide a safe 

charging experience at public chargepoints and this might include, but is not limited 
to, provision of appropriate lighting, security and information on who to contact if you 
feel unsafe on/near the charge point.  

 
3.12 We disagree that Government should mandate the recognisable design of 

chargepoints given that some market towns, heritage sites and national parks, for 
example, have environments where chargepoint design should be forgiving of their 
nature. 

 
3.13 Call for Evidence; we have been asked to supply any data or evidence we have 

about any of the proposals discussed that we think would positively or negatively 
impact on individuals with protected characteristics. We looked for any reports of any 
incidents involving people with impaired hearing and electric vehicles as a result of 
their quieter engines. Additionally, we sought to identify any customer calls relating to 
footways being blocked or partially blocked by someone charging their vehicle on the 
street, for example, a wheelchair user or parent with a child in a pushchair. We do 
not have any evidence of either.  

  
3.14  It should be noted that where a response states we “don’t know” it is because we do 

not feel the Local Authority can answer these questions. 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/4 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

4.0 Equalities 
 
4.1 Consideration has been given to the potential for any adverse equalities impacts 

arising from the recommendation in this report.  It is the view of officers that the 
recommendation included in this report does not have any adverse impacts on any of 
the protected characteristics identified in the Equalities Act 2010 or NYCC’s 
additional agreed characteristics. The completed Equalities Impact Assessment 
Screening Form can be found at Appendix B.  

 
5.0 Finance 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications arising specifically from this report as it is 

providing a response to a consultation. There could be financial implications for 
NYCC in the future arising from any changes to legislation as a result of the 
consultation. Any financial implications would be highlighted in a further report for a 
decision at the appropriate time.  
 

6.0 Legal 
 
6.1 Consideration has been given to any legal implications in submitting a consultation 

response and none appear to arise at this stage but it is acknowledged that legal 
implications may arise at a future date.  

 
 Proper consideration as outlined in section 4 is being given to equalities issues that 

are pertinent to ensure due regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
7.0 Climate Change 
 
7.1 There are significant funding programmes aimed at reducing carbon emissions and 

improving the environment.  See Appendix C. 
 
8.0 Recommendation(S) 
 
8.1 It is recommended that the Corporate Director, BES in consultation with the BES 

Executive Member for Access approves the response to the consultation to be 
submitted to the Department for Transport and the Office for Zero Emission Vehicles 
by 22 November 2021 as detailed in Section 3 and Appendix A. 

 
 
 
BARRIE MASON 
Assistant Director - Highways & Transportation 
 
 
Author: Keisha Moore 
 
 
Background documents: None 
 

Page 20



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/5 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

Future of transport regulatory review: 
zero emission vehicles 
Introduction  
  

Thank you for responding to our survey your views will assist in making new primary legislation 
that would give us powers to introduce requirements to ensure that there is a sufficient charging 
infrastructure and appropriate consumer protections for electric vehicle drivers. 
 
Closing date is 22 November 2021. 

View all the questions 

The survey provides questions based on user choice, a full copy of the questions is available 
(opens in a new window). 

Print or save a copy of your response 

At the end of this questionnaire, you may either print or save a copy of your response. The option 
appears after 'Submit your response'. 

Save and continue option 

You have an option to 'save and continue' your response at any time. If you do that you will be 
sent a link via email to allow you to continue your response where you left off. 
 
It's vital you enter your correct email address as a mistake means you won't receive the link. 

Accessibility statement 

Read our accessibility statement for SmartSurvey forms (opens in a new window). 

Confidentiality and data protection 

This Department for Transport (DfT) consultation is about gathering views to in making new 
primary legislation that would give us powers to introduce requirements to ensure that there is a 
sufficient charging infrastructure and appropriate consumer protections for electric vehicle 
drivers. 
 
We are asking for: 

 your name and email address, in case we need to ask you follow-up questions about 
your responses (you do not have to give us this personal information, but if you do 
provide it, we will use it only for the purpose of asking follow-up questions) 

Page 21



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/6 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

 whether you are representing an organisation or yourself 

 whether as an individual you own an electrical vehicle and the type of vehicle to better 
understand your personal implications 

 the type of work of your organisation in order to better understand your relationship with 
the issue 

Your consultation response and the processing of personal data that it entails is necessary for 
the exercise of our functions as a government department. DfT will, under data protection law, be 
the controller for this information. DfT's privacy policy (open in new window) has more 
information about your rights in relation to your personal data, how to complain and how to 
contact the Data Protection Officer. 
 
Your personal data is processed on behalf of DfT by Smartsurvey, with respect that they run the 
survey collection software only, your personal data will not be shared with any other third parties, 
even those employed for the purpose of analysis. 
 
We will not use your name or other personal details that could identify you when we report the 
results of the consultation. Any information you provide through the online questionnaire will be 
moved to our internal systems within 2 months of the consultation end date. The information will 
be kept securely and destroyed within 12 months of the closing date, with the exception of 
information and evidence of the Public Sector Equality Duty. 

You  

1. Your (used for contact purposes only):  
 
name?   Keisha Moore 

 

email?    Keisha.moore@northyorks.gov.uk 
 

  

2. Are you responding: * 
 

  
as an individual? 

  
on behalf of an organisation? (Go to ‘Organisational details’) ?

Individual details  
  

3. Do you own:  
 

  
no type of electric vehicle? 

  
an electric car? 

Page 22



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/7 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

  
an electric van? 

  
an electric motorcycle? 

  
another type of electric vehicle? 
  

 

[After answering go to ‘Zero emission vehicles’] 

 
 
Organisational details  
  

4. Your organisation is:  
 

  
a chargepoint manufacturer? 

  
a chargepoint operator? 

  
a chargepoint installer? 

  
a local authority? 

  
a vehicle manufacturer? 

  
a consumer group? 

  
a non-governmental organisation? 

  
a motorway service area operator? 

  
a car park operator? 

  
a landlord or car park owner? 

  
a large fuel retailer? 

  
another type of organisation? 
  

 

Zero emission vehicles  
  
We have committed to phasing out the sales of new petrol and diesel cars and vans by 2030 so 
that all new cars and vans will be fully zero emission at the tailpipe from 2035. 
 
The rollout of charging infrastructure is critical to achieving this ambition. 
 
We are seeking views on new primary legislation that would give us powers to introduce 
requirements in 4 areas to ensure that there is:  

1. a sufficient charging infrastructure  
2. appropriate consumer protections in place to meet the needs of electric vehicle (EV) 

drivers  

Page 23



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/8 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

We would consult on the detail of any secondary legislation to use these powers.  
 
The 4 areas are: 
 
1. local authorities and charging infrastructure 
2. chargepoints in non-residential car parks 
3. supporting the delivery of the Rapid Charging Fund (opens in a new window) 
4. improving the experience for electric vehicle consumers 
  
 

A statutory obligation to plan for and create charging 
infrastructure 

Planning and delivering EV infrastructure that meets the current and future needs of residents, 
businesses, and visitors is critical to making the government’s 2030 and 2035 phase out dates 
and levelling up across the country. EV infrastructure is particularly important for the 8 
million households (opens in a new window) who cannot install a home chargepoint, as well as 
businesses and visitors needing access to chargepoint infrastructure while travelling.   
 
Currently, local charging infrastructure provision (on-street and rapid hubs) is installed at the 
discretion of local authorities (LAs). Many LAs have taken positive steps towards planning for this 
infrastructure provision. However, others are yet to begin identifying what is needed and many 
risk not meeting the current and future needs of their communities. LAs primarily deliver charging 
infrastructure where it is expected that private chargepoint operators may not invest due 
to current low demand and a lack of commercial viability. Delivery is particularly focussed on on-
street locations. However, as the EV transition accelerates it is expected that there will be 
increasing viability for chargepoint operators to deliver at these locations. In this scenario, we 
expect there would be an important role for LAs to plan for the best locations 
for chargepoint operators to install, to support their residents.    
 
Due to varying population densities, the mixture of urban and rural areas, and the nature of local 
economies, there is unlikely to be a single chargepoint provision solution that meets the needs of 
every LA area. Further, local communities will rightly expect to be closely involved in the planning 
and delivery of EV infrastructure in their areas. As the pace of the transition to EVs increases, 
charging infrastructure provision needs to be available, affordable, and secure, right across the 
country.  Doing so will reduce the country’s impact on climate change, improve air quality and 
create economic opportunities.   

What requirements are we consulting on for England and 
Wales? 

We are seeking views on introducing a statutory duty to plan for and provide EV 
infrastructure. Ahead of any secondary legislation to introduce the statutory requirement, we will 
consult on the duty, including any relevant definitions, metrics, and other measures applicable.  
 
One option is to place this duty on the LAs in England and Wales. This would help ensure 
that measures align with wider local transport planning and that local resident and 
stakeholder views are embedded in the process. Other options include placing the duty 
on chargepoint operators themselves, or energy companies. 

 

 

Page 24



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/9 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

5. Do you agree or disagree that there should be a statutory duty to plan for sufficient 
provision of electric vehicle chargepoints to meet the needs of:  
 

 Strongly 
agree 

Agree 
Neither 

agree nor 
disagree 

Disagree 
Strongly 
disagree 

Don't know?

residents in a given 
geographical area?    

   
            

businesses in a given 
geographical area?    

   
            

visitors in a given 
geographical area?    

   
            

  

6. Do you agree or disagree that there should be a statutory duty to provide sufficient 
electric vehicle chargepoints to meet the needs of:  
 

 Strongly 
agree 

Agree 
Neither 

agree nor 
disagree 

Disagree 
Strongly 
disagree 

Don't know?

residents in a given 
geographical area?    

   
            

businesses in a given 
geographical area?    

   
            

visitors in a given 
geographical area?    

   
            

  

7. Who, in your view, should be legally responsible for planning sufficient provision of 
electric vehicle chargepoints to meet the needs of residents in a given geographical area?  
 
   Local authorities 

 

  
Chargepoint operators 

  
Energy sector 

  
A specific part of the energy sector, or another body: 
  

 

  

8. Who, in your view, should be legally responsible for planning sufficient provision of 
electric vehicle chargepoints to meet the needs of businesses in a given geographical 
area?  
 

  
Local authorities 

  
Chargepoint operators 

  
Energy sector 

   A specific part of the energy sector, or another body: 
 Central Government 

 

  

Page 25



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/10 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

9. Who, in your view, should be legally responsible for planning sufficient provision of 
electric vehicle chargepoints to meet the needs of visitors in a given geographical area?  
 
   Local authorities 

  
Chargepoint operators 

  
Energy sector 

  
A specific part of the energy sector, or another body: 
  

 

  

10. Who, in your view, should be legally responsible for providing sufficient electric 
vehicle chargepoints to meet the needs of residents in a given geographical area?  
 
   Local authorities 

  
Chargepoint operators 

  
Energy sector 

  
A specific part of the energy sector, or another body: 
  

 

  

11. Who, in your view, should be legally responsible for providing sufficient electric 
vehicle chargepoints to meet the needs of businesses in a given geographical area?  
 

  
Local authorities 

  
Chargepoint operators 

  
Energy sector 

   A specific part of the energy sector, or another body: 
 Central Government  

 

  

12. Who, in your view, should be legally responsible for providing sufficient electric 
vehicle chargepoints to meet the needs of visitors in a given geographical area?  
 
   Local authorities 

  
Chargepoint operators 

  
Energy sector 

  
A specific part of the energy sector, or another body: 
  

 

  

13. How might placing this statutory requirement on the organisations you have selected 
affect:  
 

Page 26



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/11 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

provision of 
chargepoints?   

There will be a need for additional resource/cost   
A requirement for acceleration of existing activities such as strategy/policy 
development and EVCP rollout. 
 

 

chargepoint 
investment?   

It means that an LA can take a balanced approach to investment, inviting private 
investment where they want it but retaining control. More, funding allocations 
that are less specific would be required to be released by Central Government. If 
the funding does not take into account the size/nature of the area, it could be 
difficult for larger areas to rollout at the required scale. In the case of County 
Councils, it would enable a LA wide procurement strategy delivering better value 
for money. Savings could also be made by freeing up LA owned land.  

 

 
14. What views do you have on how the statutory duty to:  
 

plan for 
sufficient 
chargepoints 
should be 
enforced?   

An independent body should be used to enforce statutory duty to plan for 
sufficient EVCP’s (a division OZEV/DCLG?) 

 

 
provide 
sufficient 
chargepoints 
should be 
enforced?   

An independent body should be used to enforce statutory duty to provide 
sufficient EVCP’s (a division of OZEV/DCLG?) 

 

  
15. In your view do other obligations placed on the organisations you’ve selected:  
 

  
complement with the proposed duties?

  
conflict with the proposed duties? 

 
Explain why?   
LA’s are already responsible for statutory planning in relation to relevant items such as 
development control, building control, street parking and traffic regulations. LA’s also have 
active, interested and committed members of the public to become members and represent their 
constituents ensuring solutions to local problems/challenges are met, EV Charging is an item we 
are now receiving increasing requests to address.  
 
 

  
  

Page 27



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/12 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

16. What, in your view, are the:  
 

benefits expected as a 
result of introducing a 
statutory duty to plan for 
and ensure adequate 
charging infrastructure 
provision in a given 
geographical area?   

A requirement for an LA to plan for and provide EVCP’s enables a more 
coordinated approach to delivery. Working with subnational transport bodies and 
neighbouring authorities will help LA’s knowledge share and understand where 
demand is greatest. It also enables alignment with local transport plans and 
other local planning policies.  
 
The statutory requirement implies a need to develop a strategy/policy to 
recognise the number of charge points, barriers to delivery and locations to 
deliver for the individual authority, which means there approach is not 
piecemeal. 
 
It also means that an LA can take a balanced approach to investment, inviting 
private investment but retaining control. In the case of County Councils, it would 
enable a LA wide procurement strategy delivering better value for money. 
Savings could also be made by freeing up LA owned land. 

 

 
costs expected as a 
result of introducing a 
statutory duty to plan for 
and ensure adequate 
charging infrastructure 
provision in a given 
geographical area?   

 Don’t know 
 

  

17. What level of additional resource would be needed to plan for and provide sufficient 
charging infrastructure and how does this vary depending on who this obligation is 
placed upon?  
 
At least two dedicated officers responsible for planning for and delivery of EV’s who would be 
responsible for establishing a working group to avoid siloed work streams.  Leads for residents, 
fleet and public transport would also be required. 
 
 
 

Chargepoints in non-residential car parks  
  
A strong attraction of electric vehicles is that they can be charged wherever they are parked 
provided there is a suitable chargepoint. Drivers without off-street parking at home are restricted 
to the use of public chargepoints on:  

 streets 
 the wider road network 
 car parks 

 
We propose to require landowners in England to provide a minimum level of EV 
charging infrastructure in existing non-residential car parks and also new non-residential car 
parks not covered by other legislation. 
 
This would build upon our proposals consulted on in 2019 (opens in a new window) to require 
new residential and non-residential buildings with car parks to have EV charging infrastructure. 

Page 28



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/13 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

18. Should, in your view, we seek powers to set a minimum level of EV charging 
infrastructure for all non-residential car parks?  
 

  
Strongly agree (Go to ‘Chargepoints in non-residential car parks’) 
 
 

   Agree (Go to ‘Chargepoints in non-residential car parks’) 

  
Neither agree nor disagree  (Go to ‘Chargepoints in non-residential car parks’) 

  
Disagree 

  
Strongly disagree 

  
Don’t know? (Go to ‘Chargepoints in non-residential car parks’) 

Continuing in chargepoints in non-residential car 
parks  
  

19. Why not?  
 
  
N/A 
 
 

  

20. As you are against the proposal, and other question are about implementation of that 
proposal, you may now either: * 
 

  
continue answering questions about chargepoints in car parks? 

  
go to the next on the Rapid Charging Fund? (Go to ‘Making the Rapid Charging Fund’)

Chargepoints in non-residential car parks  

21. Should, in your view, these powers apply to all car parks that are:  
 

 Strongly 
agree 

Agree 
Neither 

agree nor 
disagree 

Disagree 
Strongly 
disagree 

Don’t 
know? 

publicly accessible 
(for example retail, 
leisure and 
healthcare car 
parks)? 

   
   

            

 
not publicly 
accessible but 
provided for the use 
of a particular group 

   
   

            

Page 29



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/14 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

 Strongly 
agree 

Agree 
Neither 

agree nor 
disagree 

Disagree 
Strongly 
disagree 

Don’t 
know? 

(for example as a 
workplace car park)?

  
We will consider whether there will be exemptions to installing chargepoints in non-residential car 
parks in certain circumstances. For example, exemptions may be considered where:  

 costs to install are excessive 
 where there is insuffienct electricity supply 

 
We will also consider whether there should be a minimum number of spaces in a car park before 
the regulations apply for example only in car parks with more than 10 parking spaces. 

22. Should, in your view, there be exemptions to the requirements for chargepoints in car 
parks?  
 
   Yes 

  
No (Go to ‘Chargepoints in non-residential car parks’) 

  
Don't know? (Go to ‘Chargepoints in non-residential car parks’)

Exemption groups and types  

23. In your view which groups, types of car park or circumstances should be exempt from 
the requirements?  
 
Circumstances: 
1. Where costs to install are excessive 
2. Where there is insufficient electricity supply 
 
Types of car park: 
1. In car parks with less than 10 parking spaces 
2. Parking locations with a maximum 30 minutes stay  

Chargepoints in non-residential car parks  
We are not currently specifying a proposed minimum level of infrastructure, this will be 
considered at a later stage taking into account consultation responses. 
 

24. What, in your view, would a suitable minimum provision of charging infrastructure be 
in non-residential car parks (for example one chargepoint for every 10 spaces)?  
1 charge point to every 10 spaces to be reviewed as soon as 2025.   
 
 
 

  
 
We are proposing that the duty to provide EV chargepoints will fall on the landowners of the car 
park. Landowners would be able to work in collaboration with:  

 leaseholders 
 car park operators 
 developers 

Page 30



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/15 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

 other bodies to install and manage the EV infrastructure 
 
They would not be able to pass on their duty to ensure provision. Landowners may be able to 
share cost depending on their contractual arrangements. 

25. Should, in your view, the landowner of the car park be responsible for ensuring there 
is the required level of charging infrastructure provision?  
 
   Yes (Go to ‘Chargepoint implementation’) 

  
 

No 

  
Don't know? (Go to ‘Chargepoint implementation’)

Alternative to landowner  

26. Who would you have responsible instead of the landowner?  
 
 

Chargepoint implementation  
  
If we use these powers, we would seek to identify an appropriate enforcement body that can 
operate at a local level to monitor compliance with the requirements. For example, we are 
currently considering local weights and measures authorities (opens in a new window) or Local 
Authority Building Control bodies (opens in a new window). It is proposed that enforcement 
bodies will be able to apply a scheme of penalties. 

27. Who, in your opinion, would be an appropriate body to operate at a local level to 
enforce the proposals?  
 
Local Authority Building Control 
 
 

  

28. Do you agree or disagree that the requirements be enforced with a scheme of 
penalties?  
 

  
Strongly agree 

  
Agree 

  
Neither agree nor disagree 

  
Disagree 

  
Strongly Disagree 

Page 31



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/16 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

  
Don’t know? 

 
Why?   
 Yes, because otherwise there are no consequences for non-compliance.  

Penalties should be considered with exemptions mentioned at Q23 in mind.  
 
 
 

Chargepoint impact assessment  
 29. What, in your view, are the benefits expected as a result of requiring landowners of 
non-residential car parks to install EV charging infrastructure?  
 
We believe it should be the developer that is legally responsible, however, the benefits are the 
reduced burden on the Local Authority to deliver chargepoints in new car parks/developing 
areas. Installation in all new developments could future-proof and provide charge points of at 
least the minimum standard. 

It would be necessary to assess the demand continually to ensure not over providing. 
 
 

 
30. What, in your view, are the costs expected as a result of requiring landowners of non-
residential car parks to install EV charging infrastructure?  
 
  
don’t know 

  
31. How many current non-residential car parks, are there in the UK?  
 
 don’t know 
 

 
32. How many new non-residential car parks, not associated with a building and not 
falling under our building regulations proposals, do you think will be built over the next 10 
years in the UK?  
 
  
 
don’t know 
 

  
We are suggesting using the 2019 consultation impact assessment (opens in a new 
window) which was an analysis on non-residential chargepoint regulation impacts for future 
impact assessment. 
 

33. Do you agree with the costs, assumptions and impacts set out in the impact 
assessment?  
 

Page 32



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/17 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

  
Yes (Go to ‘Chargepoint impact assessment evidence’) 

  
No 

  
Don't know? (Go to ‘Chargepoint impact assessment evidence’)

Disagree with impact assessment  
 34. Why not?  
 
  
 
 
 

Chargepoint impact assessment evidence  
 35. Provide any supporting impact assessment evidence.  
 
[Attach any evidence to your response] 
 
 
Comments:   
  

Making the Rapid Charging Fund  
  
The Rapid Charging Fund (opens in a new window) is a new £950 million fund to future-proof 
electrical capacity at motorway and major A road service areas to support the phase-out of petrol 
and diesel cars and vans (opens in a new window). 
 
The fund will support the cost of providing additional or upgraded electrical connections at 
motorway and major A road service areas. 
 
The fund is England-only as the provision of transport infrastructure is devolved. 
 
The fund will be administered by a delivery body, which will:  

 accept funding applications from motorway and major A road service areas 
 examine the applications to ensure the requested connection size is based on robust 

estimates of expected demand from a 100% zero emission vehicle fleet 
 potentially act as the owner of the new/upgraded connection, leasing capacity to 

applicants 
 

There is a legal risk to the fund because the majority of motorway service areas in England have 
an exclusive provider of open access chargepoint services. This could lead to any funding being 
challenged on state subsidy or other grounds.  
 
The Competition & Markets Authority completed a study of the EV charging market in July 2021 
(opens in a new window) and decided to open an investigation into these existing agreements at 
3 of the major motorway service operators under the Competition Act 1998 (opens in a new 
window) we await the outcome of this investigation.  
 
Because of the strategic importance of these sites, and to avoid any delay to the Rapid Charging 
Fund, we have concluded we will need to act to reduce any potential risk to the fund in the future. 
 
We are considering taking new powers to make the exclusive elements of existing chargepoint 

Page 33



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/18 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

service arrangements void and unenforceable.  
 
To ensure long-term competition is maintained at these sites, we are considering requiring 
service area operators and large fuel retailers to:  

 tender chargepoint service contracts openly 
 have a minimum of 2, and at some sites more than 2, different chargepoint operators at 

any particular site 
 

The effect of this will be create more competition between chargepoint service providers at these 
sites for the benefit of consumers, and to reduce the legal risk to the fund. 
 
We are considering requiring existing providers of chargepoint services at motorway service 
areas to make their chargepoints open access rather than only open to an exclusive network or 
group of networks or manufacturers. This would also extend to existing agreements for such 
services, which would be rendered void and unenforceable if the network were not to be 
opened.  
 
In order to ensure there is sufficient chargepoint availability at these strategically important sites 
on the network, we are considering further extending the powers of government to mandate that 
service area operators and large fuel retailers must meet minimum chargepoint numbers at 
specific sites, and at increasing levels over a period of time. 
 

36. Do you agree or disagree that we should have the power to mandate more competition 
between chargepoint operators at:  
 

 Strongly 
agree 

Agree 
Neither 

agree nor 
disagree 

Disagree 
Strongly 
Disagree 

Don’t 
know? 

service areas? 
                  

large fuel retailers? 
                  

 
Comments:   
  
 
 
 

  

37. Do you agree or disagree that we should have the power to remove existing 
exclusivity clauses between chargepoint operators at:  
 

 Strongly 
agree 

Agree 
Neither 

agree nor 
disagree 

Disagree 
Strongly 
Disagree 

Don’t 
know? 

service areas? 
                  

large fuel retailers? 
                  

 
Comments:   
  
 

Page 34



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/19 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

 
 

38. How might restrictions on exclusivity at large fuel retailers and service areas affect:  
 

chargepoint 
investment?   

Prevents monopoly demonstrating better Value for Money 
Could support service operator/fuel retailer relationship with existing exclusive 
providers as they develop relationships with new suppliers i.e. existing retailer 
won’t walk away because the service operator/retailer is being forced to 
introduce a new provider 

 

provision of 
chargepoints at 
these 
locations?   

Provides greater reliability of charge points for customers 
 

 

other issues?     
 

  

 

39. Do you agree or disagree that we should have the power to require chargepoint 
operators to offer open access charging at:  
 

 Strongly 
agree 

Agree 
Neither 

agree nor 
disagree 

Disagree 
Strongly 
Disagree 

Don’t 
know? 

service areas? 
                  

large fuel retailers? 
                  

 
Comments:   
 This will reduce range anxiety, giving EV drivers the confidence to make longer journeys. It also 
means they do not have to have multiple applications or access cards.  
 
 
 

  

40. How do you think we should define open access charging?  
 
Consumers should be able to locate and access chargepoints with ease. The definition of open 
access charging should be “the ability to 'plug and play' at any chargepoint in the country using a 
single application/access card”.  
 
 
 

  

41. Do you agree or disagree that we should be able to act as the freeholder of an 
electricity connection for:  
 

Page 35



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/20 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

 Strongly 
agree 

Agree 
Neither 

agree nor 
disagree 

Disagree 
Strongly 
Disagree 

Don’t 
know? 

service areas? 
                  

large fuel retailers? 
                  

 
Comments:   
  
 
 
 

  

42. Do you agree or disagree that we should be able to make a body to administer, operate 
and own these connections?  
 

  
Strongly agree 

  
Agree 

  
Neither agree nor disagree 

  
Disagree 

  
Strongly Disagree 

  
Don’t know? 

 
Comments:   
  
 
 
 

  

43. Do you agree or disagree that we should have the power to require a progressive 
increase in the number of chargepoints provided at:  
 

 Strongly 
agree 

Agree 
Neither 

agree nor 
disagree 

Disagree 
Strongly 
Disagree 

Don’t 
know? 

service areas? 
                  

large fuel retailers? 
                  

 
Comments:   
This will enable the operator/fuel retailer only having charge points with older/outdated 
technology, investment for additional future chargers can be made in newer technologies when it 

Page 36



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/21 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

becomes available at the recommended progressive intervals.  
 

  

44. What do you think are the costs expected as a result of getting powers to:  
 
mandate more 
competition 
between 
chargepoint 
operators at 
service areas?   

 Don’t know 
 

mandate more 
competition 
between 
chargepoint 
operators at 
large fuel 
retailers?   

 Don’t know 
 

remove existing 
exclusivity 
clauses 
between 
chargepoint 
operators and 
service area 
operators?   

 Don’t know 
 

remove existing 
exclusivity 
clauses 
between 
chargepoint 
operators?   

 Don’t know 
 

remove existing 
exclusivity 
clauses 
between large 
fuel retailers?   

 Don’t know 
 

require a 
progressive 
increase the 
number of 
chargepoints 
provided at 
service areas?   

 Don’t know 
 

require a 
progressive 
increase the 
number of 
chargepoints 
provided at 
large fuel 
retailers?   

 Don’t know 
 

Page 37



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/22 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

require 
chargepoint 
operators to 
offer open 
access 
charging at 
service areas?   

 Don’t know 
 

require 
chargepoint 
operators to 
offer open 
access 
charging at 
large fuel 
retailers?   

 Don’t know 
 

  
45. What do you think are the benefits expected as a result of getting powers to:  
 
mandate more 
competition 
between 
chargepoint 
operators at 
service areas?   

Prevents monopoly demonstrating better Value for Money 
 

mandate more 
competition 
between 
chargepoint 
operators at 
large fuel 
retailers?   

 Prevents monopoly demonstrating better Value for Money 
 

remove existing 
exclusivity 
clauses 
between 
chargepoint 
operators at 
service areas?   

 Prevents monopoly demonstrating better Value for Money 
 

remove existing 
exclusivity 
clauses 
between 
chargepoint 
operators at 
large fuel 
retailers?   

 Prevents monopoly demonstrating better Value for Money 
 

require a 
progressive 
increase the 
number of 
chargepoints 
provided at 
service areas?   

Investment is staggered 
Prevents facilities having outdated charge points, investment for additional 
future chargers can be made in newer technologies when it becomes available 

 

require a 
progressive 

Investment is staggered 

Page 38



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/23 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

increase the 
number of 
chargepoints 
provided at 
large fuel 
retailers?   

Prevents facilities having outdated charge points, investment for additional 
future chargers can be made in newer technologies when it becomes available 

 

require 
chargepoint 
operators to 
offer open 
access 
charging at 
service areas?   

Prevents monopoly demonstrating better Value for Money 
Ensures a more reliable service by providing a ‘backup option’ 
Reduces range anxiety 

 

require 
chargepoint 
operators to 
offer open 
access 
charging at 
large fuel 
retailers?   

Prevents monopoly demonstrating better Value for Money 
Ensures a more reliable service by providing a ‘backup option’ 
Reduces range anxiety 

 

 46. What in your view are the costs, including operator costs, of implementing open 
access charging at:  
 
large fuel 
retailers?   

 Don’t know 
 

service areas?    Don’t know 
 

  

47. What, in your view, are the likely costs that will be incurred by mandating 2 or more 
open access chargepoint operators at:  
 
large fuel 
retailers?   

 Don’t know 
 

service areas?    Don’t know 
 

  

48. What in your view are the likely consumer price impacts of mandating two or more 
chargepoint operators at  
 
large fuel 
retailers?   

 Don’t know 
 

service areas?    Don’t know 
 

Improving the experience for electric vehicle 
consumers  
  
We propose to improve EV consumers' experience and ensure there are appropriate consumer 
protections for users of public charging infrastructure. It is essential that as the charging network 
expands and evolves, consumer needs are kept central. 
 
We know from the consumer experience at public chargepoints consultation (opens in a new 
window) that there are emerging issues which can negatively affect consumers. We are already 

Page 39



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/24 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

introducing regulations to improve reliability and ease of payment on the public charging network. 
However, current legislation does not allow us to cover the full spectrum of EV consumer needs 
and we are proposing new primary powers to ensure that:  

 inclusively designed public chargepoints are available for all 
 consumers feel safe when charging on-route 
 consumers have rights to redress if something goes wrong 

 

Our starting assumption is that these powers are needed for UK public chargepoints, but we also 
see a case for strengthening provisions for private charging and welcome views on this. 
 
A chargepoint is a "public chargepoint" if it is provided for use by members of the general public, 
as per the Alternative Fuel Infrastructure Regulations 2017 (opens in a new window). 
 
Ahead of introducing secondary legislation, we would consult on any proposed approaches, 
including provisions relating to: 

 standardised definitions and specifications 

 any exemptions 

We hope these provisions will improve the individual user's experience and increase wider public 
engagement with EV charging. 

What requirements are we proposing? 

We are seeking primary powers to: 

 ensure adequate consumer protections when encountering issues using public 
chargepoints 

 set accessibility (inclusive design) and safety requirements at public chargepoints 

 mandate aspects of chargepoint design such as familiarity, look and feel, and which will 
include accessibility and safety features 

Ensure adequate consumer protections when using public chargepoints 

We would take powers to require financial redress for consumers and penalties if bodies breach 
requirements. When developing supporting secondary legislation we will consult on 
arrangements for complaints and redress management. These arrangements would include a 
mechanism for an enforcement body to impose penalties and sanctions on industry participants 
for poor consumer service. The energy market is a useful comparison of where consumers can 
escalate complaints to an independent body able to require financial redress. In the energy 
market a regulated body found in breach can be penalised. 
  

Setting accessibility and safety standards at public chargepoints 

We would take primary powers to require operators and installers to mandate accessibility 
(inclusive design) and safety standards for UK public chargepoints, including around the parked 
vehicles and chargepoints. This includes the requirement that: 

Page 40



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/25 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

 adequate, accessible, standardised signage and information is provided at all public 
chargepoints 

 chargepoints are situated in safe locations and/or that mitigations are provided, such as 
adequate lighting and weatherproofing 

Mandating aspects of chargepoint design 

To ensure chargepoints are easy to use, recognisable and provide a consistent consumer 
experience, we propose taking a primary power to mandate certain aspects of chargepoint 
design. 

Consumer protections  
Consumers should be able to contact a complaints service easily if something goes wrong while 
using public charging infrastructure. The current legislative framework does not allow us to 
ensure that EV consumers have adequate rights to redress when experiencing issues charging 
their vehicle. We are therefore seeking views on how we might strengthen protections for 
consumers of public charging infrastructure. 
 

49. Do you agree or disagree that we should implement a consumer protection service, 
including the option of financial redress to consumers?  
 

  
Strongly agree 

  
Agree 

  
Neither agree nor disagree 

  
Disagree 

  
Strongly Disagree 

  
Don’t know? 

  

50. Should, in your view, there be a mechanism for an enforcement body to impose 
penalties and sanctions on chargepoint operators for a poor consumer service?  
 

  
Strongly agree 

  
Agree 

  
Neither agree nor disagree 

  
Disagree 

  
Strongly Disagree 

  
Don’t know? 

  

Page 41



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/26 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

51. What, in your view, are the cost implications of establishing a new consumer 
protections system, including complaints and redressing services (whether government-
led or an independent entity)?  
 
 Don’t know 
 
 
 

  

52. What, in your view, do you think will be the financial cost to the consumer of these 
consumer protection powers?  
 
  
don’t know 
 
 

 
 
Accessible, inclusively designed chargepoints  
  
We want all EV consumers to be able to easily locate and use public charging infrastructure. We 
are therefore seeking views on how to ensure that inclusively designed chargepoints are 
available so that all consumers, including those with visible and non-visible disabilities, can 
easily charge their vehicle. This could take into account aspects such as height 
of chargepoint, kerb height, cable weight and space between bollards. 

53. Do you agree or disagree that we should mandate accessibility standards for public 
chargepoints that includes the area around the parked car and the chargepoint?  
 

  
Strongly agree 

  
Agree 

  
Neither agree nor disagree (Go to ‘Accessible, inclusively designed chargepoints’) 

  
Disagree (Go to ‘Disagree with accessibility standards’) 

  
Strongly disagree (Go to ‘Disagree with accessibility standards’) 

  
Don't know? (Go to ‘Accessible, inclusively designed chargepoints’) 

Agree with accessibility standards  
 54. What, in your view, are the benefits to mandating accessibility standards?  
 
Charging is inclusive/accessible for all. It supports the ambition to encourage the widespread 
uptake of EVs.   

Page 42



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/27 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

 
 

[After answering go to ‘Accessible, inclusively designed chargepoints’] 

 
Disagree with accessibility standards  
55. What, in your view, are the constraints to mandating accessibility standards?  
 
  
N/A 
 
 

 
Accessible, inclusively designed chargepoints  
56. In your view, what are the costs of mandating accessibility standards?  
 
 Don’t know 

  

57. To what extent do you agree that we should mandate accessibility standards for 
private residential chargepoints?  
 

  
Strongly agree 

  
Agree 

  
Neither agree nor disagree 

  
Disagree 

  
Strongly agree 

  
Don't know? 

Personal safety at chargepoints  
We want all consumers to feel safe when using public charging infrastructure. We are therefore 
seeking views on how we might ensure that consumers do not feel their personal safety is at risk 
while charging their vehicle. This would include considerations as to where chargepoints should 
be situated and the provision of mitigations such as adequate lighting and weatherproofing.  
 

58. Do you agree or disagree that we should mandate industry participants to provide a 
safe charging experience at public chargepoints?  
 

  
Strongly agree 

  
Agree 

Page 43



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/28 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

  
Neither agree nor disagree (Go to ‘Personal safety at chargepoints’) 

  
Disagree (Go to ‘Disagree with mandating industry participants’) 

  
Strongly disagree (Go to ‘Disagree with mandating industry participants’)

  
Don't know? (Go to ‘Personal safety at chargepoints’) 

Agree with mandating industry participants  
  

59. What, in your view, are the benefits to mandating industry participants to provide a 
safe charging experience?  
 
It will encourage widespread uptake of EVs. It could encourage use of charge points when costs 
of electricity are cheaper i.e. during the night, when people might ordinarily avoid charging if they 
do not feel safe accessing their vehicle.  

[After answering go to ’Personal safety at chargepoints’]  

 
Disagree with mandating industry participants  
60. What, in your view, are the constraints to mandating industry participants to provide a 
safe charging experience?  
 
  
N/A 
 
 

Personal safety at chargepoints  
61. In your view, what are the costs to implementing any mandatory requirements on 
industry participants to provide a safe public charging experience?  
 
  
don’t know 
 
 

  

62. What, if any, measures do you think we should introduce to make people feel safe 
while charging their vehicle?  
 
Appropriate lighting, appropriate security e.g. covered by CCTV, delivery in open areas where 
possible, information on who to contact if you feel unsafe on/near the charge point, for delivery in 
car parks consider how it meets the national safety standard such as the ‘safer parking scheme’ 
through a ‘park mark’ initiative or similar, enforcement.  
 
 
 

  

Page 44



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/29 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

63. To what extent do you agree that we should take the powers to mandate requirements 
on industry participants to provide a safe charging experience for private residential 
chargepoints?  
 

  
Strongly agree 

  
Agree 

  
Neither agree nor disagree 

  
Disagree 

  
Strongly disagree 

  
Don't know? 

Recognisable chargepoint design  
  
Consumers should be able to easily recognise public EV chargepoints and have a consistent 
experience when using the public charging infrastructure. To ensure chargepoints are easy to 
use, recognisable and provide a consistent consumer experience, we would take a primary 
power to mandate aspects of chargepoint design. 
 

64. Do you agree or disagree that we should have the power to mandate the entirety of, or 
defined aspects of, the recognisable design of public chargepoints?  
 

  
Strongly agree (Go to ‘Agree with recognisable chargepoint design‘)

  
Agree (Go to ‘Agree with recognisable chargepoint design‘) 

  
Neither agree nor disagree (Go to ‘Equalities information’) 

  
Disagree 

  
Strongly disagree 

  
Don't know? (Go to ‘Equalities information’) 

Disagree with recognisable chargepoint design  
 65. Why not?  
 
Some market towns, heritage sites and national parks, for example, have environments where 
designs of charge points should be forgiving of their nature.  

  

66. What, in your view, are the constraints to mandating a recognisable design?  
 
Some market towns, heritage sites and national parks, for example, have environments where 
designs of charge points should be forgiving of their nature. 

[After answering go to ‘Equalities information’] 

Page 45



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/30 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

 
Agree with recognisable chargepoint design  
67. Which, if any, aspects of the design should we be able to set (for example size, colour, 
form and shape)?  
 
  
N/A 

  

68. What, in your view, are the benefits to mandating a recognisable design?  
 
  
N/A 

  

69. In your view, what are the costs to implementing any recognisable design?  
 
  
N/A 

  

70. Do you agree that the mandated recognisable design should apply to all public 
chargepoints in:  
 

  
all locations? 

  
only specific locations? 
  

 

Equalities information  
  
The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) (opens in a new window) requires public bodies to have 
due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster 
good relations between different people when carrying out their activities. 
 
As a part of this duty we are asking for any evidence on the potential impacts of these zero 
emission vehicle proposals on individuals or groups within society. The Equality Act (opens in a 
new window) lists the protected characteristics of:  

 age 
 disability 
 gender reassignment 
 marriage and civil partnership 
 pregnancy and maternity 
 race 
 religion or belief 
 sex 
 sexual orientation 

 
This evidence will be anonymised and retained after the retention period of this consultation 
information. 
 

Page 46



Appendix A 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/31 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

71. Supply any data or evidence you have about any of the proposals discussed that you 
think would positively or negatively impact on individuals with protected characteristics.  
 
[Attach any evidence to your response] 
 
 
 
Comments:   
  
 
 
 

Final comments  
  

72. Any other comments?  
 
All statutory regulations should be established in partnership with central government. Where 
statutory regulations affect businesses i.e. their need to plan for charge points the LA should 
work with/offer support and guidance to the businesses in the planning process. There needs to 
be co-ordination with sub national transport bodies and enterprise partnerships where possible. 

 

Page 47



Appendix B 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/32 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

Initial equality impact assessment screening form 
(As of October 2015 this form replaces ‘Record of decision not to carry out an EIA’) 
 
This form records an equality screening process to determine the relevance of 
equality to a proposal, and a decision whether or not a full EIA would be 
appropriate or proportionate.  
 
Directorate  Business and Environmental Services 
Service area Highways and Transportation 
Proposal being screened Response to the consultation to be submitted to 

DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory 
Review: Electric Vehicles 

Officer(s) carrying out screening  Keisha Moore  
What are you proposing to do? Respond to the consultation to be submitted to 

DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory 
Review: Electric Vehicles 

Why are you proposing this? What 
are the desired outcomes? 

To help Government ensure that there is a 
sufficient charging infrastructure and appropriate 
consumer protections in place to meet the needs 
of electric vehicle (EV) drivers.  

Does the proposal involve a 
significant commitment or removal 
of resources? Please give details. 

No 
 

Is there likely to be an adverse impact on people with any of the following protected 
characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010, or NYCC’s additional agreed 
characteristics? 
As part of this assessment, please consider the following questions: 
 To what extent is this service used by particular groups of people with protected 

characteristics? 
 Does the proposal relate to functions that previous consultation has identified as 

important? 
 Do different groups have different needs or experiences in the area the proposal relates 

to? 
 

If for any characteristic it is considered that there is likely to be a significant adverse 
impact or you have ticked ‘Don’t know/no info available’, then a full EIA should be 
carried out where this is proportionate. You are advised to speak to your Equality rep 
for advice if you are in any doubt. 
 
Protected characteristic Yes No Don’t know/No 

info available 
Age     
Disability     
Sex (Gender)     
Race     
Sexual orientation     
Gender reassignment     
Religion or belief     
Pregnancy or maternity     
Marriage or civil partnership     
NYCC additional characteristic 
People in rural areas     

Page 48



Appendix B 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/33 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

People on a low income     
Carer (unpaid family or friend)     
Does the proposal relate to an area 
where there are known 
inequalities/probable impacts (e.g. 
disabled people’s access to public 
transport)? Please give details. 

The consultation has considered how the 
outcomes of the consultation may impact 
positively or negatively impact on individuals 
with protected characteristics and seeks any 
data or evidence we have to support this.  

Will the proposal have a significant 
effect on how other organisations 
operate? (e.g. partners, funding 
criteria, etc.). Do any of these 
organisations support people with 
protected characteristics? Please 
explain why you have reached this 
conclusion.  

No  

Decision (Please tick one option) EIA not 
relevant or 
proportionate: 

 
 

Continue to 
full EIA: 

 

Reason for decision  
Signed (Assistant Director or 
equivalent) 

Barrie Mason 
 

Date 03/11/21 
 

Page 49



Appendix C 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/34 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

Climate change impact assessment                                                                                                          
 
The purpose of this assessment is to help us understand the likely impacts of our decisions on the environment of North Yorkshire and on our 
aspiration to achieve net carbon neutrality by 2030, or as close to that date as possible. The intention is to mitigate negative effects and identify 
projects which will have positive effects. 
 
This document should be completed in consultation with the supporting guidance. The final document will be published as part of the decision 
making process and should be written in Plain English. 
 
If you have any additional queries which are not covered by the guidance please email climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Title of proposal DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles 

Consultation Response 
Brief description of proposal To provide Members with outline details of the Department for Transport (DfT) 

and Office for Zero Emissions (OZEV) Future of Transport Regulatory Review: 
Electric Vehicles response proposed to be submitted by the County Council. 

Directorate  BES 
Service area Highways and Transportation  
Lead officer Keisha Moore 
Names and roles of other people involved in 
carrying out the impact assessment 

 

Date impact assessment started 26/10/2021 
 
 

Please note: You may not need to undertake this assessment if your proposal will be subject to any of the following:  
Planning Permission 
Environmental Impact Assessment 
Strategic Environmental Assessment 
 
However, you will still need to summarise your findings in in the summary section of the form below. 
 
Please contact climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk for advice.  
 

P
age 50



Appendix C 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/35 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

 
 
 

Options appraisal  
Were any other options considered in trying to achieve the aim of this project? If so, please give brief details and explain why alternative options were not 
progressed. 
No 
 
 
 
What impact will this proposal have on council budgets? Will it be cost neutral, have increased cost or reduce costs?  
 
Please explain briefly why this will be the result, detailing estimated savings or costs where this is possible. 
 
 
None, no funding is being requested as a result of this report however, the Corporate Director – BES and BES Exec Member for Access may wish to use the 
report to consider the opportunities to deliver the Council’s climate change objectives and when prioritising investment.  
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 51



Appendix C 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/36 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

How will this proposal impact on 
the environment? 
 
N.B. There may be short term 
negative impact and longer term 
positive impact. Please include all 
potential impacts over the lifetime 
of a project and provide an 
explanation.  

P
o

si
ti

ve
 im

p
ac

t 
(P

la
ce

 a
 X

 in
 th

e 
bo

x 
be

lo
w

 w
he

re
 

N
o

 im
p

ac
t 

(P
la

ce
 a

 X
 in

 th
e 

bo
x 

be
lo

w
 w

he
re

 

N
eg

at
iv

e 
im

p
ac

t 
(P

la
ce

 a
 X

 in
 th

e 
bo

x 
be

lo
w

 w
he

re
 

Explain why will it have this effect and over 
what timescale?  
 
Where possible/relevant please include: 
 Changes over and above business as 

usual 

 Evidence or measurement of effect 
 Figures for CO2e 
 Links to relevant documents 
 

Explain how you plan to 
mitigate any negative 
impacts. 
 

Explain how you plan to 
improve any positive 
outcomes as far as 
possible. 

Minimise greenhouse 
gas emissions e.g. 
reducing emissions from 
travel, increasing energy 
efficiencies etc. 
 

Emissions 
from travel 

 X     

Emissions 
from 
constructio
n 

 X     

Emissions 
from 
running of 
buildings 

 X     

Other  X     

Minimise waste: Reduce, reuse, 
recycle and compost e.g. reducing 
use of single use plastic 

  X     

Reduce water consumption  X     

P
age 52



Appendix C 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/37 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

How will this proposal impact on 
the environment? 
 
N.B. There may be short term 
negative impact and longer term 
positive impact. Please include all 
potential impacts over the lifetime 
of a project and provide an 
explanation.  

P
o

si
ti

ve
 im

p
ac

t 
(P

la
ce

 a
 X

 in
 th

e 
bo

x 
be

lo
w

 w
he

re
 

N
o

 im
p

ac
t 

(P
la

ce
 a

 X
 in

 th
e 

bo
x 

be
lo

w
 w

he
re

 

N
eg

at
iv

e 
im

p
ac

t 
(P

la
ce

 a
 X

 in
 th

e 
bo

x 
be

lo
w

 w
he

re
 

Explain why will it have this effect and over 
what timescale?  
 
Where possible/relevant please include: 
 Changes over and above business as 

usual 

 Evidence or measurement of effect 
 Figures for CO2e 
 Links to relevant documents 
 

Explain how you plan to 
mitigate any negative 
impacts. 
 

Explain how you plan to 
improve any positive 
outcomes as far as 
possible. 

Minimise pollution (including air, 
land, water, light and noise) 
 

 X      

Ensure resilience to the effects of 
climate change e.g. reducing flood 
risk, mitigating effects of drier, hotter 
summers  

 X     

Enhance conservation and wildlife 
 

 X     

Safeguard the distinctive 
characteristics, features and special 
qualities of North Yorkshire’s 
landscape  

 

 X    
 

 

Other (please state below) 
 

 X     

P
age 53



Appendix C 

NYCC – 21 November 2021 - Executive Members 
DfT/OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review: Electric Vehicles/38 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

 
Are there any recognised good practice environmental standards in relation to this proposal? If so, please detail how this proposal meets those 
standards. 

 
N/A 
 
 

 
 

Summary Summarise the findings of your impact assessment, including impacts, the recommendation in relation to addressing impacts, including any legal 
advice, and next steps. This summary should be used as part of the report to the decision maker. 
 
This consultation is aimed at helping Government ensure that there is a sufficient charging infrastructure and appropriate consumer protections in place to meet 
the needs of electric vehicle (EV) drivers to ensure that we reach net zero greenhouse gas emissions and the UK ends its contribution to climate change.  
 

 
 
Sign off section 
 
This climate change impact assessment was completed by: 
 
Name Keisha Moore 
Job title Transport Planning Officer  
Service area Highways and Transport  
Directorate BES 
Signature K Moore 
Completion date 26/10/2021 

 
Authorised by relevant Assistant Director (signature): Barrie Mason 
 
Date: 03/11/21 
 

 
 

P
age 54



 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/1 

OFFICIAL

North Yorkshire County Council 
 

Business and Environmental Services  
 

Executive Members 
 

12 November 2021 
 

Malton and Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

Report of the Assistant Director – Highways and Transportation 
 
1.0 Purpose Of Report 
 
1.1 To seek approval from the Corporate Director, Business Environmental Services in 

consultation with the BES Executive Member for Access of the Malton and Norton 
Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan, Phase 1.  
 

1.2 To seek permission from the Corporate Director, Business Environmental Services 
in consultation with the BES Executive Member for Access to use North Yorkshire 
County Council Development Initiative Reserves to fund Phase 2 of the Malton and 
Norton LCWIP.  

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 In November 2019 North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) commissioned WSP to 

prepare a Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) for the Malton and 
Norton area.    
 

2.2 The LCWIP has been developed in accordance with the Government’s suggested 
Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan guidance and Local Transport Note 
(LTN) 1/20.  
 

3.0 LCWIP Scheme Development 
 
3.1 Work on the LCWIP for Malton and Norton is being completed in two phases. The 

output of Phase 1 is the production of an LCWIP that identifies a long list of priority 
corridors to take forward for further investigation and development in Phase 2 of the 
project. Phase 2 will see the development of a series of draft concepts and designs 
for the priority corridors identified in Phase 1.  
 

3.2 The evidence base for Malton and Norton produced in Phase 1 has been informed by 
a series of existing data sets, best practice and stakeholder input. Officers from the 
County Council’s partner consultant, WSP and NYCC hosted two workshops in 
Malton and Norton. The first workshop was an internal workshop, hosting officers 
from NYCC, WSP and Ryedale District Council (RDC). This workshop focused on 
scoping out the main challenges, opportunities and defining the study area.  
 

3.3 The second workshop hosted a range of external attendees, and provided the 
opportunity for stakeholders to provide their input on the draft cycling and walking 
network and identify priorities for intervention. Alongside officers from NYCC and 
RDC, external stakeholders attending this workshop included representatives from 
schools, TransPennine Express, and councillor representation.  
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/2 

OFFICIAL

3.4 As part of the Phase 1 work, a long-list of corridors have been identified for Malton 
and Norton that could be taken forward for further analysis and development. These 
corridors form a ‘skeleton network’ through the two towns, encompassing main origin 
and destination points, and creating both radial and orbital routes along key desire 
lines. These priorities are presented as ‘active travel corridors’ focused on improving 
conditions for both cycle users and pedestrians and maximising scheme benefits. 
The long list of priority corridors are:  
 Corridor 1 – Central Loop; 
 Corridor 2 – Core Connections;  
 Corridor 3 – Amotherby Strategic Route;  
 Corridor 4 – York Road Corridor;  
 Corridor 5 – Old Malton Road Corridor;  
 Corridor 6 – Pasture Lane Residential Route;  
 Corridor 7 – Langton Road Radial;  
 Corridor 8 – Norton Grove Loop; 
 Corridor 9 – Malton Town Curve.  

 
4.0 Member Consultation 
 
4.1 Following the completion of the phase 1 report, it was issued to each member of the 

Thirsk and Malton Area Constituency Committee via email. A copy of the Phase 1 
report is contained in Appendix A.  Members were provided with the draft phase 1 
report, a covering report and an executive summary. Members were asked to note 
the content of the report and provide feedback within four weeks.   

 
4.2 No comments were received from members of the Area Constituency Committee.  
 
5.0 Funding for Phase 2  

 
5.1 As highlighted in 3.1, work on the LCWIP for Malton and Norton is intended to be 

completed in two phases. Phase 1 is complete and once funding is agreed, Phase 2 
can commence which will see the development of a series of draft concepts and 
designs for the priority corridors identified in Phase 1.  
 

5.2 All LCWIPs, except Malton and Norton, have been funded from the major scheme 
development budget. The average cost of LCWIP development is £80,000.  
 

5.3 The total cost of the Phase 1 report for Malton and Norton was £29,500; this was 
funded using the Rural Funding Allocation (RFA) and some of the Brambling Fields 
Section 106 contributions. The aforementioned funding has since been fully 
committed.  
 

5.4 The cost of producing a Phase 2 LCWIP report for Malton and Norton is £14,970 and 
we are seeking approval to access this from the NYCC Development Initiatives 
Reserves budget.  
 

6.0 Use of LCWIPs 
 
6.1 It is envisaged that the LCWIPs will be used to help attract funding in order to deliver 

walking and cycle infrastructure. Having a series of draft designs will enable NYCC to 
be ready to submit bids when appropriate funding competitions and government 
funding becomes available. LCWIPs also enable NYCC to request Section 106 
funding from developers where a priority route has been identified within the 
proximity of the development.  

Page 56



 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/3 

OFFICIAL

7.0 Next Steps  
 
7.1 Once the Phase 1 report is approved and the recommended long-list priority corridors 

agreed, Phase 2 will commence with a series of concept designs generated in 
accordance of Government guidance which will be considered for future bidding and 
funding opportunities to further develop the designs into a format suitable to submit 
for funding.  
 

7.2 This will be accompanied by a prioritisation exercise to identify improvements in the 
short term (2-3 years), medium term (<5 years) and long term (5 years +). This will 
provide a pipeline of cycling and walking improvements for delivery in the short, 
medium and long term, which can be put forward for further funding opportunities. 
The plan should be subject to regular review to reflect changes in local 
circumstances, such as major new development sites, publication of new policies or 
strategies, or new sources of funding made available.  

 
8.0 Financial Implications 
 
8.1 There have been no additional financial implications identified for Phase 1 of the 

project as the cost was met from the Rural Funding Allocation (RFA) and some of the 
Brambling Fields Section 106 contributions. However, if approved additional funding 
will be required for Phase 2.  

 
8.2 Funding of £14,970 is required to complete Phase 2 of the project, and it is proposed 

that this is met from the Development Initiatives reserve budget in 2021/22. 
 
8.3 Once the draft designs have been completed in Phase 2, these will remain draft until 

funding becomes available from central government, Section 106 monies or any 
other suitable funding source. 

 
9.0 Equalities Implications  
 
9.1 Consideration has been given to the potential for any adverse equalities impact 

arising from the recommendations of this report. It is the view of officers that the 
recommendations included in this report do not have any adverse impacts on any of 
the protected characteristics identified in the Equalities Act 2010 or NYCC’s 
additional agreed characteristics. However, it is worth noting that fully developed 
schemes will require a full Equalities Impact Assessment. The completed Equalities 
Impact Assessment screening form can be found in Appendix B.  
 

9.2 The LCWIPs will support a transport system fit for all users, making walking and 
cycling routes more accessible and inclusive. The creation of the corridors identified 
in the LCWIP are likely to have a positive impact on people with reduced mobility 
providing safer access routes within Malton and Norton.  

 
10.0 Climate Change Impact Assessment  
 
10.1 Consideration has been given to the potential for any adverse impacts on climate 

change arising from the recommendations of this report. The completed Climate 
Change Impact Assessment can be found in Appendix C and it is the view of officers 
that approval of this report will not have a direct climate change impact.  

 
 
 
 

Page 57



 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/4 

OFFICIAL

11.0 Legal Implications 
 

11.1 Preparation of these plans is part of the County Council’s function as Highway 
Authority and the LCWIP is being carried out in accordance with the Government’s 
Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan guidance and LTN 1/20. There is an 
expectation that local authorities will have given the guidance due consideration 
when applying for Government funding that includes cycle infrastructure. It is 
acknowledged that legal implications may arise at the planning and implementation 
stages.  
 

11.2 Further consideration as outlined in section 9 is being given to equalities issues 
which will be pertinent to these plans as schemes become fully developed.  

 
12.0 Recommendations  
 
12.1 It is recommended that the Corporate Director, Business and Environmental 

Services, in consultation with the BES Executive Member for Access: 
i) Note the content of the report and approve the Phase 1 LCWIP for Malton and 

Norton 
ii) Approve the use of £14,970 from the NYCC Development Initiative Reserve 

for the purpose of completing Phase 2 work.  
 
 

 
BARRIE MASON 
Assistant Director – Business and Environmental Services 
 
 
Authors of Report:  Will Britton/Keisha Moore  
 
 
Background Documents: None 

Page 58



70054112-FIN 
JULY 2021 

PUBLIC 

North Yorkshire County Council 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 

INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 

Malton & Norton 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/5

Page 59



North Yorkshire County Council 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 

INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 

Malton & Norton 

PUBLIC 

TYPE OF DOCUMENT (VERSION) PUBLIC 

PROJECT NO. 70054112 

OUR REF. NO. 70054112-FIN 

DATE: JULY 2021 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/6

Page 60



North Yorkshire County Council 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 

INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 

Malton & Norton 

PUBLIC 

WSP 

Amber Court 

William Armstrong Drive 

Newcastle upon Tyne 

NE4 7YQ 

Phone: +44 191 226 2000 

Fax: +44 191 226 2104 

WSP.com 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/7

Page 61



LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council 

QUALITY CONTROL 

Issue/revision First issue Revision 1 Revision 2 Revision 3 

Remarks First Draft Second Draft Third Draft Final Report 

Date 15/11/2019 10/01/2020 26/03/2020 21/07/2021 

Prepared by H Kinneavy H Kinneavy H Kinneavy H Kinneavy 

Signature 

Checked by P Freestone P Freestone P Freestone P Freestone 

Signature 

Authorised by C Whitfield C Whitfield C Whitfield C Whitfield 

Signature 

Project number 70054112 70054112 70054112 70054112 

Report number 1.0 2.0 3.0 5.0 

File reference \\uk.wspgroup.com\central data\Projects\700541xx\70054112 - NYCC Malton & Norton 
LCWIP Phase 1\03 WIP\TP Transport Planning\05 Reports 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/8

Page 62



LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council 

CONTENTS 

1 INTRODUCTION 1 

2 EVIDENCE BASE 5 

3 CYCLE NETWORK 79 

4 WALKING NETWORK  94 

5 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 105 

6 NETWORK PRIORITIES & RECOMMENDED NEXT STEPS 115 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/9

Page 63



LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council 

TABLES 

Table 1-1 – The LCWIP Process 1 

Table 2-1 – Barrier Closure Times 21 

Table 2-2 – Queue Lengths 21 

Table 2-3 – Traffic Clearing time 22 

Table 2-4 – Commuting destinations from Malton & Norton 32 

Table 2-5 – Workplace Destinations 32 

Table 2-6 – M&N Internal Journeys to Work: Modal Split 33 

Table 2-7 – Types of Cyclist 35 

Table 2-8 – Malton & Norton Pedestrian & Cycle User Collisions 36 

Table 2-9 – Walking and Cycling Isochrone Criteria 39 

Table 2-10 – Key Destinations 54 

Table 3-1 – Draft Network Hierarchy 88 

Table 4-1 – Core Walking Zones 95 

Table 4-2 – Footway Hierarchy in ‘Well-Maintained Highways’ 98 

Table 5-1 – M&N LCWIP Workshop Attendees 105 

Table 5-2 – Draft Cycle Network Comments 107 

Table 5-3 – Cycle Network Priority Comments 108 

Table 5-4 – Emerging Cycling Priorities 109 

Table 5-5 – Draft Walking Network Comments 111 

Table 5-6 – Network Link Priority Comments 112 

Table 5-7 – Emerging Walking Network Priorities 113 

Table 6-1 – Final Network Hierarchy Definitions - Cycling 118 

Table 6-2 – Final Network Hierarchy Definitions - Walking 118 

Table 6-3 – Types of Intervention - Cycling 119 

Table 6-4 – Types of Intervention - Walking 119 

Table 6-5 – Cycle Network Interventions 120 

Table 6-6 – Walking Network Interventions 120 

Table 6-7 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 1 - Central Loop 123 

Table 6-8 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 2 - Core Connections 124 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/10

Page 64



LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council 

Table 6-9 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 3 – Amotherby Strategic Route 125 

Table 6-10 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 4 - York Road Corridor 126 

Table 6-11 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 5 - Old Malton Road Corridor 127 

Table 6-12 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 6 - Pasture Lane Residential Route 128 

Table 6-13 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 7 - Langton Road Radial 129 

Table 6-14 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 8 - Norton Grove Loop 130 

Table 6-15 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 9 - Malton Town Curve 131 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/11

Page 65



LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council 

FIGURES 

Figure 1-1 – Study Area Boundary 3 

Figure 2-1 – LCWIP Study Area Topography 17 

Figure 2-2 – Proportion of trips cycled in England (according to ‘Hilliness’ of local area) 18 

Figure 2-3 – Barriers to Movement 20 

Figure 2-4 – Malton AQMA: Broad Extents 24 

Figure 2-5 – Environmental Constraints 26 

Figure 2-6 – Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 27 

Figure 2-7 – Health Deprivation 28 

Figure 2-8 – Barriers to Housing and Services 29 

Figure 2-9 – Living Environments 30 

Figure 2-10 - Cycle Network & PROW within the LCWIP Study Area 35 

Figure 2-11 – Cycle User Collisions Location Plot (by Severity) 37 

Figure 2-12 – Pedestrian User Collisions Location Plot (by Severity) 38 

Figure 2-13 – LCWIP Study Area Active Travel Isochrone 39 

Figure 2-14 – Designated Cycle Routes in Malton & Norton 42 

Figure 2-15 – Cycle Shops and Services in Malton & Norton 43 

Figure 2-16 – Car Parks in Malton & Norton 48 

Figure 2-17 – Malton & Norton Strategic Bus Network 51 

Figure 2-18 – Existing Origin-Destination Plots 55 

Figure 2-19 – Committed & Aspirational Growth Sites 59 

Figure 2-20 – Malton and Norton Cycling Plan 2005 67 

Figure 2-21 – PCT Output: % of Population Cycling to Work, by LSOA (2011 Census) 72 

Figure 2-22 – PCT Output: Top 30 Cycle Flows between OD Pairs (2011 Census) 73 

Figure 2-23 – PCT Output: Top 30 Cycle Flows between OD Pairs, mapped to Fast and 

Quiet Routes (2011 Census) 73 

Figure 2-24 – PCT Output: Total Cyclists on Route Network (2011 Census) 74 

Figure 2-25 – PCT Output: Forecast Cycle Flows mapped to Route Network, based on 

Government Target Scenario 75 

Figure 2-26 – PCT Output: Forecast Cycle Flows mapped to Route Network, based on Go 

Dutch Scenario 76 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/12

Page 66



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council  

Figure 3-1 – Malton and Norton: Key Origins and Destinations 81 

Figure 3-2 – Malton and Norton: Key Future Developments and Infrastructure 83 

Figure 3-3 – Malton and Norton: Schematic Connections 85 

Figure 3-4 – Malton & Norton: Draft Cycle Network 87 

Figure 3-5 – Draft Cycle Network Map: Malton and Norton 91 

Figure 4-1 - Identified Core Walking Zones 97 

Figure 4-2 – Draft Walking Route Hierarchy 102 

Figure 5-1 – Cycling Network Feedback 106 

Figure 5-2 – Walking Network Feedback 110 

Figure 6-1 – Final Cycling Network Map 116 

Figure 6-2 – Final Walking Network Map 117 

Figure 6-3 – Long List of Priorities 122 

Figure 6-4 – Long List of Priorities 132 

 

APPENDICES 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/13

Page 67



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 1 of 132 

1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 BACKGROUND 

1.1.1. Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs), as set out in the Government’s Cycling 

and Walking Investment Strategy (CWIS), are a new strategic approach to identifying cycling and 

walking improvements required at the local level. They enable a long-term approach to developing 

local cycling and walking networks, typically over a 10-year period, and form a vital part of the 

Government’s strategy to increase the number of trips made on foot or by cycle.  

1.1.2. The key outputs of LCWIPs are:  

 a network plan for walking and cycling which identifies preferred routes and core zones for further 

development; 

 a prioritised programme of infrastructure improvements for future investment; and 

 a report which sets out the underlying analysis carried out and provides a narrative which 

supports the identified improvements and network.  

1.1.3. By taking a strategic approach to improving conditions for cycling and walking, LCWIPs will assist 

Local Authorities (LAs) to:  

 identify cycling and walking infrastructure improvements for future investment in the short, 

medium and long term; 

 ensure that consideration is given to cycling and walking within both local planning and transport 

policies and strategies; and 

 make the case for future funding for walking and cycling infrastructure.  

1.2 LCWIP PROCESS 

1.2.1. The Department for Transport (DfT) has produced guidance to develop a LCWIP; this defines 6 

distinct stages in the production of an LCWIP, as outlined below.  

Table 1-1 – The LCWIP Process 

Stage Name Description 

1 Determining Scope Establish the geographical extent of the LCWIP, and arrangements for 
governing and preparing the plan. 

2 Gathering 
Information 

Identify existing patterns of walking and cycling and potential new journeys. 
Review existing conditions and identify barriers to cycling and walking. Review 
related transport and land use policies and programmes. 

3 Network Planning 
for Cycling 

Identify origin and destination points and cycle flows. Convert flows into a 
network of routes and determine the type of improvements required. 

4 Network Planning 
for Walking 

Identify key trip generators, core walking zones and routes, audit existing 
provision and determine the type of improvements required. 

5 Prioritising 
Improvements 

Prioritise improvements to develop a phased programme for future 
investment. 

6 Integration and 
Application 

Integrate outputs into local planning and transport policies, strategies, and 
delivery plans. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/14

Page 68



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 2 of 132 

1.2.2. The Malton & Norton LCWIP will be split into two distinct phases.  

 The Phase 1 project report details the evidence review, network development process, and 

prioritisation of routes for short-term intervention, reflecting Stages 1 to 5 of the LCWIP guidance. 

 The Phase 2 project report details the development of the identified priorities into ‘bid-ready’ 

schemes. 

1.2.3. The two project reports will be taken forward for integration and application (Stage 6 of the LCWIP 

guidance) with the wider policy and strategy framework by NYCC.  

1.3 DEFINING THE STUDY AREA 

1.3.1. Malton and Norton are twin towns separated by River Derwent in the district of Ryedale, North 

Yorkshire, located between York and Scarborough. Together, the two towns form the largest 

settlement in Ryedale and the District’s Principal Town, with a joint population1 of approximately 

12,000.  

1.3.2. In addition to the physical boundary line created by the River Derwent, the towns are also separated 

by an active railway line; the Grade II listed Malton railway station is located to the south of Malton, 

approximately 0.5km from each of the town centres. The York to Scarborough railway line separates 

the two towns and the associated level crossing is the single crossing point between the towns for 

all modes of transport (including pedestrians, cyclists and motor vehicles). Historically, there was a 

pedestrian bridge over the railway line at the eastern side of the level crossing, but this was 

removed in the 1980s.  

1.3.3. The focus of the LCWIP process is to create a cohesive network for walking and cycling that will 

encourage those who do not currently walk or cycle for everyday purposes to do so, generally 

aligning with travel for commuting and utility purposes over shorter distances. Links between urban 

areas are often less likely to promote the desired modal shift, with greater benefits obtained through 

the provision of a denser urban network, connecting residential areas with a range of employment 

opportunities, schools, shops and facilities within a desirable walking or cycling distance.  

1.3.4. The LCWIP will also consider strategic longer-distance inter-urban links, connections to outlying 

areas, and tourist or leisure focussed routes where these are deemed to add significant value.  

 

 

 

 

1 Source: Office of National Statistics - Census Dataset QS102EW 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/15

Page 69



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 3 of 132 

Figure 1-1 – Study Area Boundary 

 

1.4 REPORT STRUCTURE 

1.4.1. This project report details Phase 1 of the Malton & Norton LCWIP and is structured as follows: 

 Section 2 – Evidence Base; 

 Section 3 – Best Practice; 

 Section 4 – Developing the Cycle Network; 

 Section 5 – Developing the Walking Network; 

 Section 6 – Stakeholder Engagement; and 

 Section 7 – Recommended Network and Next Steps. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/16

Page 70



 

PUBLIC 

 
 

2 
EVIDENCE BASE 

 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/17

Page 71



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 5 of 132 

2 EVIDENCE BASE 

2.1 INTRODUCTION 

2.1.1. This chapter places the LCWIP within the national, regional, and local policy framework and 

establishes the existing geographic, demographic, and active travel situation in the study area. 

Forecast trends in growth are also presented to understand the future situation, considering 

changing travel patterns and future development in the district.  

2.1.2. The culmination of this work is an evidence base that supports and informs development of the 

Malton & Norton LCWIP, helping to define network connections and emerging priorities. 

2.1.3. A detailed desktop research exercise has been undertaken to help establish the baseline situation 

and understand future trends, considering available datasets, policies and strategies. However, in 

order to ensure that the LCWIP and the resulting network plans are founded on robust evidence, this 

research has been supplemented by a range of data collection and stakeholder consultation 

exercises, including: 

 Site Visits: Site visits were undertaken to appreciate the study area at ground level. The site visits 

were undertaken on foot and bicycle in order to understand travel around the study area as 

vulnerable road users. 

 Stakeholder Workshops: An external stakeholder workshop took place with officers of North 

Yorkshire County Council and Ryedale District Council as well as members of the public in order 

to gain their input on the challenges and opportunities related to walking and cycling in the study 

area. A summary note regarding this workshop is provided in Section 5.  

 Meetings / Conference Calls: The project team have liaised with key internal stakeholders from 

RDC in order to gain detailed insight into the work the District has done relating to walking and 

cycling network planning. Meeting with RDC staff (as the planning authority) and NYCC area 

officers also provided an opportunity to understand proposed and committed developments in the 

study area that may impact and influence the final network, in particular large residential and 

employment sites. 

2.1.4. The structure of this section is as follows: 

 Policy Context; 

 Local Geography; 

 Demographics; 

 Existing Transport Networks: Cycling and Walking; 

 Existing Transport Networks: Road, Rail and Public Transport; 

 Existing Origins and Destinations; and 

 Future Situation (Developments, Infrastructure and Forecasting Growth). 

 

 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/18

Page 72



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 6 of 132 

2.2 POLICY CONTEXT 

2.2.1. The DfT LCWIP guidance highlights the need to understand the local, regional, and national policy 

framework with which the LCWIP document will align and be integrated. Several key policy 

documents have been identified and summarised below, highlighting synergies with the aims of 

LCWIP and how the LCWIP can support the delivery of these policy objectives: 

 Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy (Department for Transport, 2017); 

 Clean Air Strategy (Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs, 2019); 

 The Inclusive Transport Strategy (Department for Transport, 2018); 

 Future of Mobility: Urban Strategy (Department for Transport, 2019); 

 NYCC Local Transport Plan 4 (LTP4), 2016-2045; 

 York, North Yorkshire & East Riding LEP Strategic Economic Plan, 2014;  

 A Strategic Transport Prospectus for North Yorkshire; 

 Ryedale District Council Local Plan Strategy 2012-2027; and 

 Ryedale District Council Draft Local Plan Sites Document & Policies Map Draft Local Plan 2017. 

NATIONAL POLICY 

Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy (Department for 

Transport, 2017) 

2.2.2. The Government published its first Cycling and Walking Investment 

Strategy (CWIS) in 2017, setting out an ambition to make walking and 

cycling the natural choices for shorter journeys or as part of a longer 

journey. The CWIS states that the benefits to doing this would be 

substantial, potentially leading to cheaper travel and better health, 

increased productivity for business and increased footfall in shops, and 

lower congestion, better air quality, and vibrant, attractive places and 

communities for society as a whole. 

2.2.3. The CWIS outlines a £300 million investment in cycle training and 

infrastructure during the current Parliament and sets out ambitious 

targets for the period up to 2025, including a doubling of cycling trip stages each year (from 0.8 

billion in 2013 to 1.6 billion by 2025), whilst also reversing the current year-over-year decline in 

walking trip stages. The CWIS also identifies a need to decrease the number of cycle user fatalities 

and serious injuries each year.  

2.2.4. North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) shares this ambition for promoting cycling and walking as 

the natural choice for shorter journeys or as part of a longer journey. Within the county there are 

clear opportunities to better connect people and places with targeted investment in active travel 

infrastructure, providing direct, safe and attractive options for local journeys and reducing the 

perceived or actual need to travel by car. 

Future of Mobility: Urban Strategy (Department for Transport, 2019) 

2.2.5. The ‘Future of Mobility: Urban Strategy’ recognises the challenges associated with the rise in motor 
transport including safety, pollution and space. As the number of people living in urban areas in 
England is forecast to rise by 4.7 million between 2016 and 2041, towns and cities will become 
increasingly crowded. This provides us with an opportunity to transform the way we travel and the 
infrastructure within our towns and cities. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/19

Page 73



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 7 of 132 

2.2.6. The document sets out principles to guide Government and local authorities decision making, and 
has recognised active travel as a key area to help shape the future of urban mobility.  The principle 
‘Walking, cycling and active travel must remain the best option for short urban journeys’ states, in 
England, 45% of all journeys taken by urban residents are under 2 miles. Many such journeys could 
be undertaken by sustainable, active modes of transport contributing to better air quality, health 
outcomes and lower congestion. This can be supported by new technologies including intelligent 
use of real-time data and connectivity making public transport more convenient and responsive. 
With these improvements active travel can become a more desirable option for multi-stage journeys. 
The increase in available journey planning tools, the provision of real-time travel information by all 
modes, including walking and cycling, can help people make smarter, greener and healthier travel 
choices.  

2.2.7. An additional principle identified; ’Mobility as a Service’, suggests introducing well-managed bike-
sharing schemes and e-bikes which would encourage people who wouldn’t normally chose cycling 
as a travel option to switch. This may be especially important given the trend towards an aging 
population, noting 62% of e-bikes in the UK are sold to people over the age of 55. This represents a 
complementary investment opportunity, which combined with improving active travel infrastructure, 
could help facilitate a step-change towards cycling and walking becoming much more commonplace 
across Malton & Norton.  

Clean Air Strategy (Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs, 2019) 

2.2.8. The Clean Air Strategy sets out a comprehensive action required to tackle all sources of air 
pollution.  

2.2.9. A key action in achieving this is reducing emissions from transport 
by facilitating modal shift towards low and zero emission options. 
The report suggests encouraging an increase in cycling and 
walking for short journeys delivers a reduction in congestion and 
emissions in addition to the associated health benefits from a more 
active lifestyle.  

2.2.10. Drivers and passengers inside vehicles are often exposed to 
significantly higher levels of air pollution in comparison to those 
walking and cycling on the same route. People could be persuaded 
to walk or cycle in Malton, as even when there is a build-up of 
traffic within the town centre, the strategy suggested that those 
travelling actively, experience lower exposure. Pedestrians and 
cyclists could be encouraged to use quieter routes away from 
vehicle traffic to reduce exposure even further.  

2.2.11. This method of travel also creates less pollution, with associated 
health benefits such as improved fitness, mental health and lower 
risk of obesity and heart diseases.  

2.2.12. In addition to the funding identified through the Cycling and 
Walking Investment Strategy, local authorities and mayors have 
been allocated an additional £700 million to safe infrastructure and 
other active travel projects since the CWIS was published. There 
has also been £34 million spent to improve cycle facilities at rail 
stations, making it easier and more accessible to get to and from 
the station by bike, including 22,000 new cycle parking spaces 
which as a result increased cycle trips to stations by 40%.  

 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/20

Page 74



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 8 of 132 

The Inclusive Transport Strategy (Department for Transport, 2018) 

2.2.13. The Inclusive Transport Strategy plans to create more inclusive transport system for everyone. The 
report itself focusses on transport inclusivity, providing inclusive infrastructure, with vehicles, stations 
and streetscapes designed to allow for people with a form of disability to use.  

2.2.14. The LCWIP process aims to create a network to support this ambition and allow for users of all 
abilities to travel safely and comfortably via active travel in and around Malton & Norton. As part of 
this LCWIP we have identified improvements to support a transport system fit for all users, 
identifying infrastructure interventions to make key cycling and walking routes more accessible and 
inclusive.  

Gear Change: A Bold Vision for Cycling and Walking (Department for Transport, 2020) 

2.2.15. In response to the Covid-19 global pandemic, 
the DfT released the Gear Change document in 
summer 2020 to support a new direction in 
local transport strategy. The recent COVID-19 
restrictions have profoundly impacted the way 
people live, work and travel as evidenced by 
the public’s desire to be more active, and the 
rise in popularity of cycling and walking (Sport 
England, 2020). The document states the need 
to embed those changes in people’s travel 
behaviour, increase active travel, and transform 
permanently how many people move around, 
particularly in towns and cities.  

2.2.16. Increasing cycling and walking can help tackle 
some of the most challenging issues we face 
as a society – improving air quality, combatting 
climate change, improving health and 
wellbeing, addressing inequalities and tackling 
congestion on our roads.  

2.2.17. The document details the four key themes that 
the DfT will follow to create a step change in active travel uptake, with the aim of making cycling and 
walking the natural first choice, and ensuring that half of all journeys in towns and cities being cycle 
or walked by 2030. These are: 

 Theme 1: Better streets for cycling and people; 

 Theme 2: Putting cycling and walking at the heart of transport, place-making and health policy; 

 Theme 3: Empowering and encouraging local authorities; and 

 Theme 4: Enable people to cycle and protect them when they do. 

2.2.18. These themes will underpin the DfT’s commitment to increasing investment in active travel 

infrastructure, with the aim of delivering thousands of miles of safe, continuous, direct routes for 

cycling in towns and cities, physically separated from pedestrians and volume motor traffic, serving 

the places that people want to go. Higher design standards have been set, as reflected in the 

publication of Local Transport Note (LTN) 1/20 Cycle Infrastructure Design as has a commitment to 

ensuring that all new developments are built around making sustainable travel the first choice for 

journeys. 

2.2.19.   

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/21

Page 75



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 9 of 132 

SUB-REGIONAL POLICY 

North Yorkshire Local Transport Plan (LTP4) (2016-2045) 

2.2.20. NYCC’s LTP4 is a four-tier document which covers 

the local transport strategy, objectives, transport 

improvements by modes/theme, and policies 

adopted by the County Council.   

2.2.21. In 2012, legislation governing Local Transport Plans 

changed and as a result councils / local government 

no longer need to be fixed to a five-year timespan. 

NYCC subsequently produced a 30-year plan in 

accordance with this change, extending until around 

2045.  

2.2.22. NYCC, through consultation with stakeholders, has identified 5 key objectives regarding transport in 

the county: 

 Economic Growth – Contributing to economic growth by delivering reliable and efficient transport 

networks; 

 Road Safety – Improving road and transport safety; 

 Access to Services – Improving equality of opportunity by facilitating access to services; 

 Environment and Climate Change – Managing the adverse impact of transport on the 

environment; and 

 Healthier Travel – Promoting healthier travel opportunities.   

2.2.23. The LTP4 states that the County Council will promote sustainable travel and encourage staff to 

travel to work by walking, cycling, bus, rail and car sharing. It also highlights that, where possible, 

NYCC will provide additional infrastructure to support sustainable travel, with improvements 

provided through transport grants such as the Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF). The 

County Council will also seek to ensure that provision of suitable facilities to encourage healthier 

travel choices is made within any new development. 

2.2.24. The LTP4 has identified the upgrade of the A64 between Malton and York, introduction of selective 

overtaking lanes and 2+1 running on the A64 between Malton and Scarborough as future priorities. 

It is also supportive of rail improvement proposals to increase rail frequency and reduced journey 

times between York and Scarborough. 

2.2.25. The air quality in the majority of North Yorkshire is of a good standard; however, localised transport-

related air quality issues have been identified at various places, including at Butcher Corner in 

Malton. One of the objectives of the A64 Brambling Fields junction improvement scheme at Malton 

and Norton was to remove traffic from Butcher Corner in order to help mitigate the associated 

AQMA. The LTP4 also identifies other mitigation measures to reduce the impact of transport on air 

quality, including travel planning for new developments; the document stresses the importance of 

NYCC leading by example through encouraging staff to travel to work using sustainable modes, e.g. 

walking and cycling.  

2.2.26. While the LTP recognises a recent growth in cycling for leisure purposes, the document sets out the 

County Council’s commitment to providing for and promoting walking and cycling as a mode of 

travel for ‘utility’ purposes.  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/22

Page 76



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 10 of 132 

2.2.27. However, the LTP also acknowledges the lack of funding available for significant additional 

infrastructure. This commitment to walking and cycling therefore primarily revolves around the 

continued maintenance of the highway network, which is considered “eminently suitable for most 

cycle users”. Despite this, the LTP states that NYCC will continue to seek additional funding where 

available, and proactively plan and develop cycling infrastructure where there is a realistic chance of 

funding being available to deliver the improvements. 

York, North Yorkshire & East Riding LEP Strategic Economic Plan 

2.2.28. The York, North Yorkshire & East Riding Local Enterprise Partnership 

(LEP) Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) was released in 2014, and is a 

single strategy for the area that serves three identified purposes: 

 It sets out the key economic issues, opportunities and priorities for 

the area; 

 It is the EU Strategic and Investment Funds Strategy required for EU 

funding purposes (supported by the EU Strategic Investment Fund 

Implementation Plan); and 

 It is the Strategic Economic Plan that Central Government require for 

Local Growth Deal funding purposes (supported by a more detailed 

Local Growth Deal Implementation Plan). 

2.2.29. Priority 5: A Well-connected Economy addresses transport in the area, 

stating an overarching goal to provide businesses with strong connections to their customers and 

markets. To achieve this aim, the SEP presents three objectives:  

 Fast, reliable journeys between key centres; 

 Transport that underpins both growth and low-carbon goals; and 

 Access to UK and international markets. 

2.2.30. Malton has been identified as a growth town in the SEP, due to its importance to the overall 

economy of North Yorkshire; in recognition of this importance, the SEP states that NYCC will 

investigate and develop proposals to reduce urban congestion where applicable.  

2.2.31. In line with Transport for the North’s (TfN) objective for improved east-west connections, NYCC has 

identified a number of east–west routes as priorities for improvement - including the A64 between 

York and Scarborough. This includes:  

 Supporting the upgrade of the A64 to dual carriageway standard between the Hopgrove 

Roundabout in York and Malton; and 

 Supporting the introduction of selective overtaking lanes and 2+1 running on the A64 between 

Malton and Scarborough.  

2.2.32. Improvements are also proposed for rail, and it is particularly noted that there will be support for 

proposals to reduce journey times on the York to Scarborough line which passes through Malton. 

There will also be strong support for improvements to the TransPennine rail network, which provides 

key links between the County and the major city regions across the north of England. 

2.2.33. Improving access to the rail network is also identified as a key priority, presenting an aim of ensuring 

that at least 85% of the County’s population are within 40 minutes journey time (by road or rail) of an 

HS2 gateway at York, Leeds or Darlington. The existing congestion and delays currently 

experienced in Malton and Norton, which will be exacerbated in future years by new development 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/23

Page 77



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 11 of 132 

and associated traffic growth, may threaten NYCC’s ability to achieve this aim, particularly if the A64 

becomes more congested. 

LOCAL POLICY 

2.2.34. Local policy typically relates to targeted transport enhancements designed to address social, health 

and environmental issues, as well as to benefit the economy by enhancing access to jobs, training 

and services. In many cases there is a focus on improving integration between land-use planning 

and transport to support more sustainable patterns of travel and reinforce the case for targeted 

enhancements to the transport network. 

Ryedale District Council – Local Plan Strategy (RDC, 2013) 

2.2.35. Ryedale’s Local Plan Strategy (LPS) was adopted in 2013; it sets out a vision for continued 

economic growth, resulting in a more diverse and resilient economy and new housing and 

employment development that provides better and balanced communities with improved access to 

services. The vision also identifies that Malton and Norton are the focus for much of the District’s 

growth, and considered to be the cultural and economic heart of the area (noting the strong links 

with York’s economy as the largest conurbation nearby). The LPS considers that these aspirations 

will partly be achieved through provision of and improvements to transport and public realm in the 

two towns.  

2.2.36. The LPS sets out a growth policy which seeks to provide a minimum of around 200 new houses per 

year (3,000 over the Plan period to 2027); 50% of this residential development is planned to be 

provided in the Malton and Norton areas. In addition, 37ha (net) of additional employment land (plus 

a further 8ha additional land supply, if required) is to be allocated across the district, excluding 

existing commitments. The LPS states that around 80% of new employment land allocations are to 

be provided in and around Malton and Norton.  

2.2.37. The key ambitions, aspirations and overall approach for growth for the towns, as set out in the Local 

Plan Strategy, are set out below:  

 Support the role of the Principal Town as a District-wide Service Centre; 

 Housing and employment growth;  

 Improve choice and affordability of housing; 

 Strengthen and develop links with the York economy; 

 Improve choice and availability of employment land and premises including high quality business 

space, managed workspace and a Business and Technology Park;  

 Redevelop key Town Centre and Rail/River Corridor sites;  

 Maintain the vitality and viability of Malton Town Centre; 

 Improve shopping to enhance choices for food retailing and non-food shops, particularly fashion 

shops; 

 Protect and improve leisure and entertainment facilities, including the Milton Rooms and Malton 

Cinema;  

 Provide new and improved sport and recreation facilities;  

 Support opportunities to develop tourism related to Roman/Georgian heritage and horse racing;  

 Identify and secure a new location for the Malton Museum/display of Malton Museum artefacts;  

 Improve accessibility and movement in and between the twin towns, including new and improved 

pedestrian routes, traffic management measures, improved internal junctions and the Brambling 

Fields strategic junction improvement; and 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/24

Page 78



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 12 of 132 

 Improved cycle and pedestrian facilities and routes and links between new development areas 

and existing facilities and employment areas. 

2.2.38. The LPS identifies the importance of ensuring there is an adequate supply of land and buildings to 

support existing high-tech manufacturing activity and new and expanding businesses, as well as 

attracting alternative new and growing sectors. It is also recognised that there is a need for improved 

linkages with York’s economy. 

2.2.39. The LPS characterises transport in Ryedale as having low levels of public transport provision, which 

may be due to the large rural nature of the District and its very low population density. The highest 

levels of public transport deprivation in the District are recorded in the Wolds which reflects the 

limited public transport provisions in the area, resulting in limited access to employment 

opportunities and services in this area of the District. This creates a reliance on at least one private 

car and increasingly two cars per household in order to access the jobs, shops and services that are 

focussed on the local market towns or outside of the district such as York or Scarborough. 

2.2.40. The LPS highlights that there are a number of strategic transport improvements identified by NYCC 

(as the highway authority) that could help address issues of congestion and connectivity 

experienced in the town, including: 

 A junction at the A64 in the Broughton Road area;  

 Improvements to the A64 Brambling Fields junction; 

 A second Rail/River crossing from York Road to the Woolgrowers site;  

 Improvements to the A64 junction at Musley Bank; and  

 Scarborough Road to Beverley Road link.  

2.2.41. The LPS notes that the cost of these schemes is likely to be prohibitive to their implementation; 

however, it is considered that the level of development set out in the LPS could still be delivered in 

the Plan period if the Brambling Fields junction improvement were provided together with a package 

of associated traffic management measures, improvement to junctions within the internal network 

and improved cycling and pedestrian facilities. The LPS goes on to state that further strategic 

transport improvements will be required in order to facilitate and support longer term growth in the 

towns.  

Ryedale District Council – Local Plan Sites Document (Draft) (RDC, October 2017) 

2.2.42. The emerging RDC Local Plan Sites Document highlights that there are around 1,500 committed 

dwellings (i.e. with planning permission or forming part of approved land allocations) across the 

district; 650 of these are in Malton and Norton. Additionally, in terms of employment uses, 

approximately 29ha of land is committed for employment uses (B1, B2, B8), of which around 27ha is 

in Malton and Norton.  

2.2.43. In addition to setting out the proposed housing and employment sites, the document also identifies 

the infrastructure required to be delivered as part of the allocations to ensure the sites are 

deliverable. 

2.2.44. The provision of the types of sustainable transport improvements which will need be implemented 

include: 

 New or modified road and junction improvements; 

 Improvements in public transport services and passenger facilities; 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/25

Page 79



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 13 of 132 

 The provision of a network of safe cycling and walking routes linking residential areas with 

employment sites, town centres, schools and recreational facilities.  

 The use of former railway lines and tracks for recreational purposes (including walking, cycling 

and horse riding) or for potential public transport use should the opportunity arise in the longer 

term. 

2.2.45. The need for public realm improvements was also highlighted as part of the LPS, however there are 

no specific details of any proposed measures other than aspirations to provide public realm 

enhancements to Castlegate, entrance to Norton, Malton’s Market Square and the bus/rail 

interchange area in order to enhance the arrival experience and connectivity of each of the towns.  

SUMMARY 

2.2.46. The policy review demonstrates that the Malton and Norton LCWIP will contribute to a range of 

policy objectives at various spatial scales.  

2.2.47. At a national level, the LCWIP will contribute toward the Government objectives of supporting 

sustainable development, by contributing to economic growth in a sustainable manner. The 

Government recently released the Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy (CWIS) and Local 

Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) guidance; the LCWIP represents part of North 

Yorkshire’s contribution to support the CWIS objectives. The LCWIP will also support and contribute 

toward all five objectives of the North Yorkshire Local Transport Plan due to the wide-ranging way 

that walking and cycling, as a mode of transport, can deliver benefits to individuals and wider 

society. 

2.2.48. At a local level, the LCWIP will complement Ryedale District Council’s aspirations to improve 

connectivity and movement between the towns of Malton and Norton and contribute towards the 

District’s vision for better opportunities to access work and leisure activities, and have wider benefits 

for the environment, health, air quality, and social cohesion.  

2.2.49. If adopted as an SPD, as per the DfT’s LCWIP guidance, the Malton and Norton LCWIP will provide 

a policy basis for development to contribute towards a cohesive walking and cycling network, and 

helps ensure Malton and Norton’s significant growth aspirations come forward in a sustainable 

manner. 

2.3 COVID-19 RECOVERY 

2.3.1. Covid-19 has had a profound impact on the way people travel nationally, with an increase in active 

journey as people take daily exercise as one of the few ways to get out the house, or take essential 

journeys they might otherwise have made by public transport. Cycle-to-work schemes saw a 200% 

increase in the number of bicycle orders, while car use was estimated to be at circa 40% of normal 

levels at the height of the first lockdown in 2020. Air pollution in cities fell rapidly, with nitrogen oxide 

pollution down 70% in places such as Manchester.  

2.3.2. Since the relaxations in lockdown, the population has a need to travel and maintain social distancing 

whilst doing so. For many people, walking and cycling are the natural alternative choice to public 

transport, particularly for those unable to use a private vehicle. The UK government has responded 

to this need, pledging a £250 million emergency fund to create pop-up cycle lanes, widen 

pavements and create walking and cycling only streets across England. In the long term, Transport 

Secretary Grant Shapps has promised a £2 billion national cycling plan, which includes legal 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/26

Page 80

https://www.cyclinguk.org/article/coronavirus-qa-it-safe-cycle
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/business-52564351
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/883678/2020-05-06_COVID-19_Press_Conference_Slides.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/883678/2020-05-06_COVID-19_Press_Conference_Slides.pdf
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-52600708


 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 14 of 132 

changes to protect road users and at least one “zero emissions city”, where the centre would be for 

bikes and electric vehicles only.  

2.3.3. NYCC has responded on a local level to support and stimulate the recovery of the local economy 

and enable people to visit town centres safely and confidently by foot or by bicycle wherever 

possible. NYCC has installed some temporary measures in a number of locations to facilitate this.  

2.3.4. NYCC hopes, where possible, to implement measures that have proved to work permanently, with 

the aim of delivering long-term behaviour change that will assist in addressing issues around 

congestion, air pollution, social inequalities and the global climate crisis. The County Council will 

also look for new opportunities to continue to encourage people to walk or cycle more often. With an 

increased modal shift to active modes and reduced number of vehicles on our road, NYCC could re-

prioritise its long-term objectives and initiatives that would have been unfeasible to deliver with pre-

COVID traffic volumes, such as greater pedestrian and cyclist prioritisation in urban areas, for 

example. 

2.3.5. RDC is also committed to supporting a post-COVID recovery and to safeguarding the lives and 

livelihoods of its residents. NYCC and RDC both recognise that switching from private vehicles or 

giving public transport users suitable alternatives in the form of walking and cycling, reduces the 

number of cars on the road which provides multiple benefits for the user, the economy and the 

environment including: 

 Improved air quality and reduced congestion from reduced use of cars and vans in the towns; 

 Increasing access to training and employment opportunities with full journey solution & support, 

especially for those who don’t have the use of a car; 

 More children and young people are able to cycle or walk to school or college; 

 Reduced obesity, and better health, is linked to better attainment, particularly in education 

settings; 

 Business efficiency improvements by reducing congestion; 

 Health benefits of active transport lead to better physical and mental health, staff are more 

productive & take less time off sick; 

 Town centre retail benefits from the ‘pedestrian pound’; and 

 Reduced carbon emissions.  

2.3.6. The LCWIP priorities could help consolidate and expand upon these temporary measures, 

embedding the changes in travel demands and behaviours for the long-term. The impact of the first 

lockdown has evidenced that where the right conditions are provided there will be an increased 

uptake in active travel.  

2.3.7. The remarkable changes experienced during the first lockdown reinforces the need for travel 

behavioural change and the measure to support this that were already apparent from the congestion 

and air quality issues that Malton and Norton face (as previously identified in the Infrastructure and 

Connectivity Study) and which have been brought into sharper focus as a result of the heightened 

priorities around Climate Change mitigation.  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/27

Page 81



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 15 of 132 

 

2.4 LOCAL GEOGRAPHY 

AREA PROFILE - MALTON AND NORTON 

2.4.1. The twin towns of Malton and Norton serve an important function in the provision of facilities and 

services for smaller settlements across the wider district, particularly in terms of public transport 

links, employment opportunities and, retail, leisure and health provision.  

2.4.2. Of the two towns, Malton has a larger range of key services, with an attractive market place where a 

weekly market is held, and off which the historic livestock market can be accessed; the Market Place 

occupies an elevated site which is sub-divided into a number of varied interlinked spaces around a 

central island of buildings including the Church of St Michael.  

2.4.3. The town centre itself has numerous narrow streets and alleyways which link the Market Place to 

both Wheelgate and Yorkersgate (the key through routes in the town), with the majority of shops and 

services located adjacent to these streets. Many of the buildings in and around the Market Place are 

noted as being of architectural or historical importance, including numerous Listed Buildings; the 

centre of Malton itself is designated as a conservation area.  

2.4.4. While the towns are closely linked, Norton possesses a different townscape to Malton, with the main 

shopping centre located along a linear east-west thoroughfare (comprising Church Street and 

Commercial Street) protected by a conservation area designation. There are also a number of listed 

buildings in the town. Commercial Street includes several small supermarkets in addition to a range 

of convenience shops and food establishments, generally catering for local needs.  

2.4.5. The twin towns are separated by two physical boundaries; the railway line and the River Derwent, 

with an associated single crossing point, resulting in significance severance issues between the two 

town centre areas. The single crossing is intersected by a live level crossing and forms part of a 

complex road junction—at present, the junction is perceived to be unsafe and difficult to navigate for 

all users. There are further issues for active travel users due to limited pedestrian refuges available, 

and with the limited facilities and perceptions of poor safety is considered to discourage modal shift 

to more active modes of travel. 

LCWIP Implications 

— Whilst the need for increased active travel was already evidenced prior to COVID-19, 

particularly to alleviate congestion and air quality issues in the town centre around 

Butcher Corner and the level crossing, the need to enable swift economic recovery in a 

safe environment has brought these issues to the fore.  

— Accelerating the implementation of active travel schemes and providing the necessary 

funding to do so is now a priority at both a national and local level.  

— The LCWIP will have an essential role in securing available funding, evidencing schemes 

are part of a connected and planned network that will bring tangible benefits.  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/28

Page 82



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 16 of 132 

 

  

LCWIP Implications 

— Malton town centre is characterised by historic layouts and constraints such as narrow 

streets, with some areas many centuries old, limiting the type of infrastructure that can be 

implemented.  

— There are significant severance issues between the town centre, with the single crossing 

point perceived unsafe for active travel users, there is opportunity to improve the safety 

for walkers and cyclists surrounding the junction through the LCWIP programme. 

— Reintroduction of the pedestrian bridge could encourage more people to use active 

modes away from the single level crossing points.  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/29

Page 83



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 17 of 132 

TOPOGRAPHY 

2.4.6. Figure 2-1 illustrates the topography within the LCWIP Study Area, displaying 5m contours, with key 

arterial routes shown for additional context. Topography will be more important when considering 

specific desire lines and potential routes; however, as evidenced by the data, the towns of Malton & 

Norton are considered to be relatively flat, with only a few relatively shallow gradients. The wider 

District is characterised by open and sparsely wooded arable landscapes, with hillier regions to the 

south and west.  

2.4.7. The average gradient in Malton is 1.5%, although in some areas (particularly north of the Market 

Place) gradients are somewhat steeper. The land in Norton to the south of the river is much flatter, 

with the average gradient being just 0.75%. Gradients below 2% are considered to provide the most 

conducive conditions for cycling.  

Figure 2-1 – LCWIP Study Area Topography 

  

2.4.8. Hilliness is an important predictor of cycling levels in England, with the probability of cycling a trip 

falling steadily as the hilliness of the local area increases. Recent University of Leeds research 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/30

Page 84



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 18 of 132 

showed that “hilliness was found to be, by far, the most significant determiner of the proportion that 

cycled to work in a district2.”  

2.4.9. Furthermore, as demonstrated in Figure 2-2, overall, people in the tenth of the population in the 

flattest areas are three times more likely to cycle a trip than the tenth of people in the hilliest areas 

(2.8% trips cycled vs. 0.8%3). This makes the topography within the study area an important, 

influencing factor on the cycle network development. Certain areas within the study area may be too 

hilly and deter potential cycle user from using those routes. 

Figure 2-2 – Proportion of trips cycled in England (according to ‘Hilliness’ of local area) 

 

Source: Centre for Diet and Activity Research 

2.4.10. Gradient also plays a major role in the perceived ‘comfort’ or ‘attractiveness’ of pedestrian routes 

(footpaths and footways), and thus, the propensity to walk a route. As highlighted in DfT’s 2005 

‘Inclusive Mobility’ guidance4, and replicated more recently in the 2014 Welsh Active Travel 

Guidance5, steep gradients can have a particular impact on older people, those with physical 

difficulties and parents with pushchairs. The guidance recommends that as a general rule, a 

 

 

 

2 Estimation of the determinants of bicycle mode share for the journey to work using census data, 2007 

3
 Centre for Diet and Activity Research, 2016 

4 Inclusive Mobility, Department for Transport, 2005 

5
 Active Travel Design Guidance, Welsh Government, 2014  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/31

Page 85



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 19 of 132 

gradient of 5% (1 in 20) should be the desirable maximum in most situations and 8% (1 in 12.5) 

should be used as the absolute maximum unless justifiable. Research by Meeder et al (2017)6 

concluded that slope (and by inference ‘hilliness’) has a significant influence on walking 

attractiveness primarily due to the effort (or energy) required to scale the slope, suggesting that for 

every 1% increase in incline there is a 10% reduction in walking attractiveness. 

2.4.11. Such evidence suggests that ‘hilliness’ in certain areas is likely to have a bearing on the propensity 

of people to walk or cycle to and from these areas and must be taken into consideration when 

determining potential networks. 

  

 

 

 

6
 ‘The influence of slope on walking activity and the pedestrian modal share’, Meeder M. et al., 2017  

LCWIP Implications 

— The gradients within Malton and Norton are not seen as a barrier to the development of a 

stronger active travel culture. 

— Consideration should be given to implementing infrastructure in areas of limited ‘hilliness’ 

or inclines, depending on other factors identified during this study. 

— Much of the centres of Malton and Norton are fairly flat, and some flatter routes may be 

capable of forming part of a cycling and walking network through quick wins.   

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/32

Page 86



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 20 of 132 

BARRIERS TO MOVEMENT 

2.4.12. Although the topography of the area has been identified as generally conducive to walking and 

cycling, there are several physical barriers which can significantly impede active travel movements 

within each study area. Figure 2-3 displays various key features that can cause high levels of 

severance, creating barriers to movement across many desire lines and potentially requiring 

significant engineering interventions to mitigate this impact. 

Figure 2-3 – Barriers to Movement 

 

2.4.13. Malton & Norton suffer from significant severance between one another caused by the adjacent 

railway line and river between the two towns. This severance is only mitigated by a single crossing 

point over the railway line, which causes a funnel point for all forms of movement between the two 

areas. While there are two river crossings, the westernmost bridge is of limited benefit, connecting 

primarily to the rail station.    

2.4.14. This severance is further exacerbated by the level crossing control over the railway line; when the 

level crossing barriers are down to allow trains to pass through, traffic builds up on the surrounding 

road network resulting in congestion and delay. At present, there are typically 2 trains an hour which 

stop at Malton, although a doubling of frequency is anticipated.  

2.4.15. Traffic counts were undertaken on 17th January 2018 as part of the Malton and Norton Infrastructure 

Improvements Study. This Study analysed the impacts of the level crossing barrier down time; it 

indicated that the barrier was down for approximately 22 times per day during the 12-hour period 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/33

Page 87



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 21 of 132 

between 7am and 7pm. The longest and shortest closure times recorded were 03:25 minutes and 

01:45, with an average closure time of 02:31 minutes.  

2.4.16. Table 2-1 details the barrier closures times of duration of the closures over the survey period.  

Table 2-1 – Barrier Closure Times 

North Side: Barrier Closure Times/Duration 

Serial 
Barrier 
Down 

Barrier Up Duration Serial 
Barrier 
Down 

Barrier Up Duration 

1 07:04:56 07:06:51 00:01:55 12 13:08:12 13:11:02 00:02:50 

2 07:18:26 07:21:46 00:03:20 13 14:07:09 14:09:16 00:02:07 

3 07:56:15 07:59:14 00:02:59 14 14:09:59 14:13:17 00:03:18 

4 09:13:04 09:15:00 00:01:56 15 14:36:39 14:38:36 00:01:57 

5 09:23:41 09:27:03 00:03:22 16 15:05:15 15:07:00 00:01:45 

6 10:08:02 10:10:50 00:02:48 17 15:20:26 15:23:16 00:02:50 

7 10:18:56 10:20:51 00:01:55 18 16:06:48 16:10:13 00:03:25 

8 11:08:45 11:11:26 00:02:41 19 17:03:00 17:05:32 00:02:32 

9 12:05:09 12:07:07 00:01:58 20 17:07:57 17:10:39 00:02:42 

10 12:07:43 12:10:08 00:02:25 21 18:00:18 18:02:21 00:02:03 

11 13:05:44 13:07:33 00:01:49 22 18:07:35 18:10:16 00:02:41 

2.4.17. The results show the majority of closures are over 2.5 minutes, therefore it is assumed the barriers 

are down for a total of circa 5 minutes each hour. The train services generally run to timetable, 

however on the day of the study there were some delays recorded and two cancellations (08:04 to 

Scarborough and 09:13 to York). 

2.4.18. A queue length survey was also undertaken as part of this study to determine the impact the level 

crossing closures had on the surrounding highway network. Table 2-2 sets out the length of queues 

as a result of the barrier closures. 

Table 2-2 – Queue Lengths 

Road Queue Lengths (No of Vehicles) 

Average Maximum 

B1248 Castlegate 29 54 

Norton Road 5 17 

B1248 Church Street 10 20 

Welham Road 13 26 

2.4.19. The maximum queue length which was recorded was 54 vehicles; this occurred at 4pm on 

Castlegate, which lies north of the level crossing. This queue number also reflects the time of day 

when the barrier was down for the longest duration, at approximately 3.4 minutes. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/34

Page 88



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 22 of 132 

2.4.20. The notes from the survey also indicated that the queue stretched up to 30m south of Butcher 

Corner which indicates that the stationary traffic at these intervals could have directly impacted on 

the AQMA at this junction. 

2.4.21. Table 2-3 sets out the time taken for the traffic queues, as a result of the level crossing to clear.  

Table 2-3 – Traffic Clearing time 

Road Average Queue Maximum Queue Average 
Clearing Time 

Maximum 
Clearing Time 

B1248 Castlegate 29 54 00:02:03 00:04:22 

Norton Rd 5 17 00:02:10 00:06:28 

B1248 Church St 10 20 00:03:05 00:07:08 

Welham Rd 13 26 00:01:04 00:03:46 

2.4.22. The table shows that queue on Church Street takes the longest time to clear in both the average 

and maximum scenarios, which is likely due to the priority arrangements at the junction which 

requires vehicles to give way to the mainline flow. As such, the queue lengths at Castlegate do not 

correlate with the maximum queue dissipation times (as recorded on Church Street). 

 

  

LCWIP Implications 

— There is a physical boundary line between Malton and Norton, created by the River 

Derwent, the towns are also separated by an active railway line features significant 

human made barriers. 

— While some crossing points do exist, additional crossing points may be a key 

requirement in order to create a cohesive active travel network.   

— The barrier closure time impacts on congestions on the surrounding highway network, 

resulting in standstill traffic which could have a direct impact on the AQMA.  

— The current crossing has safety implications for active travel users and therefore may 

discourage people from travelling this way.   

— These issues could be alleviated by a new crossing point, including the potential for 

southern access at the railway station. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/35

Page 89



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 23 of 132 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

2.4.23. Environmental considerations have the potential to form a key part of the LCWIP process. Protected 

areas of land can restrict the type of infrastructure that can be implemented, or even prevent a route 

from being adopted at all, while the LCWIP can contribute or complement strategies to protect or 

enhance the environment.  

2.4.24. The Ryedale environment is considered to be of exceptionally high quality; this is reflected in the 

number and geographical scale of areas that are formally subject to environmental designations 

designed to protect the natural and built environment. Malton is located immediately east of the 

Howardian Hills Area of Outstanding National Beauty (AONB); this designation ensures that the 

natural beauty and special qualities of the area can be conserved and enhanced. The District also 

borders the North York Moors and Yorkshire Wolds. 

2.4.25. The District is also home to a range of heritage assets, including Roman remains in Malton and 

Norton. There are also 34 Conservation areas and circa 1,600 listed buildings across the District. 

Within Malton town centre itself there are a significant number of listed buildings, in addition to three 

Scheduled Monuments, including a Roman fort, the site of Malton Castle, and Old Malton Priory 

Church. 

2.4.26. The high volumes of traffic passing through the towns on a daily basis, and the resulting congestion, 

are considered to be eroding the character of the towns and reducing its attractiveness to visitors 

and potential investors.  

2.4.27. This section of the report presents a brief overview of environmental constraints that could impact on 

the overall LCWIP proposals. 

Air Quality Management Areas 

2.4.28. There is one AQMA within the study area designated in 2009 for exceedances of NO2. The AQMA 

is located at Butcher Corner, and includes the junction of Wheelgate / Old Maltongate / Castlegate / 

Yorkersgate and a short section of Church Hill, as illustrated in Figure 2-4. 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/36

Page 90



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 24 of 132 

Figure 2-4 – Malton AQMA: Broad Extents 

 

2.4.29. The carriageway within the AQMA is narrow and bounded by buildings on both sides. This section of 

the road network experiences regular queuing and congestion, particularly on the approaches to the 

junction intersection known locally as ‘Butcher Corner’; queuing is exacerbated by the downstream 

level crossing to the east of Malton Railway Station, which causes extensive queueing while down.  

2.4.30. RDC has developed an Air Quality Action Plan (adopted in 2012), which aims to reduce NO2 

concentrations through tackling the dominant source of emissions—vehicular traffic. RDC reported 

that road traffic accounted for over 75% of the NO2 within the AQMA; Heavy Duty Vehicles (HDVs) 

are identified as having a disproportionate impact in terms of their emissions, contributing 40% of 

the NO2 emissions while comprising less than 5% of the traffic. Consequently, measures proposed 

in the Action Plan seek to reduce traffic volumes, in particular HGVs; the proposals identified to 

achieve this include:  

 Improved traffic management including improved timing of roadworks and optimising capacity of 

junctions by altering signal timings; 

 Encouragement of multi-purpose trips to reduce travel demand; and 

 Effective management of new developments and car parking to reduce need to travel. 

2.4.31. Since the Action Plan was adopted, in 2012, the number of exceedances of the annual mean NO2 

objective has gradually fallen (7 exceedances in 2012, 3 in 2013, 2 in 2014, 1 in 2015 and no 

exceedances in 2016). Despite this, the current AQMA boundary is still considered relevant; 

pollutant concentrations vary from year to year, due to the influence of meteorological conditions; it 

is also considered that these improvements in air quality may partially be a result of improvements in 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/37

Page 91



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 25 of 132 

vehicle technology and cleaner engines - as such RDC will continue to monitor air quality at this 

location.  

2.4.32. The development of the LCWIP could contribute towards mitigation of the AQMA, with the proposed 

cycling and walking networks helping promote active modes as a viable alternative form of transport, 

thereby potentially reducing the numbers of vehicles passing through Butcher Corner.  

2.4.33. It is noted that NYCC’s LTP4 also recognises the issues caused by poor air quality, and states that 

the county will support the district councils in seeking air quality grant funding through a variety of 

sources.  

Environmental Constraints and Designations 

2.4.34. Figure 2-5 illustrates the various environmental constraints that may need to be considered as part 

of the emerging Malton & Norton LCWIP.  

2.4.35. Many of the potential constraints are associated with flooding, particularly in the low-lying areas 

surrounding the river. The area has been adversely affected by flooding in the past, with key links 

damaged. New infrastructure in these areas will need to consider resilience to flooding, and how it 

could potentially contribute toward mitigation of flood risk. There are also a number of SSSIs and 

scheduled monuments across the various study areas that will need to be considered.   

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/38

Page 92



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 26 of 132 

Figure 2-5 – Environmental Constraints 

 

 

LCWIP Implications 

— The LCWIP offers a significant opportunity to help mitigate the declared AQMA at 

Butcher Corner and contribute toward the delivery of the AQAP. Conversely, the AQAP 

measures can promote the LCWIP as part of the identified measures.  

— Any proposed routes that enter flood risk zones should consider their resilience to flood 

damage. Furthermore, such infrastructure could be designed or placed in such a way as 

to mitigate severance issues during flooding events.   

— Routes that could potentially impact on a scheduled monument (such as any alterations) 

will need to consider Scheduled Monument Consent. 

— Any routes that could impact on a SSSI will need to consult with Natural England and 

any other relevant stakeholders.   

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/39

Page 93



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 27 of 132 

2.5 DEMOGRAPHICS 

INDICES OF MULTIPLE DEPRIVATION 

2.5.1. A key set of demographic indicators when promoting walking and cycling are those related to 

deprivation. This section of the report compares the 50 Lower-level Super Output Areas (LSOAs) 

within the District to the 32,482 LSOAs nationwide, paying particular regard to those within the three 

LCWIP study area.  

2.5.2. The English Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) are usually released on a three-yearly basis by the 

Department for Communities and Local Government. However, there were five years between the 

most recent release in 2015 and the previous release in 2010. Their purpose is to assess the 

concentration and degree of deprivation and poverty within all local authorities in England. The index 

ranks, at a highly localised scale, the degree to which the different locations could be in relative 

deprivation 

2.5.3. The following figures classify the various indices presented as deciles based on data across the 

whole of the England. Number 1 is considered the most deprived, while 32,482 is the least deprived; 

therefore 1 is presented as within the most deprived 10%, whereas 10 is in the least deprived 10% 

nationwide.  

2.5.4. Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) is a composite of many types of deprivation, including Income, 

Employment, Education Skills and Training, Health and Disability, Crime, Barriers to Housing and 

Services, and Living Environment. Figure 2-6 illustrates the rankings of the LSOAs within Ryedale 

District. 

Figure 2-6 – Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/40

Page 94



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 28 of 132 

2.5.5. Ryedale is one of the least deprived areas of North Yorkshire, with all LSOAs within the study area 

within the top 60% less deprived areas in the country, although proportions of the population in fuel 

poverty are significantly higher than the national average. This reflects the largely rural nature of the 

district, combined with relatively low wages and older housing stock. In addition, average wage 

levels are amongst the lowest in northern England and the housing affordability ratio is one of the 

highest in the north. The LSOA to the east of Malton lies within the top 10% least deprived 

neighbourhoods in the country. 

2.5.6. The IMD is designed to pull together different facets of deprivation, however, when carrying out 

small area analysis, it is often worth looking closely at what the domains, and even their 

subdomains, tell understand the various aspects of ‘deprivation’. 

Health Deprivation and Disability 

2.5.7. An important indicator when promoting active transport modes is that related to the level of health 

deprivation and disability in the area. Health Deprivation and Disability, with regards to the IMD, 

analyses those living in poor physical and mental health. Figure 2-7 shows that none of the LSOAs 

within the District are within the bottom most deprived decile. The LSOAs to the north of Malton lie 

within the top 50% most deprived LSOAs in England, and this area would therefore likely see the 

most benefit of walking and cycling interventions in regards to health. 

Figure 2-7 – Health Deprivation 

 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/41

Page 95



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 29 of 132 

Barriers to Housing and Services 

2.5.8. Barriers to housing and services looks at the affordability and availability of housing, and closeness 

of such housing to key services. The indicators fall in to two sub-domains: ‘geographical barriers’ 

and ‘wider barriers’. Geographical barriers relate to the physical proximity of local services 

measured by road distance to a post office, primary school, supermarket and GP surgery. Wider 

barriers include issues relating to the access to housing including household overcrowding, 

homelessness and housing affordability. 

Figure 2-8 – Barriers to Housing and Services 

 

2.5.9. The indicators used in generating this Domain invariably favour urban areas, which are usually 

characterised by improved access to a wider range of services. Figure 2-8 highlights the lower levels 

of deprivation in relation to this Domain within the town centre areas.  

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/42

Page 96



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 30 of 132 

Living Environments 

2.5.10. Living environments deprivation analyses the standards of people’s indoor and outdoor living 

environment. The specific measures which contribute to this index are the quality of housing, the 

local air quality and number/severity of road traffic collisions in the area. The indicators fall into two 

sub-domains: The ‘indoors’ and ‘outdoors’ living environment. The ‘indoors’ sub-domain measures 

the quality of housing based on whether a house has central heating and if it fails to meet the decent 

homes standard. The ‘outdoors’ sub-domain contains measures of air quality and road traffic 

incidents involving injury to pedestrians and cycle users. 

Figure 2-9 – Living Environments 

 

2.5.11. Figure 2-9 indicates significant disparity in the rankings across the district, and notably between 

Malton and Norton. The rural areas surrounding the LCWIP study area includes some of the most 

deprived areas, while the LSOAs to the south of Norton are amongst the 20% least deprived 

neighbourhoods in the country.   

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/43

Page 97



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 31 of 132 

 

  

LCWIP Implications 

— While the overall IMD rankings indicate that Malton & Norton have relatively low levels of 

deprivation, the more rural areas see high levels of deprivation, particularly in regard to 

living environments and health.  

— The LCWIP presents an opportunity to introduce physical measures that could contribute 

towards overcoming these issues, likely in conjunction with a wider package of 

interventions.  

— Some of the outlying rural villages within the LCWIP study areas are characterised by a 

greater level of barrier to housing and services—the LCWIP proposals could enhance 

access to local services for residents in these areas, increasing access to services along 

the desire line by active travel modes. 

— IMD and Domains of Deprivation mapping will be used to influence the prioritisation of 

routes in the LCWIP.  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/44

Page 98



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 32 of 132 

2.6 TRAVEL PATTERNS – JOURNEY TO WORK 

2.6.1. The journey to work patterns of Malton and Norton are based upon data collected as part of the 

2011 Census data. Table 2-4 sets out the journey to work patterns for residents which live within the 

MSOA of Malton and Norton, showing the broad areas, most commonly travelled to. 

Table 2-4 – Commuting destinations from Malton & Norton 

Location No. in Employment % of Total 

Malton and Norton 2,437 47% 

Ryedale District (excluding Malton 
and Norton) 

1,345 25.9% 

York 499 9.6% 

Scarborough 188 3.6% 

East Riding of Yorkshire 109 2.1% 

West Yorkshire 108 2.1% 

Other 499 9.6% 

Total 5,185 100%* 

*Due to rounding percentages illustrated may not total 100% 

2.6.2. The data shows that 73% of residents within Malton and Norton work within the Ryedale District, 

with almost half of those living and working in the two towns. The next highest proportions were 

travelling to York (9.6%) and Scarborough (3.6%).  

2.6.3. Table 2-5 shows where people are commuting to work from to the urban area of Malton and Norton. 

Table 2-5 – Workplace Destinations 

Place of Residence  Total Workers % of all workers 

Malton and Norton 2,437 42.8% 

Ryedale District (excluding Malton 
and Norton) 

1,575 27.8% 

Scarborough 411 7.8% 

York 378 6.6% 

East Riding of Yorkshire 239 4.2% 

Other 620 10.9% 

Total  5,690 100% 

2.6.4. This data shows that 70.5% of workers in Malton and Norton originate from the Ryedale District, with 

43.8% residing in the urban area itself. The remaining 29.5% travel from outside the District, 

predominantly from Scarborough and York. 

2.6.5. As such, there are approximately 2,400 resident workers in Malton and Norton, resulting in purely 

internal commuter trips. Just under 3,300 workers travel into the towns for employment from 

elsewhere in the Ryedale District and beyond, and approximately 2,750 travel out of Malton and 

Norton to other locations for work, resulting in a net gain of approximately 500 workers. In total there 

are just over 6,000 commuting trips in and out of the urban area. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/45

Page 99



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 33 of 132 

2.6.6. As a result of the net gain in workers, this reinforces the importance Malton and Norton play on the 

wider district, but therefore these trips also likely contribute the congestion and delays on the local 

road network.  

2.6.7. It is important to understand how those who purely undertake internal trips (i.e. live and work in 

Malton and Norton) travel to work, as these individuals live within a feasible active travel distance 

and could therefore be encouraged to travel on foot or by bike. Table 2-6 sets out the mode share 

for journeys to work.  

Table 2-6 – M&N Internal Journeys to Work: Modal Split 

Mode % of travellers 

Car (Driver or Passenger) 46.5% 

Train 0.2% 

Bus 0.6% 

Walk 40.0% 

Cycle 11.0% 

Other 1.7% 

2.6.8. The data shows that over half of these internal trips are taken by active modes (approximately 40% 

Walking and 11% Cycling); this is likely due to the compact size of the twin towns, which makes 

these trips feasible in terms of distance.  

2.6.9. A key statistic to take from this analysis is that over 45% of trips are made by car, despite the 

compact nature of the study area, and may not necessarily need to be undertaken by car.   

2.6.10. This relatively high level of car use for provides the opportunity to encourage long term behaviour 

change to more active modes of travel with the introduction of appropriate support interventions 

which could have a positive impact on the local highway network.  

 

  

LCWIP Implications 

— The proportion of internal commuting trips may demonstrate potential to further substitute 

walking or cycling for car trips within the towns. 

— Encouraging the 47% of car users who travel within the study area for work to switch to 

walking and cycling could have a positive impact on the local highway network and ease 

local congestion.  

— Engendering such modal shift will likely require a high quality and dense walking and 

cycling network with dedicated infrastructure.  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/46

Page 100



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 34 of 132 

2.7 EXISTING TRANSPORT NETWORKS: CYCLING AND WALKING 

2.7.1. This section of the report provides additional context about the existing walking and cycling facilities 

in the LCWIP study areas, allowing identification of areas and features with high-quality 

infrastructure and those areas with a deficit.  

2.7.2. Note that the section focusses more strongly on cycling and cycle users, as walking for any purpose 

is considerably more prevalent than cycling nationally. The needs of pedestrians have long been 

catered for through the provision of footways; while sometimes inadequate or substandard, the 

presence of a footway nevertheless facilitates some movement on foot. The needs of cycle users 

have been poorly understood until recently, and the lack of cycle-specific infrastructure has been 

identified as one of the key factors in supressing demand.  

DEFINING CYCLE USERS 

2.7.3. From the outset, it is important to recognise that the term ‘cycle users’ encompasses as a wide 

range of individuals who use their bikes for a variety of different reasons. These users have varying 

needs and expectations, not only regarding the infrastructure and facilities required, but also in 

terms of ‘soft’ measures such as information, publicity, safety and security.  

2.7.4. Table 2-7 displays the range of cycle users that are expected to benefit from the measures 

proposed in the Malton & Norton LCWIP; identification of user types helps to inform the 

development of the strategy in the consideration of all user types and recognises that users can 

change type during their lives.  

2.7.5. It is also important to note that non-users are specifically included in this list, as this group 

represents an important target audience in terms of the potential for a modal shift toward cycling. 

Furthermore, non-users are considered to require particular attention in terms of overcoming many 

of the traditional barriers to taking up cycling. 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/47

Page 101



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 35 of 132 

 Table 2-7 – Types of Cyclist 

Type Description 

Non-User Existing walkers / drivers / public transport users including the young, elderly, infirm and 
disabled – those who do not cycle at present 

Utility Education / healthcare / shopping trips – using bikes as means to an end 

Commuter Fixed locations workers / hub workers / multi-modal workers – using bikes as an alternative to 
walking, the car or public transport for all or part of a trip – using bikes to travel to work 

Leisure Active individuals / active couples / active families / active groups – using bikes for leisure 
pursuits 

Sporty Off-road enthusiasts / off-road informal / off-road groups & clubs / off-road commercial 
ventures / road enthusiasts / road groups & clubs – using bikes for sporting and/or health 
reasons, generally enthusiasts, participate in ‘challenges’ and ‘sportives’ – using bikes for 
sport / health 

Competitive Individuals / formal clubs – using bikes as part of a training regime for formal competition on 
and off-road (‘pinning a number on’) – using bikes for competition 

EXISTING CYCLING AND WALKING NETWORKS 

2.7.6. Figure 2-10 shows the existing cycling and walking network in the study area (excluding highway 

infrastructure). Note that this figure only shows Public Rights of Way (PROW) and designated 

Sustrans routes. RDC / NYCC do not hold any detailed GIS data relating to cycling infrastructure 

provision, although there is some limited existing infrastructure across the District, mainly consisting 

of shared use footways. 

Figure 2-10 - Cycle Network & PROW within the LCWIP Study Area 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/48

Page 102



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 36 of 132 

2.7.7. Malton and Norton experiences significant severance issues caused by the River Derwent and the 

York – Scarborough railway line, which has an impact on the number of footpaths and cycle ways 

crossing these features, having an effect on pedestrian and cycle connectivity. There are 

significantly more footpaths in Malton in comparison to Norton, which link the main town centre to 

surrounding villages such as Old Malton, Broughton and Swinton. 

2.7.8. National Cycle Network route 166 lies to the south of the town, providing connectivity between NCN 

route 164 from Pocklington to the NCN route 1 at Filey.  

2.7.9. The Malton & Norton Infrastructure and Connectivity Improvements Study (WSP, 2018) identified 

that while there is some provision of dropped kerbs and tactile paving to facilitate crossing at key 

junctions. However previous site visits conducted by WSP identified a lack of convenient and safe 

crossing facilities for all non-motorised users across the towns, particularly at the level crossing.  

PEDESTRIAN AND CYCLIST COLLISION DATA 

2.7.10. Collisions involving pedestrians and cycle users can be seen as a barrier to taking up or continuing 

the activity, as they have a negative effect on both perceived and actual safety. However, existing 

data on collisions only provide some additional context regarding barriers to active travel. A poor 

route or junction may supress demand to such an extent that the numbers of walkers or cyclists are 

negligible or non-existent. Furthermore, the data only records accidents that cause injury; there are 

no records of near-misses or damage-only accidents.     

2.7.11. Table 2-8 shows the total number of accidents involving pedestrians or cycle users within the 

LCWIP study area from 2013 to 2017 (note this is no. of accidents, rather than no. of casualties), as 

well as the severity breakdown. 

Table 2-8 – Malton & Norton Pedestrian & Cycle User Collisions 

Severity 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

  Cycle Walk Cycle Walk Cycle Walk Cycle Walk Cycle Walk 

Slight 5 5 4 9 6 8 2 1 3 6 

Serious 1 2 1 2 0 0 2 3 1 2 

Fatal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2.7.12. The data shows that over the six-year period there were no fatal collisions that involved a cycle user 

or pedestrian. The data shows that the fewest collisions occurred in 2018. Improving infrastructure 

within the study area could potentially contribute to reducing these accidents. 

2.7.13. The accident locations have been plotted in Figure 2-11 and Figure 2-12. The figure shows all 

collisions over the 5-year period between 2013 and 2017. The data shows that where accidents 

occur in close proximity, this is typically along arterial roads or at junctions where there is also a 

higher number of vulnerable road users, such as pedestrians crossing. 

 

 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/49

Page 103



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 37 of 132 

Figure 2-11 – Cycle User Collisions Location Plot (by Severity)  

 

2.7.14. The data shows all of the collisions that occurred over the 5-year period between 2013-2018 

involving at least one cycle user. The data shows that there is a small cluster of incidents on 

Commercial Street, a key route into residential and employment areas in Norton. There are other 

notable clusters of incidents at the level crossing and Butcher Corner; these routes are likely to be 

integral to delivering a successful cycle network in Malton and Norton.  

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/50

Page 104



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 38 of 132 

Figure 2-12 – Pedestrian User Collisions Location Plot (by Severity)  

 

2.7.15. The data shows that most incidents involving pedestrians occurred in the vicinity of the town centre / 

Market Place in Malton; the concentration of ODs indicates that this area is likely to experience 

higher footfall than most of the towns. There are also notable cluster sites at the level crossing, 

where there are limited pedestrian crossing facilities, and at Church Street / Mill Street, the local 

centre of Norton.   

WALKING AND CYCLING ISOCHRONES 

2.7.16. An active travel isochrone has been produced encompassing the LCWIP Study Area, identifying 

what extent of the District could reasonably be accessed by walking or cycling from a central point of 

interest.  

2.7.17. The isochrone uses the Market Place as a proxy central location in the area, highlighting the 

maximum desirable active travel distances to the main commercial centre. While more 

comprehensive isochrone mapping from various strategic locations will form a key part of developing 

the Walking Network Map, this isochrone is used to help determine the extent of the study area. 

2.7.18. The NPPF and other established guidance documents on access to services and facilities (for 

example, Guidelines for Providing for Journeys on Foot, CIHT 2000) recognise that, beyond a 

certain distance, it becomes increasingly unlikely that people will walk or cycle to access services 

and facilities, instead using public transport or private motor vehicles. The following criteria are used 

in generating walking and cycling isochrones, representing the maximum desirable walking and 

cycling distances as identified in these documents. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/51

Page 105



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 39 of 132 

Table 2-9 – Walking and Cycling Isochrone Criteria 

Mode 
Maximum Desirable 
Distance 

Walk 2km 

Cycle 5km 

2.7.19. The figure also shows a distance of 400m; this relates to the Core Walking Zones as specified in the 

DfT LCWIP guidance (as discussed in Appendix A).  

2.7.20. Note that the isochrone shows what extent of each LCWIP study area could be considered 

accessible by cycle or on foot based solely on distance (rather than the provision of infrastructure or 

hilliness, for example). 

2.7.21. Figure 2-13 presents the isochrone for the study area.  

Figure 2-13 – LCWIP Study Area Active Travel Isochrone 

 

The following points are noted in relation to Malton & Norton:  

 The central marketplace of Malton has been identified as a Core Walking Zone due to the 

number of significant destination points within a close proximity to each other. 

 The main town centre of Malton is captured within the maximum desirable walking distance. 

 The urban area of Malton and Norton lie within the maximum cycling distance. This also includes 

York Road Industrial Estate. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/52

Page 106



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 40 of 132 

 Additional outlying areas, such as Broughton, Swinton and Amotherby, represent potentially 

major key origins points. While the distance of such areas lessens the propensity to cycle, it has 

been considered prudent to include such outlying areas within the LCWIP study area.  

 

  

LCWIP Implications 

- The isochrone analysis shows the entire town centres of Malton and Norton and 

additional surrounding villages lie within the maximum desirable cycling distance.  

- The gradients within Malton and Norton are not seen as a barrier to the development of a 

stronger active travel culture. 

- There are opportunities to create links off the National Byway and NCN 166 to connect 

new and existing key employment and residential sites.  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/53

Page 107



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 41 of 132 

CYCLING ACTIVITIES AND INITIATIVES 

2.7.22. The geography, natural assets and tourist attractions in and around Ryedale make the District well-

situated for on and off-road leisure and competitive cycling. However, there is currently very little 

infrastructure in terms of protected space or cycle parking to promote local trips or new cycle users, 

particularly for utility or commuting purposes. 

Routes and Places to Ride 

2.7.23. Signed on-road routes in the area include: 

 Dalby Forest, a well-known mountain biking destination, with many walking and cycling routes 

available inside the North York Moors National Park; 

 The Yorkshire Wolds Circuit, a leisure cycling route including the East Riding and coming into 

Norton and Malton; 

 Part of the National Byway, a signed low-traffic cycling route which passes through Malton and 

Norton; and 

 Sustrans NCN Route 166 goes through the southern part of Norton, with routes 167, 65, 66 and 

164 within ten miles of the towns. 

Dalby Forest  

2.7.24. Dalby Forest is situated at the south of the North York Moors National Park, and attracts walkers, 

cyclists and outdoor adventurers. There are 70km of cycling trails through the forest with separate 

routes for non-experienced cyclists to experienced mountain-bikers. Within the forest, Dalby Cycle 

Hub and Dalby Bike Barn offer bike hires for both residents and tourists. 

2.7.25. The Dalby Forest Loop is a 23km circular bike route, through Dalby Forest via the villages of 

Lockton and Levisham. The route starts at Saltersgate car park on the A169 and follows mostly 

stone tracks and tarmac. The route is suitable for beginners and more experienced cycle users and 

takes approximately 2-2 ½ hours.  

North Yorkshire Moors National Park  

2.7.26. Malton and Norton are located approximately 10 miles from the North York Moors National Park. 

The National Park offers a range of cycle routes including family-friendly off-road rides, longer road 

rides and a 150-mile Moor to Sea network.  

2.7.27. The ‘explorer’ routes are circular routes geared at people with mountain bikes and hybrids, following 

forest and moorland tracks. Road routes offer the some of the National Park’s most outstanding 

scenery. The Moor to Sea cycle network covers around 150 miles through the centre of the National 

Park on quiet roads, woodland tracks and bridleways, and joins the Cinder Track between 

Scarborough and Whitby.  

Sustrans National Cycle Network 

2.7.28. There is limited provision for cyclists in the Malton and Norton urban area; the single formal route 

(shown in Figure 2-14 below) is the Sustrans ‘Yorkshire Wolds Cycle Route’ (NCN 166), which 

passes through the southern part of the Norton urban area. The 38-mile route connects the villages 

of Kirkham, which lies south west of Malton, and Hunmanby, to the east; however, it should be 

noted that the section of the route that passes through Norton has no formal infrastructure, such as 

cycle lanes. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/54

Page 108



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 42 of 132 

Figure 2-14 – Designated Cycle Routes in Malton & Norton 

 

2.7.29. There is also a lack of cycle provision on the main highway corridors in the area; this means that 

cycle users travelling through the main urban areas of the towns must make use of the main 

carriageway. The high volumes of traffic on these routes, levels of congestion in the towns, and the 

lack of cycle infrastructure may be acting as a deterrent to encouraging higher levels of cycling in 

the towns.  

ACCESS TO CYCLE OPPORTUNITIES 

2.7.30. There are three cycle shops and services located in Malton and Norton, and three nearby in 

Pickering and Dalby Forest; these are shown in Figure 2-15.  

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/55

Page 109



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 43 of 132 

Figure 2-15 – Cycle Shops and Services in Malton & Norton 

 

Malton Cycle Shops: 

 No Limits Cycling: an independent bike shop based in Malton, which offers a bike maintenance 

service, and maintenance courses; 

 Northern Ride: a local bike shop in Malton town centre, open 9:30-5pm every day excluding 

Sundays; and  

 R. Yates and Sons Ltd: a traditional department store situated on Railway Street, open Monday 

to Saturday 8am - 5pm and Sunday 10am to 4pm. 

Norton Cycle Shops: 

 Big Bear Bikes: based in Pickering, open from 9:30-5:30 every Tuesday – Sunday; 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/56

Page 110



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 44 of 132 

 Dalby Bike Barn: bicycle store in Thornton Dale Open every day 9:30-5:30 and until 7pm on a 

Monday; and 

 Dalby Forest Cycle Hub: located at the by the cycle trails within Dalby Forest, offers e-bike and 

push bicycle hire, popular with tourists. 

2.7.31. There are also three projects which work to make cycling available and inclusive: 

 Coast and Dale Yorkshire Bank Bike Library, allowing families to borrow or donate bikes, has a 

collection at Malton Community Primary School and at Big Bear Bikes in Pickering. The Yorkshire 

Bank Bike Libraries scheme was set up as a legacy of Tour de France in 2014, and aims to give 

every child in Yorkshire access to a bike. Since its inception the scheme has seen 46 libraries set 

up, with over 5,000 bikes donated and in excess of 40,000 opportunities for people in the county 

to cycle.  

 Scarborough and Ryedale Community Cycling brings both standard and adapted bikes or trikes 

to events in Ryedale. 

 Dalby Forest Cycle Hub (note approximately ten miles away) offers courses and bikes for hire, 

including mountain bikes; electric mountain bikes and adapted bikes and trikes. 

Cycle Training  

2.7.32. The Bikeability programme is a DfT-led initiative to provide training to on and off-road cycle users 

under the age of 16, with the aim of helping them develop better and safer cycling habits. The 

programme is available to all schools in the country and is provided in a series of three levels.   

2.7.33. Bikeability is delivered by North Yorkshire County Council in Ryedale as the Local Highway 

Authority. The DfT release statistics relating to topics such as funding and delivery; the latest 

Bikeability delivery statistics for the County are for 2006 to 20187, released in August 2018. These 

show NYCC were awarded £122,960 in funding in 2018, bidding for 3,371 places. NYCC delivered 

4,311 places throughout North Yorkshire during 2017/18, approximately 940 more than were bid for.  

2.7.34. Dalby Forest Cycle Hub also offers courses in mountain biking, including for those with disabilities. 

Cycling Clubs 

2.7.35. The Malton Wheelers Road club is the main cycling club in Malton and Norton. It is mainly a road 

cycling club which competes in time trials, road races and cyclo-cross. There is a 40-50-mile club 

ride every Sunday starting from the marketplace, with additional meetings on Tuesday and Thursday 

evenings. More information can be found at www.maltonwheelersrc.weebly.com.  

Cycling Events  

2.7.36. There are several events in the annual cycling calendar which take place near or in Malton and 

Norton: 

 Tour de Yorkshire, held annually since 2015. 

 

 

 

7 Bikeability Delivery statistics 2006-18 – Local Highway Authorities, https://bikeability.org.uk/publications/  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/57

Page 111

http://www.maltonwheelersrc.weebly.com/


 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 45 of 132 

 Ryedale Grand Prix, held annually since 2005, on three occasions has doubled as the National 

Championships in 2005, 2008 and 2012 

 Annual Yorkshire Wolds Challenge 

 Ryedale Rumble  

2.7.37. There are a number of rides listed in the surrounding area, especially in the East Riding. British 

Cycling promote Breeze8 rides aimed specifically at women, but none of these start from Malton or 

Norton at present. 

 

  

 

 

 

8 https://www.letsride.co.uk/breeze 

LCWIP Implications 

- Expand upon cycle share and hire initiatives for the benefit of those who currently do not 

have access to cycles   

- Capitalise on existing initiatives, events, infrastructure and club structures in an effort to 

increase cycle participation across the community; and 

- Tour de France and Tour de Yorkshire are particularly noted to have raised the cycling 

profile within the study area and present opportunities to engage a wider audience. 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/58

Page 112



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 46 of 132 

2.8 EXISTING TRANSPORT NETWORKS: ROAD, RAIL AND PUBLIC 

TRANSPORT 

INTRODUCTION 

2.8.1. WSP was commissioned in December 2017 by Ryedale District Council (RDC) and North Yorkshire 

County Council (NYCC) to undertake a study into potential options for improvements (both highway 

and non- highway) to infrastructure and facilities in Malton and Norton.  

2.8.2. This study was commissioned in anticipation of a forthcoming doubling in the frequency of train 

services from Malton Station; as noted earlier in this report, the towns are currently considered to 

suffer from significant congestion and poor connectivity between the two, which are primarily 

considered to be the result of the railway level crossing, limited crossing points over the river, and 

high traffic flows at the signalised crossroad junction of B1248/B1257, known locally as Butcher 

Corner. While likely to have many associated benefits, an increase in rail frequency will unavoidably 

result in additional delays at the level crossing, as well as increased demand for travel to and from 

the rail station. The aim of the study was to propose a package of interventions that would minimise 

the adverse impact of the increase in rail frequency, while also improving the existing situation. The 

study also considers the impact that poor connectivity and existing congestion may have on future 

long-term growth plans for the area. 

2.8.3. Preparing an LCWIP for the two towns was part of the final package of recommended measures, 

with an aim to produce a:  

 A detailed review of existing provision (including condition and use of facilities);  

 An outline strategy based on existing land use and facilities, and also taking account of planned 

land-use and infrastructure changes.  

 A strategy to identify priorities for measures; and 

 An implementation programme. 

2.8.4. Although the focus of the Malton and Norton LCWIP is first and foremost on providing the necessary 

infrastructure to create a high quality active travel environment, is also essential that such a network 

should engender modal shift, recognising the LCWIP’s role as part of a wider package of 

transportation measures and enabling journeys that were previously unattractive by walking and 

cycling. It is therefore important to understand and appreciate the current transport situation in the 

District, considering the synergies between the LCWIP and the various issues associated with other 

modes of travel.  

2.8.5. This section of the report summarises the content and findings of the Malton & Norton Infrastructure 

and Connectivity Improvements Study Options Assessment Report (WSP, 2018) in regards to this 

synergy, presenting the salient points from that document and highlighting the LCWIP’s role in a 

wider package of measures.  

HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC FLOWS 

2.8.6. The principal road through the area is the A64 which, as part of the Strategic Road Network, is 

managed by Highways England. The A64 connects Malton and Norton to York to the west and 

Scarborough to the east, bypassing Malton to the north of the town. A combination of agricultural 

vehicles, HGVs and seasonal holiday traffic (such as caravans) are considered to contribute to a 

significant degree of journey time unreliability on the A64. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/59

Page 113



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 47 of 132 

2.8.7. Accessibility between the two towns is considered to be effectively severed by both the railway line 

and the River Derwent, which run between them. There are two crossing points over the river, at 

Railway Street and County Bridge on the B1248 Castlegate, while the single level crossing provides 

just one route over the railway line, immediately south of County Bridge. These limited crossing 

points create bottlenecks for vehicular traffic and a barrier for pedestrians and cycle users, who have 

no alternative routes. A survey of traffic undertaken in January 2018 showed 10.4% of trips over the 

level crossing were pedestrians and 1.4% bicycles.  

2.8.8. Other roads of particular note in the area include: 

 B1257: Connecting Malton town centre, at Butcher Corner, with areas to the northwest (along 

Broughton Road) and northeast (along Old Malton Road), where it connects to the A64 and 

A169.  

 The B1257 Broughton Road has no direct access to the A64; vehicles using this route must travel 

into Malton and through the signal-controlled, congested Butcher Corner for onward travel to the 

A64. This section of the B1257 carries over 8,000 vehicles AADT, of which approximately 10% 

are HGVs. 

 B1257 Old Malton Road, to the east of Malton, connects to an all movements junction with the 

A64. This section of the B1257 has traffic flows in excess of 9,000 AADT, 11% of which are 

HGVs. 

 B1248: Providing the link between Malton and Norton town centres, the B1248 connects from the 

A64 at Musley Bank, to the west of Malton along York Road, through Malton town centre and 

Butcher Corner. The route crosses the River Derwent and railway line, via County Bridge and the 

level crossing respectively, and continues through Norton town centre where it branches east, 

along Scarborough Road to the A64 Brambling Fields junction, and southeast, along Beverley 

Road. 

 The B1248 junction with the A64, to the west of Malton at Musley Bank, provides an exit off the 

A64 (for eastbound traffic only) and an entry from the B1248 York Road (for westbound traffic 

only). The lack of an all-movements junction at this location is considered to encourage traffic to 

travel through the town centre, adding to congestion. This section of the B1248 carries around 

6,500 vehicles AADT (13% HGVs). 

 The B1248 Castlegate crosses the River Derwent, via County Bridge, and the level crossing over 

the railway line before continuing as Church Street. A change in junction priority was completed 

in December 2016.  2018 traffic count data shows an average two-way traffic flow of 

approximately 12,000 vehicles (5% HGVs) on the Castlegate section of the B1248 and 10,000 

AADT (9% HGVs) on the Church Street section. 

 The B1248 Scarborough Road, east of Norton, joins the A64 at the Brambling Fields junction, 

enabling onward travel on the A64 in both easterly and westerly directions. This section of the 

B1248 carries around 5,500 vehicles AADT including 12% HGVs. 

 The B1248 Beverley Road, south east of Norton, provides a link to the A166 which connects to 

Driffield. This section of the B1248 has an AADT of around 3,300 vehicles (13% HGVs). 

 Welham Road (C177) connects to the B1248, in Norton, at the Castlegate / Church Street 

junction; this now provides the priority alignment with Castlegate. Recent (2018) traffic count data 

shows an AADT of approximately 8,000 vehicles (8% HGVs). 

 Langton Road (C355) connects to Norton from the south, and carries approximately 700 vehicles 

AADT, of which 8.5% are HGVs. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/60

Page 114



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 48 of 132 

2.8.9. Traffic modelling work, undertaken as part of the development of the Ryedale District Council Local 

Plan, forecast that approximately 1,000 additional trips will be generated within the towns as a result 

of proposed housing and employment developments. 

PARKING 

2.8.10. Parking is acknowledged as a significant issue in Malton and Norton. There is considerable car 

parking provision in the towns which includes free and metered short and long stay car parks in 

addition to generally free, albeit time restricted, on-street parking in the town centres. There are 

three RDC managed car parks across the two towns, as well as a number of privately-operated car 

parks which are available for public use. The availability of parking, along with the comparatively low 

cost, is considered likely to be a contributory factor to the high levels of car use within the towns, 

particularly short internal trips that could potentially be undertaken by other more sustainable modes 

of transport. 

Figure 2-16 – Car Parks in Malton & Norton 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/61

Page 115



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 49 of 132 

PUBLIC TRANSPORT 

Rail 

2.8.11. Malton Railway Station, operated by TransPennine Express, is the only rail station in the Ryedale 

District with regular passenger services. Nearly all rail services operating on the York to 

Scarborough line call at Malton. The station is used by approximately 350,000 passengers a year, a 

figure that has increased by 20% in the last five years. 

2.8.12. The main rail route serving Malton Station is the First TransPennine Express Liverpool Lime Street 

to Scarborough service; passengers can then connect for onward travel to a range of destinations at 

both York and Leeds. There is currently one train per hour in each direction, which is expected to 

increase to two trains per hour from December 2019. 

2.8.13. Malton is a single platform station; this presents significant limitations, in terms of capacity, and is a 

major constraint to the wider Trans-Pennine route. The provision of a single platform means that 

services travelling in both directions must use the same line on the approaches to and through the 

station, with no existing way to operate services travelling in opposite directions concurrently. 

Waiting for services to exit the station can have a significant detrimental impact and compound any 

delays experienced. The single platform at Malton also impacts the accessibility of the station for rail 

users, particularly for residents of Norton and areas to the south of the station who currently have to 

cross the level crossing to access the station. 

2.8.14. The 2011 census showed that 1.9% of commuters from Malton and Norton travelled to work via 

train. This is higher than in other parts of Ryedale, but lower than the England average (5.8%) or 

North Yorkshire average (2.2%). 

2.8.15. Network Rail’s Long-Term Planning Process (LTPP) Strategy looks at the long-term capability of the 

rail network, for up to 30 years into the future. Contributing to the LTPP strategy, the ‘Network Rail 

Regional Urban Market Study’ which highlights that demand, on the Scarborough via Malton line into 

York, is already relatively high and that planned housing growth in the area may support the 

commuting markets into York and Leeds. In the context of North Cross-Pennine electrification, the 

continuation of through services to Leeds and beyond is important to stakeholders. Conditional 

output recommendations for this route, as set out in the LTPP Strategy, are to:  

 Increase capacity to meet demand through lengthening or increasing frequency in situations 

where frequency improvements are more affordable and demonstrate better value for money; 

and  

 Continue to provide direct connectivity to York, Leeds and beyond - this is especially important in 

the context of electrification of the North Cross-Pennine route. 

2.8.16. In terms of connections to Leeds, the Regional Urban Market Study highlights that the generalised 

journey time from Malton is in excess of 60 minutes, and that significant changes would need to be 

made for people to be more willing to commute to Leeds by rail (it should be noted that timetable 

service journey times are typically between 53 and 61 minutes). Therefore, specific conditional 

outputs to improve the frequency and journey times to Leeds have not been made as part of the 

Strategy. 

2.8.17. As part of the Franchise Agreement between First TransPennine Express Limited and the Secretary 

of State for Transport it is stated that the franchisee should maintain the Secure Station and Secure 

Car Park Accreditations at Malton Station. In addition, it states that there should be new secure 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/62

Page 116



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 50 of 132 

cycle parking spaces; First TransPennine Express has recently installed new cycle parking facilities 

(for approximately 50 bicycles) at Malton Station.  

2.8.18. Further to the above, there are a number of committed improvements to rail provision and services 

in Malton that also form part of the franchise agreements; this includes: 

 Increased service levels to two trains per hour; 

 Provision of earlier departure and later arrival services; 

 Improved rolling stock and on-board facilities, e.g. free Wi-Fi, charging sockets, catering and 

luggage space; and  

 Increased passenger capacity on services, with more carriages and more seats. 

2.8.19. Planned improvements on the York to Leeds line are also expected to reduce journey times 

between Malton and Leeds. The current journey times to York are around 25 minutes. Fares to both 

York and Leeds are generally around £11.40 and £24.90 for an off-peak day return9. The median 

average income for a fulltime worker in Ryedale in 2017 was £23,095, making a rail journey of £25 

equivalent to more than two hours of work (gross), at £12/hour approximate gross hourly wage. 

2.8.20. In terms of multi-modal trips, car and cycle parking is available at the station, there is a taxi rank at 

the station entrance and the Coastliner Bus Station is located directly opposite, on Railway Street, 

although there are reported issues around integration of timetables for trains and buses. 

Bus 

2.8.21. Bus mode share, for all commuting trips undertaken by residents of the Malton and Norton urban 

area regardless of destination, is 2.3%. This is substantially lower than the regional and national 

averages of 3.6% and 8.5%. However, where people are employed locally, 51% of journeys are by 

foot or bicycle. 

2.8.22. Bus provision in the area consists of a mixture of local infrequent services, operating in loops of the 

towns in the region, as well as longer distance services connecting with destinations including 

Leeds, York, Whitby and Scarborough. Figure 2-17 shows the strategic bus network that connects 

into the Malton and Norton urban area10.  

  

 

 

 

9 Prices taken from TheTrainline.com and correct as of 28/01/2020. 

10 Source: http://getdown.org.uk/bus/maps/wolds.pdf 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/63

Page 117



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 51 of 132 

Figure 2-17 – Malton & Norton Strategic Bus Network 

 

2.8.23. Services in Malton and Norton are primarily provided by three operators: 

 Transdev / Coastliner services connect the towns with York and Leeds, to the west, and Whitby, 

Filey and Scarborough, to the east; 

 NYCC Fleet operate infrequent services to settlements in close proximity to Malton in addition to 

a town centre service; and 

 Ryedale Community Transport operate local bus services, some of which operate from Malton, 

including circular services around Malton generally starting and finishing at Newgate. All services 

operated by Ryedale Community Transport are wheelchair accessible. 

2.8.24. The East Coastliner 840 and 845 to York or to the coast provider longer distance services, stopping 

hourly in Malton. Other services (that are not school services) include:  

 194: 2-hourly service daily Mon-Saturday from Hovington to Malton, operated by Transdev; 

 193: running between Malton and Norton and to local stops Monday to Saturday every 40-60 

minutes from 9am, operated by NYCC Fleet; 

 190: running between Malton, Norton and Foxholes three times a day, Monday to Saturday, 

NYCC Fleet; 

 181: Malton to York, four times per day between 9am and 5pm, Monday to Saturday, Transdev; 

 Other services are operated by Ryedale Community Transport; 

 187: From Malton and Norton to Yedingham, twice on Tuesdays;  

 184-185: Malton to Barton-le-Willows and Firby, once or twice on Tuesdays;  

 182: Malton to Foston, once on Thursdays and Saturdays;  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/64

Page 118



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 52 of 132 

 176: Malton to Kirkbymoorside, once on Wednesdays and Saturdays; and  

 175: Malton to Pickering, once on Mondays and Fridays. 

2.8.25. NYCC administers senior and disabled persons’ bus pass schemes, and coordinates transport for 

the district. 

2.8.26. Many of the bus services operate limited timetables that are not conducive to commuting by bus, 

with local villages served a few times per week outside of commuting times. Bus / cycle integration 

is also less common than the rail equivalent, with bus services typically accessible from more 

locations and bicycles generally prohibited from buses themselves. There has been some effort to  

2.8.27. Ryedale Community Transport is a volunteer-supported charitable service, providing transport 

opportunities for communities and individuals in need. The group offers:  

 Provide volunteer drivers to people who can no longer use their own cars,  

 Offer outings to groups using their minibus, and  

 Loan mopeds to those who are struggling to get to work, training or education (the Wheels-to-

Work scheme).  

 Run a ring-to-ride service in Malton and Norton.  

 

  

LCWIP Implications 

— There is an opportunity to expand upon cycle-share and hire initiatives for the benefit of 

those who currently do not have access to cycles.   

— Opportunity to capitalise on existing initiatives, events, infrastructure and club structures 

in an effort to increase cycle participation across the community.  

— The anticipated increases in rail services through Malton will likely increase patronage, 

presenting an opportunity to influence travel to and from the stations.  

— Any associated improvements to the rail station could also incorporate additional 

enhancements to the walking and cycling network, potentially including a southern access 

point and/or associated infrastructure (such as parking.  

— Access to bus stops and stations could also be enhanced through the LCWIP process, 

likely focussing on improvements to the walking network in regards to busses.  

— Despite potential deliverability challenges, the need for such infrastructure presents an 

opportunity to provide genuine high-quality pedestrian and cycling infrastructure that can 

be an exemplar for best practice across North Yorkshire and the wider country.  

— Relatedly, given the constrained nature and built up urban areas, it may be necessary to 

also consider traffic movements and wider highways schemes in conjunction with walking 

and cycling interventions.   

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/65

Page 119



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 53 of 132 

2.9 EXISTING ORIGINS AND DESTINATIONS 

2.9.1. The development of an LCWIP relies on a detailed understanding of the key origins and destinations 

(ODs) in each study area, identifying where individuals currently move to and from. A desktop study 

of key origins and destinations was therefore carried out in order to identify the existing locations 

within the LCWIP study area that are most likely to benefit from additional pedestrian and cycle 

access and connectivity.  

ORIGINS  

2.9.2. To identify significant residential (origin) areas, proxy nodes were plotted using a GIS, based on 

2011 Census data available from the Office for National Statistics (ONS). Population weighted 

centroids for Census Output Areas (OA) were mapped, showing where the population is greatest 

within the OA boundaries, and thereby indicating the urban areas with the greatest potential for trips. 

These nodes were reviewed, using an Ordnance Survey (OS) basemap as a reference, and 

manually adjusted where necessary to ensure that they were located over urban areas to represent 

realistic trip origins. Additional points were added where required in order to ensure all urban 

residential areas were adequately represented.  

DESTINATIONS 

2.9.3. Key destinations were identified across each of the LCWIP study areas in order to determine where 

people are travelling to on a regular basis. These sites were identified through analysis of available 

spatial data, desktop and site surveys, and stakeholder engagement. Key destinations include the 

following location types:  

 Employment Sites;   

 Parks and Open Spaces; 

 Sport and Leisure Facilities;  

 Healthcare Facilities;  

 Grocery / Shopping Facilities;  

 Tourist Attractions and Points of Interest; and 

 Schools and Further Education Establishments. 

2.9.4. Malton and Norton is the largest urban area in the Ryedale District, and as such features 

significantly more ODs within the town centre than in the surrounding areas. Table 2-10 presents a 

list of the key identified destinations (note this list is not intended to be exhaustive), while the 

accompanying spatial plots are shown in Figure 2-18.  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/66

Page 120



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 54 of 132 

Table 2-10 – Key Destinations 

Type Destination 

Employment Sites York Road Industrial Estate, Norton Grove Industrial Estate, Showfield Lane Industrial Estate 

Primary and 
Secondary Schools 

Norton Community Primary School, Norton College, Malton School, Malton Community Primary School, St 
Marys RC Primary School 

Retail Sites Newbiggin / Market Place / Town Centre area, Wheelgate, Yorkersgate, Commercial Street. 

Supermarkets Asda Malton Supermarket, Morrisons Malton, Lidl Norton 

Leisure Uses 
Malton Community Sports Centre, Malton Railway Sports & Social Club, Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre, 
Malton & Norton Rugby Club, Malton & Old Norton Cricket Club 

Healthcare Malton Community Hospital, Derwent Practice, Derwent Surgery 

Transport Hubs Malton Railway Station, Malton Bus Station 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/67

P
age 121



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 55 of 132 

Figure 2-18 – Existing Origin-Destination Plots 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/68

P
age 122



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 56 of 132 

2.10 FUTURE SITUATION 

PLANNED AND ASPIRATIONAL DEVELOPMENT GROWTH 

2.10.1. Planned and aspirational growth is an important consideration when implementing new cycling and 

walking infrastructure. New developments may become significant origins and destinations due to 

size, capacity or influence and therefore links to the cycle and walking networks would be 

necessary. This section of the report therefore considers planned and aspirational growth in the 

District, focussing on that occurring within a desirable walking and cycling distance from Malton and 

Norton and highlighting proposed locations of significant development including new housing, 

employment and retail space.    

ASPIRATIONAL GROWTH 

2.10.2. Ryedale District Council’s growth aspirations for the District and, more specifically, Malton and 

Norton, are set out in the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy (LPS), adopted in 2013. Since then, RDC 

have prepared a Local Plan Sites Document (LPSD) which allocates specific sites for development 

in order to ensure the growth aspirations for the District are met in a sustainable and controlled 

manner. This emerging document also takes into account the development that has occurred since 

the adoption of the LPS.     

2.10.3. The LPS sets out an aspiration which seeks to provide 200 new houses per year as a minimum 

(equating to at least 3,000 new dwellings over the Plan Period to 2027); approximately 50% of this 

residential development was expected to be provided in the Malton and Norton area. 

2.10.4. However, the LPSD identifies that completed and committed housing development accounts for a 

large proportion of the growth target set out in the LPS, and therefore only allocates two housing 

sites in Malton and Norton:  

 Land to the east of Beverley Road (24.29ha, 600 dwellings); and 

 Land at Old Maltongate (Ryedale House Site) (1.44ha, 60 dwellings) 

2.10.5. Given its strategic size and potential impact in relation to the towns, the Land to the East of Beverly 

Road site is discussed in more detail below.  

2.10.6. Policy SP6 of the LPS provides for the identification of up to 45 hectares of land for employment 

purposes. The policy commits to the allocation of two tranches of employment land: an initial 37 

hectares, followed by a further 8 hectares to be released if this is required over the Plan Period. 

Approximately 80% of the employment land allocations would be located within the LCWIP study 

area. The LPSD identifies that a significant proportion of the initial 37ha has already been 

completed, is under construction, or is committed since the adoption of the LPS.  

2.10.7. However, the LPSD notes that the completions accounted for results in a small shortfall against the 

approximate distribution figures for Malton and Norton. Rather than make additional allocations in 

the LPS, the document states that land in the vicinity of the Malton Agri-Business Park at the 

A64/A169 junction is promoted as a broad location for further employment land releases to meet 

identified requirements, if they are needed within the Plan Period. 

2.10.8. The planned growth in the area up to 2027 is likely to result in significant increases to worker and 

resident populations within the urban areas of Malton and Norton. As a result, mitigation measures 

are likely to required, including the creation of new cycling and walking infrastructure to help support 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/69

Page 123



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 57 of 132 

future travel demands. These opportunities could also support the vision for public realm 

improvements within the historic town centre. 

COMMITTED AND RECENT DEVELOPMENT 

2.10.9. Over the last 5 years, Ryedale District Council has determined over 60 planning applications for 

large scale employment and housing developments. This has included an application for 260 

houses to the North East of Broughton Road, with associated landscape improvements. Additional 

housing developments included an application for 180 houses at Scarborough Road, Norton and 90 

houses at Cheesecake Farm, Norton. 

2.10.10. As identified above, a significant proportion of the employment sites allocated for Malton and Norton 

in the LPS have already been completed, are under construction, or are committed, including the 

following sites:  

 York Road Industrial Estate, Malton (6.8ha) B1, B2, B8 uses;  

 Land at Norton Grove, Norton (0.78ha) B1, B2, B8 uses;  

 Agri-Business Park and Business Technology Park, Eden House Road, Malton (17.8ha) B1, B2, 

B8 uses; and 

 Land to the west of Kirkby Mills Road, Kirkbymoorside (0.49ha) B1, B2, B8 uses 

2.10.11. While the LPSD recognises that there is currently a shortfall of 900sqm in new non-food retailing 

space in Malton and Norton, the document does not allocate new sites, instead affirming an intent to 

work with landowners and Land East of Beverley Road.  

Land East of Beverly Road, Norton 

2.10.12. The Land East of Beverley Road, Norton site is expected to cover an area of 24.29 (Ha) with an 

indicative yield of 600 houses (including 540 delivered in the Plan Period). This allocation is 

expected to contribute to the delivery of significant associated infrastructure improvements and to 

provide a choice and mix of new homes.   

2.10.13. As outlined in the LPSD, the detailed proposals for the development of the site will include the 

identification of circa 2ha of land for a new primary school and a Neighbourhood Area for Play 

(NEAP). The school, NEAP and site access points will be connected by pedestrian and cycle routes 

in and through the development site. 

2.10.14. To support this new development, a number of network changes are considered to be required to 

mitigate the associated transport impacts; these are listed below: 

 A new road linking Beverley Road to Hugden Way and associated access which will help mitigate 

traffic on the local road network through Norton and neighbouring Malton;  

 Implementation of a MOVA system at the junction with Scarborough Road and Westfield Way;  

 A substantive landscape, visual and noise attenuation buffer between the housing development 

and the Malton Bacon Factory;  

 Integrated site and boundary landscaping to include landscape areas for play and fitness and to 

soften the visual impact of the scheme;  

 Well defined hierarchy of streets and spaces;  

 Maximise opportunities for green infrastructure, including 3 phase Sustainable Drainage 

Systems; 

 Capability for electric vehicle charging through the provision of a 13 AMP electrical socket; and 

 Lighting scheme to minimise glare, reduce energy usage, and protect amenity. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/70

Page 124



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 58 of 132 

Malton Agricultural Business Park 

2.10.15. The land located North of Malton at Edenhouse Road has been identified as a suitable site for 

development for the Malton Agricultural Business Park, which is to include a business park, 

agricultural business park and a new purpose-built livestock market.  

2.10.16. The existing livestock market currently operates in the centre of Malton, and is a key element of the 

town’s economic infrastructure; however, the site has no tenure security due to the landlord’s 

aspirations to redevelop the site for retail use.  

2.10.17. The current location of the market has numerous transport constraints, including poor access for 

large vehicles with trailers and HGVs, which can lead to serious congestion on the associated 

access roads. As a result of these constraints, the livestock market has seen a decline in the 

number of farmers and visitors over recent years. Combined with continuous congestion and the 

obstruction of HGVs on the narrow streets within Malton, the site is considered to contribute toward 

a less desirable environment for walkers and cycle users in the vicinity.  

2.10.18. The development of the new livestock market is anticipated to free up the existing site for 

development and support the strengthening and expansion of the town centre. The 30 acres 

identified for bespoke industrial and commercial development is expected to create additional jobs 

and safeguard jobs of those directly employed by the agriculture sector. In Ryedale, 28% of 

enterprises sit within the Agriculture, Forestry, and Fishing industries; this is approximately 7 times 

higher than the national average, reflecting the importance of the development to the local economy.  

2.10.19. The scheme began to be delivered in 2015/2016 with the development of a new roundabout at the 

A169 / Edenhouse Road junction and the initial phase of construction, while the entire development 

is expected to be completed in 2025. 

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OD MAP 

2.10.20. The committed and allocated growth sites are identified in Figure 2-19. These sites are added to the 

Existing OD map to create the final Existing & Future OD Map used in the identification of desire 

lines.  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/71

Page 125



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 59 of 132 

Figure 2-19 – Committed & Aspirational Growth Sites 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/72

P
age 126



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 60 of 132 

GROWTH OUTSIDE THE STUDY AREA 

2.10.21. While the growth within the LCWIP study area is of primary concern when developing the Walking 

and Cycling Network Maps, the wider growth aspirations in the District, and in neighbouring areas 

such as Scarborough, York, the East Riding of Yorkshire, and Hambleton District could have an 

impact on transport in Malton and Norton. The Malton & Norton Infrastructure Connectivity Study 

(WSP, 2018) considered this impact and found the following key points:  

2.10.22. The level of development proposed across Malton and Norton, (employment, retail and housing) will 

place significant additional demand on an already constrained local network. The impact of this 

growth, on the network, could potentially deter further inward investment and diversification of the 

economy that is considered critical to ensuring the economic resilience of the district. 

2.10.23. More than half of workers employed in Malton and Norton travel from areas outside of the towns 

while, similarly, more than half of residents travel outside of the towns to access employment. This 

means that housing and employment allocations elsewhere, both within and outside of the Ryedale 

district, will have a direct impact on Malton and Norton’s transport network, over and above the 

impact from development based in these towns. 

2.10.24. The Local Plan Strategy highlights acute traffic congestion within the towns, which detracts from 

their appearance and attractiveness; additional planned growth, without adequate mitigation, will 

exacerbate this further. It is recognised in the Local Plan Strategy that a package of transport 

improvement measures will be required in order to release additional capacity, manage congestion, 

and improve air quality and safety to mitigate the additional growth. However, it should be noted that 

the measures identified to facilitate Local Plan growth are intended to ensure that traffic conditions 

do not worsen from their current state and not to improve upon current conditions 

2.10.25. While the LCWIP is likely to have a limited impact on those trips to and from further afield, the 

LCWIP could complement various other measures to help encourage multi-modal journeys by train 

or bus and bike / on foot, as well as limiting the number of short local trips undertaken by car and 

providing capacity where most necessary. It is therefore important to ensure that the Malton & 

Norton LCWIP is considered and delivered alongside a package of measures in order to ensure the 

greatest possible impact.  

KEY GROWTH FACTORS 

2.10.26. The Malton & Norton Infrastructure Connectivity Study (WSP, 2018) identified 3 key areas of growth 

that could have significant implications on the transport network of Ryedale (and Malton & Norton), 

encompassing:  

 High Value Sectors;  

 Visitor and Tourist Economy; and   

 Freight.  

2.10.27. Business growth, particularly of high value sectors, is a key objective for RDC and essential in 

ensuring an economy that is diverse and resilient. Continued overdependence on low value sectors 

leaves the local economy vulnerable during times of national and global downturns and makes 

housing unaffordable. 

2.10.28. RDC recognises that in order to maximise Ryedale’s economic potential there is a need to plan, not 

only for the expansion of existing businesses, but also to attract the inward investment required to 

generate new, high value jobs. It is considered that transport connectivity is key to achieving this. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/73

Page 127



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 61 of 132 

2.10.29. RDC aspires for significant growth in Malton and Norton, as the Principal Town for the District. 

Existing traffic and congestion are considered to be a threat to this aspiration, while the removal of 

traffic from the town centres would also help to improve the aesthetics and quality of the public 

realm in order to promote growth. 

2.10.30. Growth of the tourism offer in Malton and Norton is a key target for RDC; if the attractiveness of the 

area for investment is to be maximised, and targeted growth achieved in a sustainable manner, it 

will be necessary to address issues of congestion and delay in the towns. 

2.10.31. It is recognised that the District’s infrastructure (including transport) helps to reinforce and shape the 

distinctiveness of the area and make it an easy place to visit. If the number of residents, workers 

and visitors in the area is to increase, without complementary infrastructure improvements designed 

to facilitate this growth, there will be additional stress experienced on the transport network.  This 

will result in the exacerbation of adverse impacts relating to traffic congestion, currently being 

experienced in Malton and Norton, negatively impacting the attractiveness of the area. 

2.10.32. With aspirations of economic growth across the north, and the identification of logistics as a key 

enabler to unlocking this, freight movements on the A64 are likely to increase as east-west 

connections become more viable. New freight movements through the towns themselves, 

associated with the delivery of planned development, will also need to be managed effectively 

 

  

LCWIP Implications 

- The level of new development within the urban area of Malton and Norton will place 

significant additional demand on the transport network. 

- It is likely the heavily trafficked roads and associated congestion discourages walking 

and cycling.  

- RDC have an overarching vision to improve the local transport infrastructure and make 

public realm improvements, which can be supported and enabled by the LCWIP. 

- Out of town developments such as the new agricultural business park can potentially 

draw away traffic from the town centre area and relieve congestion, while 

complementary measures facilitated by the LCWIP could create a better environment to 

encourage walking and cycling. 

- New development sites provide an opportunity to incorporate high-quality active travel 

networks within the development, promoting travel by the modes for new employees / 

residents.  

- Such sites can also contribute to off-site highways improvements to help create a 

cohesive active travel network in the town centre area. 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/74

Page 128



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 62 of 132 

2.11 TRANSPORT SCHEMES AND INITIATIVES 

2.11.1. The Malton & Norton LCWIP must also consider long term changes to the local transport system as 

outlined in relevant policy and strategy documents, as well as any aspirational schemes identified 

through stakeholder engagement, and consider the implications of such changes for walking and 

cycling in the study area, identifying any potential opportunities or threats to the LCWIP.  

2.11.2. Ryedale is characterised by low levels of public transport provision, with most settlements having 

very limited public transport connections or no connections at all. This creates a reliance on privately 

owned cars in order to access, jobs and local services in Malton and Norton.  

CHANGES TO THE TRANSPORT SYSTEMS 

Highway Schemes 

2.11.3. NYCC’s LTP4 sets out a range of strategic transport priorities for the period 2016 to 2045. These 

priorities include the need to improve east-west connectivity, in line with TfN and LEP aspirations, as 

well as enhancing reliability of the transport network. 

2.11.4. LTP4 identifies the A64 as one of two primary east-west corridor routes in North Yorkshire that 

currently experience poor journey times and reliability and, as such, prioritises the route for 

improvements during the LTP4 period. This includes: 

 Supporting the upgrade of the A64 to dual carriageway standard between the Hopgrove 

Roundabout (in York) and Malton; and 

 Supporting the introduction of selective overtaking lanes and 2+1 running on the A64 between 

Malton and Scarborough. 

2.11.5. As the A64 is part of the Strategic Road Network (SRN), Highways England have proposed a 

scheme for the Hopgrove Roundabout with associated dualling of the A64, estimated to cost up to 

£250m. The scheme aims to address the delays that are often encountered at the roundabout, 

which are primarily considered to be as a result of a lack of capacity and safety issues. This scheme 

is identified for inclusion in the second Highways England Roads Investment Strategy (RIS2). 

2.11.6. It should be noted that Highways England is currently working to achieve a target to deliver 150 

cycling schemes by the end of Road Investment Period 1 (2015-2020), and 200 cycling schemes by 

2020/21 after the government set up a £100 million dedicated fund for cycling in its Road Investment 

Strategy (RIS). This £100 million fund forms part of the £250 million designated fund for Cycling, 

Safety and Integration. Any scheme relating to the A64 in the vicinity of Malton and Norton should 

take into consideration how this could help deliver walking and cycling improvements in the area.  

2.11.7. The YNYER Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) sets out that proposals for improvements to the section 

of the A64 in the vicinity of Malton and Norton are being developed by a consortium of local 

authorities (North Yorkshire County Council, City of York Council, Ryedale District Council, and 

Scarborough Borough Council) in conjunction with Highways England. The YNYER SEP states that 

the LEP is seeking approximately £50m of funding in order to provide additional sections of dual 

carriageway on the A64, to the east of the Hopgrove Roundabout. 

2.11.8. The LEP is also seeking to identify revenue funding to allow for investigation and detailed design of 

longer-term transport improvement schemes. It is intending to use this funding to investigate 

potential village bypasses for settlements to the east of Malton, such as Rillington and Sherburn, 

with a view to accessing funding opportunities post 2020/21 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/75

Page 129



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 63 of 132 

2.11.9. The RDC LPS states that further improvements to physical transport infrastructure are critical and 

necessary to support delivery of the Strategy. For Malton and Norton this includes: 

 An additional Slip Road at Brambling Fields junction on the A64 at Norton (now completed); 

 A package of complementary town centre measures, in Malton and Norton, to ensure proper 

operation of Brambling Fields improvement; 

 A package of internal junction improvements in Malton and Norton; 

 Improvements to Malton’s bus and rail interchange; and 

 An improved cycle network and pedestrian facilities (including public realm improvements). 

2.11.10. The LPS states that the Council will also support the provision of transport infrastructure and 

services, such as new road junctions, improvements to public transport services and facilities for 

active modes where there is a net environmental benefit to the District.  

Growth Sites and Associated Infrastructure  

2.11.11. The RDC LPSD sets out proposed new housing and employment sites, as well as identifying the 

infrastructure required in order for this development to be delivered without significant impact on the 

local network. 

2.11.12. A summary of the transport implications and proposed mitigation and network changes that will be 

required include: 

 Land to the east of Beverley Road, Norton (c600 dwellings): The Norton Lodge site will provide a 

link road between Scarborough Road and Beverley Road (Hugden Way Link), which is 

considered to be necessary in order to deliver the site, as well as being a significant strategic 

transport improvement for the Principal Town. Whilst the road is not a bypass, when considering 

the location of the site which enables access using the Brambling Fields A64 junction, the road 

could help to mitigate the impact of traffic on the local road network through Norton and 

neighbouring Malton. It is also recommended that the site development should include 

implementation of a MOVA system at the signalised junction with Scarborough Road and 

Westfield Way in order to optimise its operation. 

 Land to the West of Old Maltongate (c60 dwellings): It is considered that redevelopment of the 

Ryedale House site would support additional residential development in the town without 

significant net increases in traffic, given that the site is in existing use as offices. As part of the 

site allocation it is proposed that capability for electric vehicle charging for each property is 

provided. 

Public Transport 

2.11.13. RDC’s Local Plan Strategy states that “Ryedale is unlikely to experience a significant expansion of 

public transport services across the District and, as a consequence, the private car is likely to 

remain a key element of transport provision in Ryedale and consequent investment in road 

infrastructure may be required.” 

2.11.14. In this regard, the Strategy highlights a need to ensure that new development is located in areas that 

will increase opportunities to improve access to jobs, shops and services by modes other than the 

private car, and to ensure that those without access to private car do not become isolated. The 

Strategy also notes that congestion needs to be addressed in order to improve safety and air quality, 

as well as the general environment for pedestrians, through road transport improvements, traffic 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/76

Page 130



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 64 of 132 

management measures, and by ensuring that new development is located in areas that are 

accessible by public transport, and active modes. 

2.11.15. Improvements to the Scarborough to York Railway Line are highlighted as a priority in the NYCC 

LTP4, with the aim of ensuring that at least 85% of the County’s population are within a 40-minute 

journey time (by road or rail) of an HS2 gateway at York, Leeds or Darlington. Arriva Rail North are 

expected to introduce an hourly service throughout most of the day from December 2019; this will 

double the existing service provision and result in a twice hourly service in each direction between 

Scarborough and York, significantly increasing accessibility from Malton & Norton by rail.  

2.11.16. In May 2018, First TransPennine Express introduced an earlier service between Scarborough and 

York (to arrive in York before 7am and London by 9am), in addition to later evening trains during the 

week and increased frequency of services at weekends.  

2.11.17. These changes are also expected to provide improvements in journey times and infrastructure, 

including: 

 By 2020 journey times between Malton and London will be around 130 minutes (including change 

of train); currently around 160 minutes.  

 By 2023 journey times between Malton and Leeds will be around 40 minutes, and Malton to 

Manchester 80 minutes; currently in excess of 50 minutes and 100 minutes respectively.  

 By 2033 journey times between Malton and London will be around 110 minutes, and Malton to 

Birmingham approximately 90 minutes, including a change of trains;  

 currently Malton to Birmingham journey times are around 180 minutes. Additional improvements 

to Malton Station, and the calling services, are proposed as part of the First TransPennine 

Express franchise and include:  

 Improved rolling stock and on-board facilities, e.g. free Wi-Fi, charging sockets, catering and 

luggage space;  

 Increased passenger capacity on services – more carriages and more seats on services through 

Malton (148% increase in seating capacity by May 2020);  

 Free station Wi-Fi;  

 New ticket machines;  

 Improved secure cycle facilities;  

 Secure Stations status; and  

 Secure Car Park Accreditation.  

2.11.18. However, this planned increase in railway operations and service frequencies will result in additional 

closures of the level crossing, with associated impacts on traffic flows. The level crossing barriers 

are currently down for in excess of five minutes in each hour; the doubling of services has the 

potential to effectively double the amount of time the crossing is down, and so it could be reasonably 

assumed that the level crossing is likely to be down for in the region of ten minutes in every hour. 

Committed Transport Schemes  

2.11.19. Despite significant work having been undertaken previously in order to identify the key issues and 

areas of concern within the study area there are currently no committed transport schemes 

identified, over and above the proposed rail service improvements at Malton.  

2.11.20. However, it should be noted that an experimental 7.5t Heavy Commercial Vehicle restriction over 

Norton Level Crossing was implemented in February 2018; a restriction of this type was proposed 

as part of the Brambling Fields Complementary Measures.  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/77

Page 131



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 65 of 132 

The Ryedale Cycle Forum 

2.11.21. The Ryedale Cycle Forum was initially founded in 2013; the forum is supported by RDC and 

promotes cycling events, routes and safer cycling across the District. The Forum is attended by 

several key partners and stakeholders as well as local cyclists. Its overall aim is to encourage more 

people of all ages and abilities to cycle more often across the District whether they are residents or 

visitors.  

2.11.22. The forum seeks to develop cycling in Malton and Norton and looks to increase the number of 

routes between communities. Their main goal is to develop cycle routes through Ryedale as part of 

the Sustrans National Cycle Network, and link together villages and market towns. 

2.11.23. To date the forum has promoted a number of potential routes and cycleways within the District, 

noting the limitations of the current provision within Malton and Norton. Those routes of relevance to 

the Malton & Norton LCWIP are: 

 Malton - Kirby Misperton (as the first stage of the Malton Pickering route): this route would 

provide a safer cycling route north from Malton town centre to Eden Camp and the new 

development of Eden Business Park and Food Enterprise Zone; 

 York Road Industrial Estate – Huttons Ambo Lane end: this includes a 0.5-mile section of 2 way, 

off road segregated cycle path alongside the A64 at Musley Bank, which would link the Huttons 

Ambo turn off with York Road. This would particularly benefit recreational cyclists travelling 

between York and Malton and commuters travelling to York Industrial Estate from outlying 

villages; 

 Malton – Amotherby: This includes provision of a pedestrian/cycle crossing across Pasture Lane, 

extending onto Broughton Road, which would serve the villages of Broughton, Swinton and 

Amotherby;  

 Norton – Rillington: the route between Brambling Fields and Rillington has been identified for 

improvement. The forum has suggested the track is too narrow, there is poor signage provision, 

and part of the route has been deemed unsafe for active travel users and requires segregation 

from traffic; and 

 Norton – Malton – Old Malton: There is an existing right of way between Sheepfoot Hill at the fire 

station to Old Malton Road, this route would pass through Orchard Fields and would give an 

alternative route to the congested Castlegate.  

Sustrans Malton to Pickering Cycle Route Proposal 

2.11.24. A safe and attractive cycle route between Malton and Pickering is a long-standing aspiration of the 

local communities. In 2017 Sustrans developed a proposal to create a new cycle route between the 

two market towns which would include a connection to the existing Yorkshire Wolds Cycle Route 

(NCN 166). This scheme was driven by an objective to make Malton the hub of sustainable cycle 

tourism in the area; the link would enable cycle tourists - potentially accessing the town by train - to 

have the option of two NCN routes; one extending northwards connecting the North York Moors, 

Dalby Forest and the Coast and one to the Yorkshire Wolds in the south. Despite the new routes 

attracting leisure and tourist trips, there is anticipated to be little impact on non-leisure trips.  

2.11.25. Detailed proposals were included for the Malton to Eden Camp section of the route, which would 

likely have more impact on commuter routes within the urban area. The likely starting point of the 

route would be at Wentworth Street car park, enhanced with secure cycle parking and applicable 

signage. The intended route would extend towards Eden Camp via Pasture Lane and Rainbow 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/78

Page 132



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 66 of 132 

Lane; the junction between Peasey Hills Road, Pasture Lane and Rainbow Lane could be modified 

to make it easier for cyclists to use.  

2.11.26. An additional route was identified via Outgang Lane, which would provide connectivity to various+ 

housing and employment. Both options would use Freehold Lane which would serve Eden Camp 

and the planned growth at Eden Business Park Enterprise Zone.  

Malton and Norton Transportation Strategy (Mouchel Parkman, 2005) 

2.11.27. NYCC commissioned Mouchel Parkman to develop a Transport Strategy for the twin towns, which 

was adopted in 2005. The strategy focussed on delivering improvements that would provide long 

lasting benefits, including those for vulnerable road users, whilst maximising economic and 

environmental well-being. A Pedestrian Action Plan and Cycling Plan was developed for Malton and 

Norton as part of the strategy, identifying costs and prioritising a programme of schemes for 

intervention.  

2.11.28. A public consultation exercise was undertaken as part of the commission in order to seek views and 

receive feedback on a long list of potential interventions. In addition to improvements on the SRN, 

this long list also identified sustainable transport improvements, including: 

 Pedestrian Action Plan Improvements – includes dropped kerbs, tactile pacing, footway and route 

improvements; 

 An integrated signed cycle routes and provision map (see Figure 2-20) as well as additional 

secure cycle parking;  

 Upgrading of bus stops; and improvements of the bus station. 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/79

Page 133



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 67 of 132 

Figure 2-20 – Malton and Norton Cycling Plan 2005 

 

2.11.29. The 2005 cycle plan consisted of Primary and Secondary routes, including: 

 North South Spine – a primary route which extends from B1257 in the north and along 

Middlecave Road forming a spinal distributor crossing the river Derwent, railway and onto 

Commercial Street and Beverley Road in the south. There are also addition spurs connecting to 

the railway station via Railway Street and Norton Road, and Norton Grove Industrial Estate via 

Parliament Street; 

 The Cross-Town Route – this primary route stretches from the A64 at B1248 providing a link to 

York Industrial Estate, the town centre, Ryedale House and up to Old Malton, adjoining with the 

A1257 at the A64 to the East of Old Malton; 

 Wheelgate Old Malton and Showfield Lane is a secondary link providing connections to the large 

residential areas in the north-east of Malton, Showfield Lane Industrial Estate and the town 

centre; 

 Langley Road and Langley Drive links with the large residential areas to the south west of Norton 

and serves the college and local primary school in Norton;  

 There are a number of shared footpath cycle routes which were also identified in the study, these 

would see existing footpaths be converted into routes which can be shared with cyclists, this 

included: 

• Links between Kingston Drive, The Chase and The Grove. The conversion of the existing 

estate footpath to shared use would be beneficial for cyclists travelling towards Norton 

College.  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/80

Page 134



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 68 of 132 

• Peasey Hills footpath which is bound to the northern side of the disused railway extends to Old 

Malton and Norton Road; 

• Gilling Way and across the cemetery to Pasture Lane;  

• The Footpath linking Spring Hall Garth with Fitzwilliam Drive;  

• Cycle Route using the disused Gilling to Malton Railway Line; and 

• A Footpath/Cycleway Link from the Railway Station to Development land in the south.   

2.11.30. While the Strategy stated that the above routes and corridors were to be put forward for 

implementation (alongside a new southern access at Malton Railway Station), very few of these 

interventions have been implemented. It is also noted that while many of the proposed routes align 

with the proposed M&N LCWIP Cycling Network Map, the 2005 proposals mainly consisted of 

signed routes and shared-use paths, which are generally considered to be the minimum standard 

and only applicable in very limited circumstances according to the most recent released best-

practice guidance.  

Proposed Pedestrian/Cycle bridge at the railway station 

2.11.31. A new bridge allowing for a southern access into the rail station for cyclists and pedestrians was 

identified as priority in the 2005 Malton and Norton Transport Study. The proposed increase in rail 

services and growth in housing and employment within the town is likely to result in a significant 

increase in the amount of rail trips to and from Malton, and providing such would give pedestrians 

and cyclists the opportunity to travel between the towns and to the rail station without having to 

cross the constrained level crossing / Castlegate area.  

Malton & Norton Infrastructure and Connectivity Improvements Study: Preferred Package 

2.11.32. As part of the Malton & Norton Infrastructure and Connectivity Improvements Study (WSP, 2018), a 

package of measures was identified in order to meet an agreed set of Strategic and Specific 

Objectives; the Strategic Objectives included:  

 Enhance economic performance of the study area and improve opportunities for residents;  

 Improve efficiency and resilience of the transport system;  

 Promote and support a sustainable built and natural environment; and 

 Improve safety and health for residents and visitors in the study area.  

2.11.33. The preferred package of measures encompasses the following interventions:  

 Bus service connectivity improvements. This intervention will review current bus services and, 

where applicable, will seek additional service provision, in particular a service connecting key 

destinations within the towns and consideration of the potential for providing services that avoid 

impacts of the level crossing either through timetabling and/or routing. In addition, to ensure 

coordination of bus and rail timetabling to provide for onward connections; 

 Behaviour Change Measures targeting local businesses, schools and new residential 

developments: Behaviour change education and measures would look to target local businesses, 

schools, and new housing developments, to encourage a change in travel behaviour for shorter 

journeys; 

 Walkway and Bridge over the railway line at Malton Station. This would provide a new pedestrian 

/ cycle link between the towns, avoiding the need to use the level crossing; 

 Improved Footpath and Cycle Links: Walking and Cycling Strategy. A Strategy approach to 

considering walking and cycling improvements is proposed to ensure a coordinated approach for 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/81

Page 135



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 69 of 132 

footpath and cycle provision and linkages across the towns. This will holistically consider 

provision and possible improvements to include, but not limited to: 

• Way finding signage, between Norton and Malton and to and from the rail station. 

• Identify footway improvement requirements. 

• Identify cycle routes and infrastructure provision including consideration of routes on and off 

the main road network (i.e. 'greener routes') 

 Car Parking Strategy for the Ryedale District. The proposed Car Parking Strategy would include a 

review of both on- and off-street car parking. It is acknowledged that a holistic strategy is 

required, rather than changes in individual parking locations, as alterations in one location can 

have impacts on car parking at other locations. A review of car parking, and implementation of 

recommended proposals, would aim to improve coordination of parking, and reduce the need to 

drive across the towns and the recognised congestion points, e.g. Butcher Corner and the level 

crossing. The Strategy would also recommend potential new parking regimes and additional 

provision requirements, in particular to support the additional rail services in the towns;  

 Internal Junction Improvements and Traffic Signal Strategy. The proposed Strategy would 

consider improvements to various junctions across the towns. An overarching strategy is required 

as changes to any one junction will impact the operation of others, and therefore measures need 

to be considered and tested as part of a towns-wide package; 

 Relocation of Livestock Market. This proposal is for the relocation of the Livestock Market to an 

out of town centre location. There is outline planning consent for this use at Eden Camp; the 

intervention is included in this package as it is considered an important element of improvements 

to the town centre and public realm. 

 Transport Hub / Interchange Masterplan. It is proposed to carry out a Masterplanning exercise for 

the area around the bus and rail stations, including Norton Road, with the aim of developing an 

attractive transport interchange / hub. 

 Provision of Second Platform at Malton Railway Station. This intervention considers the potential 

for the introduction of a second platform on the southern side of the railway line, together with 

access, particularly for cyclists and pedestrians. Vehicular access and potential additional parking 

would be investigated, including an assessment of highways impacts, to identify deliverable 

measures; 

 Provision of a New All Movements Junction between A64 and Broughton Road. This intervention 

is for the provision of a new all movements junction between the A64 and Broughton Road 

(B1257); 

 Upgrade A64 Musley Bank Junction – to provide an all movements junction This proposed 

scheme consists of improvements that would result in an all- movements junction at the existing 

Musley Bank / A64 / York Road (B1248) junction, to the west of Malton; and 

 Link road between Beverley Road and Hugden Way. Provision of this link road is a requirement 

of the proposed housing allocation in the emerging Local Plan (under Policy SD3 Housing 

Allocation - Land to the east of Beverley Road, Norton: Development Principles) but could 

potentially be delivered earlier if funding could be identified. 

2.11.34. The report also identified a number of next steps required in order to bring this package forward and 

implement the various measures. A number of these measures are directly related to walking and 

cycling infrastructure, such as ‘Improved Footpath & Cycle Links via Walking and Cycling Strategy’ 

and ‘Walkway & bridge for Pedestrians and Cyclists to access Malton Station from the South’. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/82

Page 136



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 70 of 132 

However, it should be recognised that many of the interventions also have the potential to implicitly 

contribute towards walking and cycling in the area, whether through additional road capacity 

providing space for infrastructure, or behaviour change programmes encouraging uptake in walking 

and cycling for everyday purposes. The priorities of the LCWIP should therefore consider the 

implications of the various other measures, and its role in enabling the wider package of 

interventions.  

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/83

Page 137



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 71 of 132 

2.12 FORECASTING GROWTH IN CYCLE TRIPS 

Propensity to Cycle Tool  

2.12.1. The Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT) is a web-based tool that can assist with understanding potential 

demand for cycling across a study area, under a variety of forecast scenarios. The tool can aid in 

the identification of the most promising routes with regard to potential cycle growth, and inform 

network development and areas for investment. 

2.12.2. The PCT project was primarily funded by the Department for Transport (DfT), with the Welsh 

government funding an extension to Wales. It was developed by an academic-led team involving the 

universities of Cambridge, Leeds and Westminster. The PCT helps to provide an evidence base for 

planning for cycling, and can be used to explore cycling potential at different geographical scales – 

from a county to a potential route corridor. 

2.12.3. For research into cycling potential (and the resulting models) to be useful for local transport 

planners, their spatial scale must coincide with those over which the planning process has some 

control. For this reason, practitioners and researchers focus on scale as the primary way of 

categorising research into cycling potential. 

2.12.4. At the route-based scale, the design of measures uses origin-destination data which can be used to 

create ‘desire lines’ and (using route allocation) estimates of existing and potential demand at each 

point on the road network 

How the PCT Works 

Baseline Data 

2.12.5. Central to the PCT approach is origin-destination (OD) data recording the travel flow between 

administrative zones. Combined with geographical data identifying the population-weighted centroid 

of each zones, these OD pairs can be represented as straight ‘desire lines’ or as routes allocated to 

the transport network. 

2.12.6. The OD pairs are derived from 2011 census data using data obtained from the following questions:  

 ‘What is the address of your main workplace’? and  

 ‘How do you usually travel to work’? 

2.12.7. This is enhanced through gender composition data for each OD pair, data on background mortality 

at an area level, and OD pair level data on route distance and hilliness. 

Forecasting Growth in Cycling  

2.12.8. Four scenarios were developed to present a range of potential cycling future scenarios. These 

scenarios consider the removal of different infrastructural, cultural and technological barriers that 

currently prevent cycling being the natural mode of choice for trips of short to medium distances. 

The PTC guidance stresses that these are not predictions of the future, but snapshots indicating 

how the spatial distribution of cycling may shift as cycling grows based on current travel patterns. 

2.12.9. The four scenarios are:  

 Government Target: a doubling of cycle trip stages by 2025. Note that this is not uniform, with a 

greater increase in areas with many existing short, flat trips but a low current level of cycling.  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/84

Page 138



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 72 of 132 

 Gender Equality: this scenario assumes female cycle user numbers increase to equal levels of 

male cycle users, with the greatest impact where cycling is most gender unequal.  

 Go Dutch: this scenario considers the increase in cycle users if England had the same 

infrastructure and cycling culture as the Netherlands, but retained the hilliness and commuter 

distance patterns. It applies ‘Dutch scaling factors’ calculated through analysis of British and 

Dutch National Travel surveys. These include one fixed ‘main effect’ parameter, plus a distance-

based factor, as the Dutch effect is greater on shorter trips. Note this does not use current levels 

of cycling, rather considering the distance and hilliness of existing O-D pairs.  

 Ebikes: this scenario is an extension of the Dutch scenario; The Ebike scaling factors were 

generated through analysis of the English, Dutch and Swiss National Travel Surveys, which 

estimated how much more likely it was that a given commute trip would be cycled by Ebike 

owners versus cyclists in general. 

PCT Outputs 

2.12.10. The basic PCT interface displays the existing levels of cycling to work, based on 2011 census data. 

Figure 2-21 illustrates this scenario at the LSOA level. 

Figure 2-21 – PCT Output: % of Population Cycling to Work, by LSOA (2011 Census)  

 

2.12.11. The outputs show that existing levels of cycling between LSOA OD pairs are moderately high in the 

north and south-western areas of Malton and Norton, with 7-9% of journeys to work undertaken by 

bike.  

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/85

Page 139



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 73 of 132 

Figure 2-22 – PCT Output: Top 30 Cycle Flows between OD Pairs (2011 Census)  

  

2.12.12. When considering the top 30 OD pairs, a large proportion of the existing travel to work by cycle 

occurs in the urban area of Malton and Norton; however, there is also existing demand for cycling 

from the outlying Local Service Centres, with connections to villages in the north west such as 

Swinton, Appleton le-Street, Broughton and Amotherby, as well as multiple connections to the 

smaller villages to the south of the main urban area. 

2.12.13. Figure 2-23 then assigns the OD pair movements to the most likely routes: the purple lines 

represent the fastest routes, while those in green show quieter routes with less vehicular traffic. 

These routes are generated by CycleStreets.net, so do not necessarily represent the paths that 

cyclists currently take, rather the route choice models are based on GPS data developed specifically 

for this purpose.  

Figure 2-23 – PCT Output: Top 30 Cycle Flows between OD Pairs, mapped to Fast and Quiet 

Routes (2011 Census)  

  

2.12.14. The mapping indicates significant overlap between the fastest and quietest routes, likely as a result 

of the limited route choice between Malton and Norton. While this makes it easier to identify where 

improvements could be of benefit to cycle users, the constraints associated with the crossing points 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/86

Page 140



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 74 of 132 

over the River Derwent and railway line pose significant challenges to introducing high-quality 

cycling infrastructure. It is also noted that the National Byway, which runs along Castle Howard 

Road to the Old Malton Road route of the Trans Pennine Trail, forms a key link in the centre of the 

towns.  

2.12.15. It is also important to note that the tool only considers journey to work data, so excludes all other 

journey purposes, such as recreational cycling, tourist demand, and movements to school. 

2.12.16. Figure 2-24 allocates these routes with the Route Network layer, aggregating the ‘fastest route’ 

flows together in order to consider the likely most cycled existing routes on the network.  

Figure 2-24 – PCT Output: Total Cyclists on Route Network (2011 Census)  

 

2.12.17. The existing conditions in Malton and Norton are shown in Figure 2-24; the highest number of 

cyclists use the single crossing point between the twin towns, with approximately 100-249 cyclists 

per day using this route. Additional routes recording more than 100 cyclists include East Mount 

Road in Malton, which connects to residential areas in the north and Parliament Street in Norton, 

which leads to a key employment area in the east. 

 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/87

Page 141



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 75 of 132 

Future Scenarios – Government Target 

2.12.18. The PCT also allows the identification of key routes under the various future scenarios, as described 

above. Figure 2-25 shows the potential route network under the government target scenario. These 

figures show an increase in cycling in Norton along Church Street and Parliament Street, as well as 

higher cycle flows in the Malton town centre area. These routes are likely to represent the 

convergence points for journeys from the outlying residential areas, as well as potentially rail / cycle 

multi-modal journeys.  

Figure 2-25 – PCT Output: Forecast Cycle Flows mapped to Route Network, based on 

Government Target Scenario  

 

 

Future Scenarios – Go Dutch 

2.12.19. The ‘Go Dutch’ scenario is considered more aspirational than the government target, presenting a 

potential scenario of cycling demand in the future if ‘Dutch style’ infrastructure was available, as well 

as a similar attitude toward cycling. Figure 2-26 shows the results of this scenario on the potential 

cycling network, highlighting areas of significant additional demand.  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/88

Page 142



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 76 of 132 

2.12.20. The figure shows increased demand across the key route between Malton and Norton and 

westwards in Norton towards residential and employment areas, and additional residential areas to 

the south west of Norton as a result of residents changing to more active modes. 

Figure 2-26 – PCT Output: Forecast Cycle Flows mapped to Route Network, based on Go 

Dutch Scenario  

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/89

Page 143



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 77 of 132 

 

Applying the PCT  

2.12.21. It is important to understand the limitations of the PCT. The tool allows for an indicative 

understanding of the probable key existing cycle routes, as well as those under various future 

scenarios. However, these routes do not take into account journeys for any other purposes than 

commuting to work, and do not consider future growth in the area.  

2.12.22. The PCT outputs should therefore only be considered as a starting point, with the network further 

refined through the subsequent stages in the LCWIP process 

 

 

LCWIP Implications 

- The PCT outputs evidence existing cycle movements are concentrated on the urban area 

across the level crossing between Malton and Norton.  

- Future scenarios reinforce the role of these central routes, while extending the potential 

for cycling out towards the key employment areas in Norton and residential areas to the 

South West. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/90

Page 144



 

PUBLIC 

 
 

3 
CYCLE NETWORK 

 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/91

Page 145



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 79 of 132 

3 CYCLE NETWORK 

3.1 OVERVIEW 

3.1.1. One of the key outputs of Phase 1 of the Malton & Norton LCWIP process is the determination of the 

Cycling Network Map (CNM), which sets out a cohesive potential network for cycling. This network 

is then considered against the baseline evidence in order to identify preferred routes for further 

development. 

3.1.2. The development of the Cycling Network follows the LCWIP Technical Guidance for Local 

Authorities document (DfT, 2017), and is founded on the principle of connecting people to places, 

ensuring that the proposed networks correspond to both the routes people currently take and those 

people are likely to want to take, both now and in the future. This method also helps to identify the 

long-term vision for the networks while ensuring investment is focused on the key routes and the 

needs of cycle users. The resulting outputs are networks that are evidence-based and facilitate 

strategic development. 

3.2 METHODOLOGY 

3.2.1. The development of the Cycle Network Map can be divided up into a 10-step process. These are as 

follows: 

 Step 1 – Define and Understand the Study Area 

 Step 2 – Identify Key Origins and Destinations 

 Step 3 – Identify Key Future Developments and Infrastructure 

 Step 4 – Clustering of Origins and Destinations 

 Step 5 – Schematic Connections Between Origins and Destinations 

 Step 6 – Identify Routes Serving the Schematic Network 

 Step 7 – Consider a Route Hierarchy 

 Step 8 – Produce Draft Cycle Network 

 Step 9 – Validation and Review 

 Step 10 – Produce Final Network 

3.2.2. The following sub-sections describe the process undertaken in developing the CNM for the Malton & 

Norton LCWIP study area. 

3.3 STEP 1 - DEFINING THE STUDY AREA 

3.3.1. The first step in developing the network map is to define the extents of the study area. 

3.3.2. In order to determine these extents, a process of ‘baselining’ was undertaken to understand travel 

movements and demographic variations in the District, including a review of various data sources in 

order to understand the existing transport-related issues, physical constraints and topography. 

Isochrone mapping was undertaken in order to understand the likely extents of active travel 

distances, while the DfT’s Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT) was used to identify existing and potential 

future cycle travel patterns.  

3.3.3. A number of site visits have also been undertaken at various stages of the process; these site visits 

have helped understand existing and future travel demands, identify key corridors, and consider 

constraints on the network. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/92

Page 146



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 80 of 132 

3.3.4. Stakeholder engagement has also been key in understanding the priorities of the District and the 

implications and alignment with other workstreams.   

3.3.5. Following an analysis of this evidence base, it was agreed that the Malton & Norton LCWIP would 

focus primarily on the urban area, as shown in Figure 1-1.  

3.4 STEP 2 - IDENTIFY KEY ORIGINS AND DESTINATIONS 

3.4.1. Key origins and destinations were plotted using data collected through the baselining exercise, site 

audits, stakeholder engagement, and through local knowledge. These ODs included the following 

key origin points: 

 Residential areas – LSOA population-weighted centroids were used as proxy locations for 

residential areas; 

 Public transport interchanges – these are both origins in terms of people arriving in the study area 

and destinations people use to travel to wider locations 

3.4.2. Key destinations included: 

 Public transport interchanges (as above); 

 Principal retail areas; 

 Employment concentrations; 

 Large grocery shops; 

 Hospitals; 

 Tourist attractions; and 

 Educational institutions. 

3.4.3. Figure 3-1 shows these key ODs in relation to the Malton & Norton LCWIP Study Area. Further 

detail regarding OD identification is available in Sections 2.9 and 2.10. 

 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/93

Page 147



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 81 of 132 

Figure 3-1 – Malton and Norton: Key Origins and Destinations 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/94

P
age 148



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 82 of 132 

3.5 STEP 3 - IDENTIFY KEY FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS AND 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

3.5.1. Identifying potential development and infrastructure is important in terms of understanding where 

future origins and destinations may be located, as well as the potential for new desire lines. 

Understanding the location of and proposals for such development allows the network to be 

developed in a way that links these sites and makes the most of planned infrastructure. 

3.5.2. Figure 3-2 identifies the key future committed and allocated development sites in the Malton & 

Norton LCWIP Study Area, presenting these alongside the existing ODs, as determined in Step 2.

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/95

Page 149



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 83 of 132 

Figure 3-2 – Malton and Norton: Key Future Developments and Infrastructure 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/96

P
age 150



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 84 of 132 

3.6 STEP 4 - CLUSTERING OF ORIGINS AND DESTINATIONS 

3.6.1. In Step 4, trip generators in close proximity to one another have been clustered together as key 

destination areas. This process simplifies the analysis of desire lines, agglomerating multiple 

destination points into a single broad destination.   

3.6.2. Figure 3-3 illustrates these clusters, as well as identifying the desire lines discussed in the following 

sub-section. 

3.7 STEP 5 - SCHEMATIC CONNECTIONS BETWEEN ORIGINS AND 

DESTINATIONS 

3.7.1. Step 5 maps desire lines between the various origin and destination points. Straight lines were 

drawn between the key origins and destinations in order to create a schematic web network. These 

represent the most direct paths for cycle users between points (i.e. ‘desire lines’) and are, at this 

stage, irrespective of existing transport networks or constraints.  

3.7.2. Parallel lines or lines in close proximity to each other were combined to simplify the network and are 

considered as ‘primary connections’.  

3.7.3. Figure 3-3 illustrates these desire lines, as well as the clusters described in the preceding sub-

section.  

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/97

Page 151



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 85 of 132 

Figure 3-3 – Malton and Norton: Schematic Connections 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/98

P
age 152



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 86 of 132 

3.8 STEP 6 - IDENTIFY ROUTES SERVING THE SCHEMATIC NETWORK 

3.8.1. Potential route alignments were then plotted, following the schematic connections identified in Step 

5 as closely as possible. The routes selected consider existing roads, paths and structures but do 

not consider current constraints, such as carriageway width or traffic management restrictions such 

as one-way orders. Figure 3-4 below illustrates this process, displaying both clusters / desire lines in 

addition to the routes selected to best represent the network. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/99

Page 153



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 87 of 132 

Figure 3-4 – Malton & Norton: Draft Cycle Network 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/100

P
age 154



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 88 of 132 

3.9 STEP 7 - IDENTIFY A ROUTE HIERARCHY 

3.9.1. From reviewing best practice and through knowledge and experience of established cycle networks 

it was recognised that a cycle network hierarchy would be appropriate. Within this hierarchy the type 

of infrastructure provided would vary both depending on the links’ position in the network hierarchy, 

and on the type of link, where it connects to, and how it will be used. As a result, the network has 

been categorised in accordance with the criteria presented in Table 3-1. This Network Hierarchy has 

been applied across the NYCC LCWIPs to ensure a consistent approach.  

Table 3-1 – Draft Network Hierarchy 

Network 
Element 

Characteristics 

Primary • High number of cycle users; 
• Creates arterial routes that support a wider network; 
• Links large residential areas to main clusters such as town centre 

locations; 
• Through, internal, and inbound-outbound cycle traffic; 
• Direct, following the shortest possible route;  
• Low gradients (where possible). 

Secondary • Lower number of cycle users; 
• Caters for shorter local trips; 
• Increases density of network; 
• Ensure local access to origins and destinations from the primary 

network;  
• Provides quieter routes for less confident cycle users (while primary 

network is being developed). 

Town Centre 
Cores 

• High levels of permeability and priority for cycle users and 
pedestrians. 

3.9.2. This hierarchy has been applied to the identified cycle corridors, respective to their location in the 

study area and perceived role in the network, with discussion provided on the following pages. The 

full draft CNM is presented Step 8. 

3.9.3. A core network of primary routes underpins the proposed network, taking into account the main 

destination clusters, origin points, and any isolated major destinations. The primary routes are 

supported by a network of secondary and local links, which are discussed below in relation to each 

study area.  

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/101

Page 155



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 89 of 132 

Malton and Norton 

3.9.4. Figure 3-5 presents the draft Cycle Network Map for Malton and Norton. The key corridors identified 

are summarised as: 

PRIMARY CYCLING ROUTES  

Malton 

 A key east to west route extending from York Road Industrial Estate to Old Malton, with 

secondary extensions to the A64 and FEZ. This route will provide connectivity to origin points 

along York Road and Old Malton Road, with the town centre becoming a key confluence between 

the various proposed routes;  

 A central route along Wentworth Street as an alternative parallel route to the highly trafficked and 

physically constrained Newbiggin, connecting Showfield Lane and new development with the 

town centre and onward connections;  

 A radial route along The Mount and Pasture Lane/Highfield Road, bypassing the town centre and 

providing additional connectivity for the residential areas in Malton. 

Norton 

 A vital link along Castlegate, as the only existing contiguous route between the two towns. This 

route extends along Church Street and Scarborough Road, connecting to a multitude of uses, 

including Commercial Street and Karro Food Group. The route connects to three north-south 

routes through the main urban area of Norton;   

 Three primary links extending north to south from Church Street: 

• The most westerly route extends southwards down Welham Road serving predominantly 

residential areas;  

• The central route via Langton Road will provide an important connection to Norton College and 

supporting east-west links through residential areas; and 

• The south-eastern alignment on Mill Street/Beverley Road extends through residential areas, 

linking to an indicative route corridor which could provide connections between southern OD 

points and Westfield Way industrial estate. 

SECONDARY CYCLING ROUTES 

3.9.5. The Cycling Network Map includes several shorter distance Secondary routes that complement the 

longer distance Primary routes listed above. Despite the reduced length, these routes link key 

origins and destinations and add vital connectivity and accessibility to the Primary network.  

3.9.6. These routes include:  

Malton 

 Railway St / Norton Road – this link provides a quieter parallel route to Castlegate via Malton 

Railway Station; 

 Church Hill – this route provides a quieter route that cuts out Butcher Corner for some desire 

lines; 

 Sheepfoot Hill to Old Malton Road via Orchard Fields – this route extends through Orchard field 

and could be a quieter alternative to Castlegate / Butcher Corner along a greenway, while also 

providing connections to leisure destinations such as the rugby and cricket clubs; 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/102

Page 156



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 90 of 132 

 Rainbow Lane to Westgate Road/Lowfield Road – This route connects residential areas to the 

north east of the town to Old Malton and the Primary network along a quieter alternative to 

Highfield Road, and could be designed as a greenway route; 

 Outgang Road – this extends from the Lowfield Road link and travels directly between both new 

housing developments onto Pasture Lane. Enhancements to this route could increase 

accessibility between the two;  

 Castle Howard to York Road Link – this connection supports trips from Malton School and the 

Hospital to Primary network; and  

 B1257 (A64 overbridge) to Swinton– a secondary corridor extending via Broughton Road/ Malton 

Road/High Street, and providing onward connectivity between Malton and Broughton, Swinton 

and Amotherby.  

Norton 

 A number of secondary routes forming orbital connections between the three radial routes 

described above; and 

 Mill Street to Eastfield Ave – a small but important connection to Eastfield Rd industrial estate 

which could also support future nearby developments. 

SUPPORTING NETWORK 

3.9.7. A number of indicative route corridors have also been identified where there is potential desire for 

travel with no current provision; these include the following routes:  

 Cricket Club to Old Malton Road; 

 Alternative Westgate Lane to Highfield Road Route; 

 Lowfield Road to Broughton Road; 

 Broughton Road to Middlecave Road; 

 Malton School through-route; 

 Northern Broughton Road to Outgang Road Route; 

 Newbiggin to Yorkersgate link; 

 The Chase to Welham Road; and 

  Eden House Road to Lowfield Road 

3.9.8. These routes could contribute to permeability and accessibility to the network, enhancing the 

identified routes and ensuring the network accommodates for the final stage of the journey.  

 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/103

Page 157



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 91 of 132 

Figure 3-5 – Draft Cycle Network Map: Malton and Norton 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/104

P
age 158



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 92 of 132 

3.10 STEP 8 - PRODUCE DRAFT CYCLE NETWORK 

3.10.1. Step 8 is the culmination of the previous steps, bring all the data together to formalise a draft 

network ready for Step 9 - validation and review.  

3.11 STEP 9 - VALIDATION AND REVIEW 

3.11.1. The validation and review of the draft networks was informed by the baseline evidence, site visits, 

local knowledge, stakeholder engagement and a review of connectivity between key origins and 

destinations. The PCT outputs (Government Target scenario) were also used to validate the network 

in terms of existing and future demand.  

3.12 STEP 10 - PRODUCE FINAL NETWORK 

3.12.1. The final step is the production of the final Cycling Network Map, which is presented in Chapter 7 of 

the report. 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/105

Page 159



 

PUBLIC 

 

 

 

 

 
 

4 
WALKING NETWORK  

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/106

Page 160



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 94 of 132 

4 WALKING NETWORK  

4.1 OVERVIEW 

4.1.1. One of the key outputs of Phase 1 of the M&N LCWIP process is the determination of the Walking 

Network Map (WNM), which sets out a cohesive potential network for walking. This network is then 

considered against the baseline evidence in order to identify preferred routes for further 

development. 

4.1.2. The development of the walking network follows the LCWIP Technical Guidance for Local 

Authorities document (DfT, 2017), and is founded on the principle of connecting people to places, 

ensuring that the proposed networks correspond to both the routes people currently take and those 

people are likely to want to take, both now and in the future. This method also helps to identify the 

long-term vision for the networks while ensuring investment is focused on the key routes and the 

needs of pedestrians. The resulting outputs are networks that are evidence-based and facilitate 

strategic development. 

4.2 METHODOLOGY 

4.2.1. The development of the walking network map can be divided up into an 8-step process. These are 

as follows: 

 Step 1 – Define and Understand the Study Area 

 Step 2 – Mapping walking trip generators;  

 Step 3 – Identifying core walking zones;  

 Step 4 – Identifying core walking routes;  

 Step 5 – Consider a route hierarchy; 

 Step 6 – Produce a draft walking network;  

 Step 7 – Validation and review;  

 Step 8 – Produce final network map 

4.2.2. The following sub-sections describe the process undertaken in developing the WNM for the Malton 

& Norton LCWIP study areas. 

4.3 STEP 1 - DEFINING THE STUDY AREA 

4.3.1. The first step in developing the network map is to define the extents of the study area. 

4.3.2. The study area used in the determination of the Walking Network Map was agreed to focus on the 

same boundary as the Cycling Network Map, as shown in Figure 1-1.  

4.4 STEP 2 - MAPPING WALKING TRIP GENERATORS 

4.4.1. The key origin and destination data used in the derivation of cycling origin and destination points in 

Section 3.3.5 were again utilised to understand the key ODs in relation to walking. It is considered 

that, while cycling is likely to enable longer distance journeys and connect OD pairs further afield, 

the trips generators and attractors remain the same.  

4.4.2. These ODs included the following key origin points: 

 Residential areas – Lower Super Output Area (LSOA) population-weighted centroids were used 

as proxy locations for residential areas; and 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/107

Page 161



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 95 of 132 

 Public transport interchanges – these are both origins in terms of people arriving in the study area 

and destinations people use to travel to wider locations. 

4.4.3. Key destinations included: 

 Public transport interchanges (as above); 

 Principal retail areas; 

 Employment concentrations; 

 Large grocery shops; 

 Hospitals; 

 Tourist attractions; and 

 Educational institutions. 

4.4.4. Figure 2-18 shows these key O/Ds in relation to the Malton & Norton LCWIP study area.  

4.4.5. Future O/Ds are also considered in the development of the WNM, with the same assumptions 

applied in the development of both the CNM and the WNM. Section 3.5 details the process of 

identifying future O/Ds, while Figure 2-19 illustrates the location of these sites in relation to the study 

area. 

4.5 STEP 3 - IDENTIFYING CORE WALKING ZONES 

4.5.1. Following the identification of walking trip generators Core Walking Zones (CWZs) can be defined.  

4.5.2. CWZs are areas that consist of a number of walking trip O/Ds located in close proximity (e.g. town 

centre, business park, university campus, etc). These CWZs are most likely to attract trips for utility / 

commuting purposes.  

4.5.3. While CWZs may include points of interest (POIs), these locations are considered to predominantly 

attract trips for leisure and recreational purposes—although it is recognised that these destinations 

are also likely to accommodate some measure of employment. 

4.5.4. The CWZs identified within the LCWIP study areas are listed in Table 4-1. 

Table 4-1 – Core Walking Zones 

Core Walking Zone Area Purpose 

Market Place  Malton Town Centre Commuting/Utilities/Retail 

York Road Industrial Estate  Malton West Commuting/Utilities/Retail 

Town Street / Westgate  Old Malton  Commuting/Utilities 

Karro Food Group  Norton East Commuting/Utilities 

Norton College Norton South Commuting/Utilities 

4.5.5. The Malton & Norton LCWIP study area is relatively compact, with the majority of the study area 

within a maximum desirable walking distance (approximately 2km). It is considered reasonable that 

the entire study area could be accessed on foot from any point, and that therefore only a single 

CWZ would be necessary, highlighting the importance of maximising walking opportunities across 

the whole area.  

4.5.6. However, a number of CWZs have also been identified at strategic peripheral points on the edges of 

the study area, highlighting where the likelihood of journeys on foot may decrease with increasing 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/108

Page 162



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 96 of 132 

distance from each CWZ, and also identifying where walking distances overlap, with these locations 

likely to see higher volumes of pedestrian use.  

4.5.7. As per LCWIP guidance, an approximate five-minute walking distance of 400m can be used as a 

guide to the minimum extents of CWZs. Each identified CWZ has therefore been plotted using a 

proxy central point, with a GIS-based isochrone tool and the local highway network used to map the 

CWZ five-minute extents.  

4.6 STEP 4 - IDENTIFYING KEY WALKING ROUTES 

4.6.1. Following the identification of the CWZs, key walking routes to each zone should then be identified 

by mapping a 2km isochrone from the central point, considered to be the maximum desirable 

walking distance from the CWZs11. The proportion of journeys made on foot typically decreases 

significantly beyond this distance.  

4.6.2. While each 2km isochrone allows the identification of 

key walking routes in relation to each individual CWZ, 

the analysis of overlapping isochrones shows where 

key walking routes are likely to serve multiple CWZs, 

and therefore potentially have higher levels of demand.  

4.6.3. A GIS-based isochrone tool was used to identify 

potential walking routes of 2km (approximately a 25-

minute journey) for each of the CWZs listed in Step 2.  

4.6.4. It should be recognised that there are some limitations 

to this method; centroids are used as proxies for each 

OD, and pedestrian movement is unconstrained by 

infrastructure provision in the same way as vehicles 

(although the propensity to travel on foot can be heavily supressed by poor quality infrastructure). 

The isochrone analysis is therefore used to identify movement corridors, within which a combination 

of stakeholder engagement and site visits are used to identify specific routes for improvement.  

4.6.5. Figure 4-1 shows the CWZs and respective 2km isochrones in relation to the M&N LCWIP study 

area.  

4.6.6. The CWZs are highlighted in red (representing a 400m or 5 min walk), whilst all walking routes 

accessible within a 2km radius (approx. 25 min walk) are highlighted in blue.  

 

 

 

 

 

11
 Providing for Journeys on Foot, CIHT, 2000 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/109

Page 163



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 97 of 132 

Figure 4-1 - Identified Core Walking Zones 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/110

P
age 164



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 98 of 132 

4.7 STEP 5 - CONSIDER A ROUTE HIERARCHY 

4.7.1. Following the identification of key walking routes for each CWZ, each has been prioritised using the 

definitions provided in the RLG Footway Maintenance Classification12 as replicated in Table 4-2. 

Whilst definitions can be tailored to local circumstances, the DfT’s LCWIP technical guidance 

recommends that a defined classification of footways is used as a basis for establishing where to 

focus improvements to walking infrastructure.  

4.7.2. Within this hierarchy the type of infrastructure provided would vary both depending on the link’s 

position in the network hierarchy, and on the type of link, where it connects to, and how it will be 

used.  

Table 4-2 – Footway Hierarchy in ‘Well-Maintained Highways’ 

Category Name Description 

1(a)  Prestige Walking Zones Very busy areas of towns and cities, with high public space and 
street scene contribution. 

1  Primary Walking Routes Busy urban shopping and business areas, and main pedestrian 
routes 

2  Secondary Walking Routes Medium usage routes through local areas feeding into primary 
routes, local shopping centres, etc. 

3 Link Footways Linking local access footways through urban areas and busy 
rural footways. 

4 Local Access Footways Footways associated with low usage, short estate roads to the 
main roads and cul-de-sacs. 

4.7.3. Prestige, Primary, Secondary and Link Footways have been identified and mapped as these are 

expected to have the highest demand for walking trips and are the busiest local routes, based on the 

definitions above. It is therefore considered that these routes would be the focus for improvements. 

4.7.4. It should be noted that that these assignments should be considered indicative in the initial stages, 

and alternative or complementary routes within the corridors may come forward through stakeholder 

engagement, detailed assessment and design. 

4.7.5. Further discussion on the identification of routes for each footway hierarchy category are provided 

below, respective to their location in the study area.  

  

 

 

 

12 Well-maintained Highways: Code of Practice for Highway Management 2005 Edition, updated September 2013, Roads Liaison Group- 

London: TSO 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/111

Page 165



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 99 of 132 

4.8 STEP 6 - PRODUCE A DRAFT WALKING NETWORK 

4.8.1. Following the methodology described in Steps 1-5, a draft Walking Network Map has been 

developed for each study area, with links categorised based on the network hierarchy established in 

Step 5. 

4.8.2. Figure 4-2 presents the draft Walking Network Map for Malton & Norton. The key corridors identified 

are summarised as:  

PRESTIGE / PRIMARY WALKING ROUTES  

Malton 

 The town centre prestige connections encompass the central CWZ; this includes Market Street, 

Market Place, St Michael Street, Saville Street, Yorkersgate, and Newbiggin. This is a key route 

for both tourists and the local population; 

 An axial east-to-west route from York Road Industrial Estate via Butchers Corner to Old 

Maltongate. This route would facilitate connectivity within the central town centre CWZ. There are 

a number of opportunities to connect to Secondary Network and Prestige Networks within the 

main urban centre of Malton;  

 A Railway Station prestige route has been identified to improve accessibility to Malton station on 

foot. This route could also direct tourists and leisure users into the town centre along the Railway 

Street primary route link across the River Derwent; 

 The Norton Road connection is also part of the key walking route between Norton and Malton 

Railway Station, providing an eastwards connection into Norton including onwards links to local 

amenities and services, residential areas and St Nicholas Street Car Park; and 

 The Newbiggin route links Malton School and the new residential developments in the north west 

of Malton.  

Norton 

 The Castlegate to Parliament Street route via Commercial Street connects employment areas to 

the west of Norton with Norton and Malton Town Centres. This route also serves residential 

areas, key services and local amenities as well as providing links to primary routes in Malton and 

secondary routes to the South of Norton.  

SECONDARY WALKING ROUTES 

Malton 

 Castle Howard Road – This route connects residential areas to the primary walking route on York 

Road and into the town centre area;  

 Middlecave Road – This route serves Malton School and residential areas in the west of Malton, 

feeding into the main town centre area, and also has the potential to provide connections into 

Malton Hospital;  

 The Mount – This route connects residential areas to the primary roads of Horsemarket Road and 

Newbiggin; 

 Princess Road/East Mount – this provides a quieter easterly route from the town centre area to 

Old Maltongate and Old Malton Road;  

 Pasture Lane/Highfield Road – this walking route accommodates mainly residential areas 

including the two new developments;  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/112

Page 166



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 100 of 132 

 Princess Road to Westgate Lane – this south-north route extends from the town centre area via 

Princes Road, Peasey Hills Road and Rainbow Lane then stretches to Westgate Lane into Old 

Malton; 

 Sheepfoot Hill /Orchard Fields to Rugby Cricket Club – a quieter country route away from the 

main road, the path passes through Orchard Fields, through the improved footways along to 

Malton and Norton Rugby Ground and feeding north into Old Malton Road; and 

 Edenhouse Road – this route supports the development at Eden Business Park, it may also be 

used as a tourist route into Eden Camp.  

Norton 

 Welham Road – southern route feeding into key primary route on Castlegate from residential 

areas; 

 Langton Road – accommodate those wishing to travel to Norton College at the south of the town, 

it will also feed into link roads through residential areas; 

 Beverley Road – this route supports predominately residential areas and would also feed links at 

Norton Grove Industrial Estate and Norton College; 

 Wood Street/Mill Street – this route is a short east-west connection between Langton Road and 

Beverley Road; and 

 Scarborough Road – Westfield Way – Hudgen Way – this route would provide better pedestrian 

access into Norton Grove Industrial Estate, and it also has the potential to support a new crossing 

on the old railway bridge.  

LINK FOOTWAYS 

4.8.3. The potential routes identified through the corridors above present a dense network of Secondary 

Walking Routes. A number of other complementary Link Footways could increase this density, 

including: 

Malton 

 Link between Castle Howard Road and York Road; 

 Maiden Greve/Hospital Road; 

 Middlecave Drive; 

 Crab tree Drive/Acre Way; 

 Outgang Road/Lowfield Road/Borough Mere Lane/Freehold Lane; 

 Highfield Road to Westgate Lane Link; 

 Cherry Ave/Hawthorne Ave; 

 Milton Ave to Bridge Road and Old Malton Road Links; 

 Showfield Lane; 

 Wentworth Street; 

 Old Maltongate Road to Sheepfoot Hill; and 

 Old Maltongate Road through Orchard Fields. 

Norton 

 Park Road; 

 St Nicholas Street; 

 St Peter’s Street/Lakeside Way/Springfield Garth Links; 

 Hambleton Road/Langley Drive; 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/113

Page 167



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 101 of 132 

 The Chase/The Grove/Kingston Drive Links; 

 Burdale Close to Beverley Road; and  

 Mill Street and Eastfield Avenue 

SUPPORTING NETWORK 

4.8.4. Although not directly along any of the identified CWZ corridors, the following routes are also 

identified as supporting the walking network in the area and providing important connections for 

local trips to key destinations:  

 Malton School through-route; 

 Connections between the two new housing developments onto Outgang Lane and supporting 

connections into Showfield Lane Industrial Estate;  

 Southern access into Malton Railway Station connecting onto Park Road; 

 Southern link connecting Welham Road, Langton Road, Beverley Road to the new housing and 

employment developments; and 

 New river crossing at the old former railway bridge. 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/114

Page 168



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 102 of 132 

Figure 4-2 – Draft Walking Route Hierarchy 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/115

P
age 169



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 103 of 132 

4.9 STEP 7 - VALIDATION AND REVIEW 

4.9.1. The validation and review of the draft networks was informed by the baseline evidence, site visits, 

local knowledge, stakeholder engagement and a review of connectivity between key origins and 

destinations. The emerging WNM should also reviewed against the existing Malton & Norton 

Footway Maintenance log to assess the prioritisation of links, and suggest potential amendments 

where required. 

4.10 STEP 8 - PRODUCE FINAL NETWORK 

4.10.1. The final step is the production of the final Walking Network Map, which is presented in Chapter 7 of 

Report. 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/116

Page 170



 

PUBLIC 

 
 

5 
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 

 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/117

Page 171



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 105 of 132 

5 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 

5.1 OVERVIEW 

5.1.1. The DfT’s LCWIP guidance highlights the importance of stakeholder engagement throughout the 

development of the LCWIP.  

5.1.2. Initial stakeholder engagement for the Malton & Norton LCWIP took place during the baseline review 

stage, whereby the project team engaged with key stakeholders, such as NYCC and RDC officers, 

to gain a detailed insight in terms of challenges and opportunities for developing the respective 

networks within the study area. 

5.1.3. Following the development of the draft cycling and walking networks, an external workshop was held 

at RDC offices on 5th July 2019 with the following objectives: 

 To gain stakeholder input on the draft cycle network; and 

 To identify short term priorities for intervention. 

5.1.4. The workshop format provided an opportunity for stakeholders to review and validate the draft 

networks developed by the project team, aiding the refinement of the networks through contribution 

of local knowledge and expertise.  

5.1.5. The attendees to the external workshop included staff from NYCC and RDC who were involved 

during the baseline engagement, and widened to include further stakeholders that had not 

previously been engaged but were identified by NYCC and RDC as being important to the 

development and delivery of the cycle and walking network. 

5.1.6. The stakeholders were split into two groups to participate in exercises and discussions around the 

draft networks and priorities. The workshop itself was split into two sections, with the first focusing 

on cycle network development and the second focussing on walking network development. 

5.1.7. A range of internal and external stakeholders were invited to the workshop, as listed below. 

Table 5-1 – M&N LCWIP Workshop Attendees 

Name Role Name Role 

Phil Freestone WSP Ray King Councillor, Ryedale 

David Stannard WSP Liz Parker Norton CP School 

Howard Kinneavy WSP Mandy Carpenter Malton CP School 

Tim Coyne 
North Yorkshire County 
Council 

Charlie French TransPennine Express 

Howard Wallis Ryedale District Council Janice Lane Malton Secondary School 

Mark Brayshaw Malton Amenity CIC Caron Twamley 
NYCC Road Safety & 
Travel Awareness. 

Matthew Lishman Ryedale District Council Gary Housden 
Head of Planning, 
Ryedale District Council 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/118

Page 172



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 106 of 132 

5.2 CYCLE NETWORK VALIDATION AND REVIEW 

5.2.1. One of the primary aims of the external workshop was to review the work WSP have already 

undertaken in terms of draft network development. To do this, the first group activity was a validation 

exercise of the draft cycle network. 

NETWORK COMMENTS & AMENDMENTS 

5.2.2. When validating the network, the stakeholders were asked to record whether they agreed with the 

proposed draft Cycling Network Map (CNM) or if they thought the draft cycle network needs 

amending. Amendments could include changing the status of a link in terms of its level on the 

hierarchy, adding to the route or removing links from the network.  

5.2.3. Figure 5-1 demonstrates the outputs from this exercise. 

Figure 5-1 – Cycling Network Feedback 

 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/119

Page 173



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 107 of 132 

COMMENTS RECEIVED 

5.2.4. Table 5-2 lists the comments that were received in relation to the draft cycling network. The table 

presents each comment, whether it was included in the final draft network plan, and the rationale 

behind this decision. 

Table 5-2 – Draft Cycle Network Comments 

Ref. Comment 
Include in 
Final Network 
plan 

Rationale 

CN1 
Consider Newbiggin as a 
Primary route 

Y 

Potentially. Likelihood of improvements depends on possibility of 
increasing movements. Parallel route more feasible in short term. 
Preferred routing should be identified in Phase 2 during the Route 
Selection exercise. 

CN2 
The Cut should be considered 
more of a leisure orientated 
route 

N/A Agree. Likely less of a priority due to perceptions of safety. 

CN3 

Direct off-road link between 
fire station and RDC office 
should be considered a 
priority  

N/A Agree. Likely less of a priority than parallel on-road links. . 

CN4 

Old Malton Road footway 
could already be wide enough 
to accommodate cycle 
infrastructure and be a ‘quick 
win’  

N/A Agree – but need to consider onward connections.  

CN5 
Off-road route to the north-
west of Old Malton could be 
an achievable ‘quick win’ 

N/A 
Dependent on land ownership + cost. Pasture Lane, etc., is more 
desirable route. 

CN6 

Link between Horsemarket 
Road and Princess Road 
already exists and should be 
considered ‘Secondary’  

Y Spital Street – agreed.  

CN7 
Link through Malton School 
field would be useful 

No 

Would enhance connectivity but unlikely to deliverable due to 
safeguarding issues. Potential alternative connection along parallel route 
(eastern boundary) but may encounter resistance from school and local 
residents. 

CN8 
Upgrade Malton Rd to 
Amotherby to Primary  

N 
Unlikely to meet criteria (use) for primary status. Not to be confused with 
prioritisation.  

CN9 Add Newbiggin as Primary  Y 

Unlikely to meet criteria (use) for primary status – parallel routes are 
more desirable and more practicable for improvements. Not to be 
confused with prioritisation. However, added to highlight long term 
strategic importance.  

CN10 Add Wood Street Y Agreed. Parallel route to Commercial Street. 

CN11 
Change rail station crossing 
and Norton Road to ‘Primary’ 
instead of Castlegate 

Y 

Both links identified as Primary links due to the number of destination 
points both on the route and that they facilitate access to. Preferred 
routing should be identified in Phase 2 during the Route Selection 
exercise. 

CN12 

Add new link as alternative to 
railway station route – Bark 
Knotts Terrace to Asda Car 
Park 

N 
Funding and land take are significant issues – current aspirational route 
via rail station is more feasible as ties in with potential new platform.  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/120

Page 174



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 108 of 132 

CYCLE NETWORK PRIORITIES 

5.2.5. The workshop also included a prioritisation exercise; the attendees were asked to consider which 

links or junctions they felt should be prioritised in the short-term (2–3 years) if funding should 

become available. Attendees were also asked to consider the wider strategic priorities for the 

network, which may influence the identification of key links, junctions, or wider corridors for 

development.  

5.2.6. Stakeholders were asked to draw and annotate on the network plans to show which areas they 

considered should be given priority. Verbal comments were also captured by the group facilitators.  

5.2.7. The comments received on the short-term priorities are listed below. These have been grouped into 

two categories: Spatial and Thematic. Spatial comments relate to specific locations for intervention, 

whilst Thematic comments relate to wider strategic ideas / concepts / strategies.  

5.2.8. Table 5-3 indicates whether the comments were taken forward for consideration as a priority and if 

not, the rationale for why they were not included.  

Table 5-3 – Cycle Network Priority Comments 

Ref Comment 
Thematic / 

Spatial 
Notes 

CP1 
Movements between Malton and Norton (i.e. 
bridge)  

Thematic - 

CP2 
Ensure development sites are well connected from 
the design stage 

Thematic  - 

CP3 
Consider connections to and collecting 
contributions towards Malton – Pickering route 

Thematic - 

CP4 Connection through Orchard Fields Spatial - 

CP5 Outgang Road to Food Enterprise Zone Spatial  
This section to be upgraded as part of Malton – 
Pickering Cycle Route – due to be implemented in 
2020 

CP6 Horsemarket road Spatial  - 

CP7 The Mount Spatial  - 

CP8 Scarborough Road to Malton town centre Spatial  - 

CP9 Langton Road  Spatial  - 

CP10 Railway crossing between Malton and Norton Thematic (note second comment for this) 

CP11 Malton Secondary School to Broughton Manor Spatial  - 

CP12 Movements around Food Enterprise Zone (FEZ) Thematic (note second comment for this) 

CP13 Route through new housing site in Norton Thematic 
(note second comment for this – although this is a 
specific site) 

CP14 
Direct line through Church Street, Castlegate & 
Newbiggin 

Spatial  - 

CP15 Avoid difficult routes through town centre  Thematic - 

CP16 Outgang Road to FEZ Spatial  
This section to be upgraded as part of Malton – 
Pickering Cycle Route – due to be implemented in 
2020 

CP17 Prioritise new crossing through rail station Thematic (not third comment to prioritise a new crossing point) 

CP18 
York Rd between Industrial Park and Rockingham 
Close 

Spatial  

Existing shared use path along north side of York Road 
ends just after 30mph zone starts – however, traffic 
speeds are not conducive to mixed use and visibility is 
restricted (shadowing from overhanging trees) 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/121

Page 175



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 109 of 132 

Ref Comment 
Thematic / 

Spatial 
Notes 

CP19 
Improve walking / cycling across bypass 
roundabout to FEZ 

Spatial  (note fourth broad comment for this) 

CP20 
Better provision between the town centre and York 
Road Industrial Estate 

Spatial  (note second comment for this) 

CP21 Railway crossing Spatial  - 

CP22 Butcher Corner Spatial  - 

CP23 Castlegate Spatial  - 

CP24 Highfield Road Spatial  - 

CP25 Langton Road Spatial  - 

CP26 Grove Street Spatial  - 

CP27 York Road Spatial  (note third comment for this) 

CP28 Butcher’s corner Spatial  - 

CP29 Level crossing  Spatial  - 

CP30 Castlegate Spatial  - 

CP31 Langton Road  Spatial  - 

CP32 Connections to schools Thematic - 

CP33 York road Spatial  - 

CP34 Pasture Lane Spatial  - 

CP35 Highfield Road  Spatial  - 

 

EMERGING CYCLING PRIORITIES 

5.2.9. The outputs of the exercise indicated a wide variety of spatial and thematic priorities across the 

urban area, including interventions on the existing highway network, upgrades to and new off-road 

routes, and within aspirational development sites. The following broad emerging priorities have been 

identified:  

Table 5-4 – Emerging Cycling Priorities 

Emerging Priority Description 

Improved crossing points between Malton 
& Norton 

This was raised a number of times and is a clear immediate priority. These 
improvements could include the existing pinch point from Butcher Corner to the level 
crossing along Castlegate as the primary route, or could be focussed on the parallel 
routes possible via the rail station or the Cut – these routes could also complement 
improvements to the primary route.  

Improved connections to the FEZ 
Ensuring high quality cycling connections is a clear priority based on feedback, including 
potential improvements to the provision at the A64 grade separated roundabout.  

Pasture Lane / Highfield Road 
Key orbital route providing links between new and existing housing sites, Showfield 
Lane Industrial Estate and key schools. 

York Road  
Comments received highlighting the need to provide improved connections from wider 
town centre / rail station to the key employment site of York Road Industrial Estate  

Langton Road  
Key radial route with multi-functional purpose linking residential areas, schools and new 
developments with Norton local centre. Potential to support orbital connections between 
the three Norton radial routes. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/122

Page 176



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 110 of 132 

5.3 WALKING NETWORK VALIDATION AND REVIEW 

5.3.1. Part 2 of the workshop followed the same format as the first session, but focussed on reviewing the 

network development process in regards to walking. Again, the first group activity was a validation 

exercise of the draft walking network. 

NETWORK COMMENTS AND AMENDMENTS 

5.3.2. Stakeholders were then asked to review the draft Walking Network Map (WNM) and record whether 

they agree with the proposals or if they suggested any amendments.  

5.3.3. Figure 5-2 illustrates the outputs from this exercise. 

Figure 5-2 – Walking Network Feedback 

 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/123

Page 177



LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 111 of 132 

COMMENTS RECEIVED 

5.3.4. Table 5-5 lists the comments that were received in relation to the draft WNM. The table presents 

each comment, whether it was included in the final draft network plan, and the rationale behind this 

decision. 

Table 5-5 – Draft Walking Network Comments 

Ref Comment 
Include in 
Final Network 
Plan 

Rationale 

WN1 Add School Lane snicket Y Agreed. 

WN2 
Add walking route through St Nicholas 
Street Car Park 

N Difficult to actively promote as a walking route. 

WN3 
Add Langton Rd to Jesmond Court via 
cemetery 

N Access via cemetery may not be permanently open. 

WN4 
Add Grove St to Langton Road via the 
cemetery  

N Off road route is less desirable. 

WN5 
Add Parliament Ave to Scarborough Rd 
snicket 

Y Agreed. 

WN6 
Change Princess Rd car park to 
Newbiggin route to ‘Primary’  

N 
Unlikely to meet criteria (use) for primary status. Not to be 
confused with prioritisation 

WN7 
Change Yorkersgate to ‘Prestige’ up to 
junction with Horsemarket Rd 

N 
Unlikely to meet criteria (use) for prestige status. Not to be 
confused with prioritisation 

WN8 
Extend York Rd link further west to 
account for new employment site 

N Route appears to accommodate existing site. 

WN9 
Connect Malton and Norton ‘Prestige’ 
walking routes 

N 
Unlikely to meet criteria (use) for prestige status. Not to be 
confused with prioritisation 

WN10 Connect the two ‘Prestige’ routes N 
Unlikely to meet criteria (use) for prestige status. Lower sense 
of ‘place’ in relation to ‘movement’. Not to be confused with 
prioritisation. 

WN11 
Upgrade Pasture Lane to a ‘Primary’ 
route 

N 
Unlikely to meet criteria (use) for primary status. Not to be 
confused with prioritisation 

WN12 Upgrade Town St to FEZ to ‘Primary’ N 
Unlikely to meet criteria (use) for primary status. Not to be 
confused with prioritisation 

WN13 
Add route to Old Malton Rd from FEZ 
avoiding roundabout 

N No apparent route at this location? 

WN14 
Add link to existing PROW on river 
behind bus station.  

N No real obvious benefit? 

WN15 
Route through Malton School grounds 
would present a safeguarding concern 

N/A Agreed. 

WN16 Change Pasture Lane to ‘Primary’ Route N 
Unlikely to meet criteria (use) for primary status. Not to be 
confused with prioritisation. 

WN17 Change Beverly Rd to ‘Primary’ N 
Unlikely to meet criteria (use) for primary status. Not to be 
confused with prioritisation. 

WN18 
Add snicket on South Parade, Norton as 
Secondary 

Y Agreed. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/124

Page 178



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 112 of 132 

WALKING NETWORK PRIORITIES 

5.3.5. As with the first session, attendees were asked to participate in a prioritisation exercise, considering 

which corridors, links or junctions they felt should be prioritised in the short-term (2–3 years) if 

funding should become available. Attendees were also asked to consider the wider strategic 

priorities for the walking network, which may influence the identification of key links, junctions, or 

corridors for development.  

5.3.6. Stakeholders were asked to draw and annotate on the draft walking network plans to show which 

areas they considered should be given priority. Verbal comments were also captured by the group 

facilitators.  

5.3.7. The comments received on the emerging priorities are listed below. Table 5-6 indicates whether the 

comments were taken forward for consideration as a priority and if not, the rationale for why they 

were not included.  

Table 5-6 – Network Link Priority Comments 

Ref Comment Spatial / Thematic Notes 

WP1 
Spital St / Princess Rd junction 
improvements 

Spatial  - 

WP2 Old Malton Rd / Highfield Rd junction Spatial - 

WP3 Crossing on Yorkersgate Spatial - 

WP4 
Pedestrian priority between bus and 
rail stations 

Spatial - 

WP5 Level crossing  Spatial - 

WP6 
Safe crossing between Wentworth St 
car park and town centre 

Spatial - 

WP7 
Crossing point between Yorkersgate 
and Horsemarket Rd 

Spatial - 

WP8 
Ensuring new development is well 
connected to the existing networks 

Thematic - 

WP9 All school access points Thematic - 

WP10 
Pedestrian route from centre of 
Malton to Hospital 

Spatial - 

WP11 County Bridge Spatial - 

WP12 
Malton School may have concerns 
over route through grounds, but 
considered an important links 

Spatial 

Note that safeguarding issues over public 
route through school grounds are likely 
insurmountable. Network map includes 
and indicative route that could take 
parallel alternatives.  

WP13 Town St to FEZ Spatial - 

WP14 
Link Malton to Old Malton via The 
Cut 

Spatial - 

WP15 Upgrade bridge and level crossing Spatial - 

WP16 
Improve York Rd to the west after 
Castle Howard Rd 

Spatial 
Note footway specifically ends at Seph 
Way, and could be extended to Seven 
Street 

WP17 
Link east Norton to East Malton via a 
new bridge connection  

Thematic - 

WP18 
Create a new link through railway 
station 

Spatial - 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/125

Page 179



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 113 of 132 

Ref Comment Spatial / Thematic Notes 

WP19 
Improve walking / cycling across 
bypass roundabout to FEZ 

Spatial - 

WP20 
Improved crossing facilities on new 
Broughton Road roundabout 

Spatial - 

WP21 Railway crossing Spatial - 

WP22 Scarborough Road Spatial  - 

WP23 Highfield Road  Spatial  - 

EMERGING WALKING PRIORITIES 

5.3.8. Table 5-7 lists emerging priorities for further development based on outputs from the workshop: 

Table 5-7 – Emerging Walking Network Priorities 

Emerging Priority Description 

Improved crossing points between Malton & 
Norton 

This was raised a number of times and is a clear immediate priority. These 
improvements could include the existing pinch point from Butcher Corner to the level 
crossing along Castlegate as the primary route, or could be focussed on the parallel 
routes possible via the rail station or the Cut – these routes could also complement 
improvements to the primary route.  

5.4 SUMMARY 

These emerging priorities will be discussed with NYCC & RDC alongside the evidence review and 

draft network plans to identify initial locations/corridors for further development as part of Phase 2 of 

the M&N LCWIP.  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/126

Page 180



 

PUBLIC 

 
 

6 
NETWORK PRIORITIES & 

RECOMMENDED NEXT STEPS 

 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/127

Page 181



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 115 of 132 

6 NETWORK PRIORITIES & RECOMMENDED NEXT STEPS 

6.1 INTRODUCTION 

6.1.1. The preceding sections of the report have detailed the development and refinement of the draft 

cycling and walking networks. This section of the report presents the final recommended Cycle and 

Walking Network Plans and initial priorities to take forward for further development in Phase 2 of the 

Malton & Norton LCWIP.  

6.1.2. Consideration is also given to the types of intervention appropriate for each for each network in the 

context of the study area.  

6.1.3. At this stage of the process these network plans are considered aspirational, and a blueprint for 

cohesive walking and cycling networks that could occur over the next 10 years (and beyond). In 

order to bring them forward, the phasing of the networks will require a coordinated approach to 

identify short, mid, and long-term priorities, and an understanding of complementary opportunities. 

This prioritisation is likely to need regular revaluation as different funding becomes available.  

6.2 CYCLING AND WALKING NETWORK MAPS 

The Cycling Network Map for the Malton & Norton LCWIP Study Area is presented in Figure 6-1, 

while a high-resolution version is presented in Appendix A. 

6.2.1. The Walking Network Map for the Malton & Norton LCWIP Study Area is presented in Figure 6-2, 

and a high-resolution version is presented in Appendix A.  

 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/128

Page 182



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 116 of 132 

Figure 6-1 – Final Cycling Network Map 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/129

P
age 183



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 117 of 132 

Figure 6-2 – Final Walking Network Map 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/130

P
age 184



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 118 of 132 

6.3 NETWORK HIERARCHIES 

6.3.1. Draft network hierarchies consistent with those utilised in other North Yorkshire LCWIPs were 

presented to stakeholders for consideration as part of the external workshop. It was agreed with 

stakeholders that these remain consistent with no need to amend to reflect local priorities. The final 

definitions are therefore shown in Table 6-1 and Table 6-2 below.  

Table 6-1 – Final Network Hierarchy Definitions - Cycling 

Network Element Characteristics 

Primary  Different cycle users, based on confidence level, experience, age, demographics, 
trip purpose; 

 Different types of bikes, including standard, recumbent, trailers, cargo bikes, 
disabled user cycles; 

 High flow of cycle users; 
 Creates arterial routes; 
 Links large residential areas to main clusters such as town centre locations; 
 Through, internal, and inbound-outbound traffic; 
 Cater for existing non-cycle users; 
 Cater for people aged ‘8-80’ to be able to cycle safely; 
 Direct, following the shortest possible route;  
 Low gradients where possible. 

Secondary  Lower volumes of cycle users; 
 Further increases density of network; 
 Ensure local access to origins and destinations from the primary / secondary 

network;  
 Provide quieter routes for less confident cycle users (while primary network is 

being developed). 

Town Centre Cores  High levels of permeability and priority for cycle users and pedestrians;  
 High levels of cycle parking availability. 

Table 6-2 – Final Network Hierarchy Definitions - Walking 

Name Description 

Prestige Walking Zones Very busy areas of towns and cities, with high public space and street scene 
contribution. 

Primary Walking Routes Busy urban shopping and business areas, and main pedestrian routes 

Secondary Walking Routes Medium usage routes through local areas feeding into primary routes, local 
shopping centres, etc. 

Link Footways Linking local access footways through urban areas and busy rural footways. 

 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/131

Page 185



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 119 of 132 

6.4 DIFFERENT TYPES OF INTERVENTION 

6.4.1. To achieve the cycling and walking networks based on the respective hierarchies detailed in the 

previous section, it is necessary to reference how different types of intervention will be required that 

take into account opportunities and constraints in different parts of the network. 

6.4.2. For example, the primary networks cover a range of different types of highway and pedestrian 

environments from arterial A-roads to town streets. Reflecting this, it is clear that the type of 

intervention required to achieve the characteristics of what the primary network should be will vary.  

6.4.3. The best practice review in Section 3 brought together a range of techniques from the UK and 

beyond for developing cycling and walking networks. This good practice has informed the types of 

intervention recommended. 

6.4.4. Table 6-3 and Table 6-4 present various types of intervention that are based around the level of 

segregation of cycle and pedestrian users respectively from other modes, including both vehicle and 

non-vehicle traffic. The details of what could be included under each type of intervention is also 

presented for each. 

Table 6-3 – Types of Intervention - Cycling 

Ref Type of Intervention Details 

A Full segregation Cycle track with continuous physical segregation from carriageway 
and footway. 

B Hybrid segregation Cycle track vertically segregated from the carriageway and 
footway. 

C Dedicated lanes and light 
segregation 

Mandatory or advisory cycle lanes;  
Intermittent physical segregation; 
Reduced general traffic speeds;  
Centreline removal;  
Parking removal; 
Buffer lane at parking locations. 

D Sharing with other modes Reduced general traffic speeds; 
Filtered permeability to restrict general traffic movements 
Cycle symbols; Contraflow cycling permissions. 

Table 6-4 – Types of Intervention - Walking 

Ref Type of Intervention Details 

A Full Pedestrianisation  Exclusion or temporal limit on other vehicle access.  
High quality pedestrian environment with significant place function. 

B Pedestrian enhanced 
streets / shared space / 
home zones 

Reduction in formal traffic controls; Reduced general traffic speeds;  
Restricted interaction with other modes; Typically less differentiation 
between footway and carriageway.  

C Footway / footpath 
enhancements 

Improved surfacing; Increased footway widths; 
Adequate crossing facilities proportionate to function of link; 
De-cluttering of route; Minimal gradients for duration of link; 
Direct routes; Dropped kerbs and tactile paving. 

D Shared use pedestrian / 
cycle routes  

Improved at-level surface conditioning; Improved signage; Segregated 
or unsegregated; Potential widening of route. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/132

Page 186



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 120 of 132 

6.4.5. Table 6-5 applies the type of interventions presented in Table 6-3 to the primary, secondary and 

town centre core parts of the network. At the same time, the different types of environment are 

referenced with the type of intervention relating to whether the environment has more of a place or 

movement function. 

Table 6-5 – Cycle Network Interventions 

 Place                                                                                                                           Movement 

 

T
o
w

n
 

s
q
u
a
re

 

T
o
w

n
 s

tr
e
e
t 

H
ig

h
 s

tr
e
e
t 

L
o
c
a
l 
s
tr

e
e
t 

R
u
ra

l 
ro

a
d

 

O
ff
-h

ig
h

w
a
y
 

p
a
th

 

C
o
n
n

e
c
to

r 

A
rt

e
ri
a

l 
ro

a
d

 

Primary D C, D B, C, D C, D - - B, C, D A, B 

Secondary D C, D B, C, D C, D C, D C, D B, C, D  

Town Centre 
Cores 

D D D - - - - - 

6.4.6. Table 6-6 below conducts the same exercise, but this time applying the walking interventions listed 

in Table 6-4 to the prestige, primary, secondary walking routes and local footways within the 

network. Again, the different types of intervention are referenced relative to whether the environment 

has more of a place or movement function, as well as level of footfall.  

Table 6-6 – Walking Network Interventions 

 Place                                                                                                                           Movement 

 

T
o
w

n
 

s
q
u
a
re

 

T
o
w

n
 

s
tr

e
e
t 

H
ig

h
 s

tr
e
e
t 

L
o
c
a
l 

s
tr

e
e
t 

R
u
ra

l 
ro

a
d

 

O
ff
-

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 

p
a
th

 

C
o
n
n

e
c
to

r 

A
rt

e
ri
a

l 

ro
a
d

 

Prestige 
Walking 
Zones 

A, B, C A, B, C A, B, C - - - -  

Primary 
Walking 
Routes 

B B, C B, C, D - - C, D   

Secondary 
Walking 
Routes 

- - - C, D C, D C, D C, D C, D 

Link 
Footways 

- - - C, D C C, D C, D  

6.4.7. The output of the tables above reflects the desirable level of intervention for the respective parts of 

network based on their assignment in the respective cycling and walking network hierarchies. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/133

Page 187



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 121 of 132 

6.4.8. The network hierarchies and the types of intervention presented above will be used where possible 

to inform the development of ongoing or future schemes by NYCC or SDC. 

6.5 LONG LIST OF PRIORITIES 

6.5.1. The emerging priorities identified in the workshops were discussed further with key stakeholders. 

This resulted in the following parts of the network being proposed as initial priorities. These priorities 

are to be considered for further development at the feasibility assessment stage, and to feed in to 

any bidding opportunities. Nine corridors were identified and presented to NYCC and RDC for 

review. 

6.5.2. These corridors form a ‘skeleton network’ through the two towns, encompassing the main key OD 

points and creating both radial and orbital routes along key desire lines. Once the key routes are in 

place, further links could then be added, increasing mesh density and accessibility to the network. 

These priorities are presented as ‘active travel corridors’ focussed on improving conditions for both 

cycle users and pedestrians and maximising scheme benefits.  

6.5.3. The identified long list of priorities are:  

 Corridor 1 - Central Loop;  

 Corridor 2 - Core Connections;  

 Corridor 3 – Amotherby Strategic Route; 

 Corridor 4 - York Road Corridor;  

 Corridor 5 - Old Malton Road Corridor; 

 Corridor 6 - Pasture Lane Residential Route; 

 Corridor 7 - Langton Road Radial;  

 Corridor 8 - Norton Grove Loop; and  

 Corridor 9 - Malton Town Curve.  

6.5.4. These routes are illustrated in Figure 6-3, and discussed in more detail in Table 6-7 to Table 6-15, 

with the rationale which links back to the evidence base collected through the project. 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/134

Page 188



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 122 of 132 

Figure 6-3 – Long List of Priorities 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/135

P
age 189



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 123 of 132 

Table 6-7 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 1 - Central Loop 

Corridor Location 

 

Corridor Description Rationale 

A loop around some of the busiest parts of the 
town, encompass an array of use types and 
facilitating journeys for various purposes.  

This corridor includes the following key features:  

 Links the centre of Norton and Malton, providing 
a central point of access for the surrounding 
origin points and links to local facilities;  

 Connections to key ODs at the bus and rail 
stations, as well as numerous key commercial 
and retail ODs (including Asda and Morrisons);  

 Encompasses the critical pinch points at the 
level crossing and Butcher Corner; and 

 Maximises permeability into the town centre.  

 Stakeholder input identified this link as the biggest issue in 
the study area; 

 Connectivity of many key destinations, including retail, 
employment and educational ODs;  

 PCT outputs identified elements of this corridor as potentially 
being some of the highest trafficked cycle routes in M&N; 

 Overlapping desire lines and walking isochrones from Core 
Walking Zones suggest this route sees some of the highest 
usage;  

 This route encompasses both Prestige and Primary walking / 
cycling routes;  

 The central location of the corridor means many trips will 
either end within or make use of any associated 
interventions; and 

 Could incorporate aspirations for new bridge associated with 
rail station improvements.  

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/136

Page 190



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 124 of 132 

Table 6-8 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 2 - Core Connections 

Corridor Location 

 

Corridor Description Rationale 

Two extensions to the Central Loop, including a loop 
around St Nicholas Street, and an extension north 
along Wheelgate/Newbiggin.  

This corridor includes the following key features:  

 Links to the centre of Norton and Malton, 
providing a central point of access for the 
surrounding origin points and links to local 
facilities;  

 Connections to key ODs in both Malton and 
Norton 

 Addresses the critical pinch point at Butcher 
Corner; and 

 Maximises permeability into the town centre. 

 Stakeholder input identified parts of these links link as the 
biggest issue in the study area; 

 Connectivity of many key destinations, including retail, 
employment and educational ODs;  

 PCT outputs identified elements of these routes as 
potentially being some of the highest trafficked cycle routes 
in M&N; 

 Overlapping desire lines and walking isochrones from Core 
Walking Zones suggest these routes see some of the 
highest usage;  

 These routes encompass Primary walking / cycling routes; 
 The central location of the routes means many trips will 

either end within or make use of any associated 
interventions.  

 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/137

Page 191



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 125 of 132 

Table 6-9 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 3 – Amotherby Strategic Route 

Corridor Location 

 

Corridor Description Rationale 

A longer distance strategic route, connecting the 
satellite settlements of Amotherby, Broughton, and 
Swinton to Malton & Norton.  

This corridor includes the following key features:  

 Provides connections to outlying settlements with 
supressed demand for travel by bike;  

 Connects to key ODs in Malton via a number of 
other priority routes, linking to nearby schools 
and the town centre;   

 Could also connect to the Malton – Pickering 
route, providing a longer distance leisure option. 

 The villages of Broughton, Swinton, and Amotherby are all 
located within less than 2km of each other along the B1257; 

 The centre of Malton is just over 2km from the first of these 
villages and all three villages fall within the LCWIP Study 
Area  

 A safe multi-user/cycle route would give residents of these 
three villages access to services, facilities, and the national 
rail network at Malton & Norton, and bus services to the 
Coast, York and Leeds;  

 The route would give Malton and Norton residents the 
opportunity to enjoy local countryside and to support rural 
shops and cafes;  

 With the rise in popularity of e-bikes, people can cycle 
further and much later in life than before, making longer 
distance routes more viable; and  

 Parish Councils and other residents have been consulted to 
agree the most practical route. 

 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/138

Page 192



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 126 of 132 

Table 6-10 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 4 - York Road Corridor 

Corridor Location 

 

Corridor Description Rationale 

A westward extension to the Central Loop, 
providing a radial link to the York Road Industrial 
Estate.  

This corridor includes the following key features:  

 Links to the centre of Malton; 
 Connections to key ODs such as York Road 

Industrial Estate and local shops in the town 
centre;  

 Could help address the key pinch point at 
Butcher Corner at its eastern extent;  

 Promotes connectivity between residential 
areas to the west and strategic destinations; 
and 

 Likely to consist of hybrid cycle tracks where 
width permits, with complementary crossing 
points. 

 Stakeholder input identified this link as a priority; 
 The existing highway network is comparatively less 

constrained, and could represent a ‘quick win’;  
 Connectivity of many key destinations, including retail, 

employment and educational ODs;  
 Potential options could mitigate the need for pedestrians and 

cyclists to have to cross the road multiple times to follow 
infrastructure.  

 Overlapping desire lines and walking isochrones from Core 
Walking Zones suggest this route sees high usage;  

 This route encompasses Primary walking / cycling routes;  
 The central location of the routes means many trips will either 

end within or make use of any associated interventions.  

 

 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/139

Page 193



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 127 of 132 

Table 6-11 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 5 - Old Malton Road Corridor  

Corridor Location 

 

Corridor Description Rationale 

An eastward extension to the Central Loop, 
providing a radial link to Old Malton.  

This corridor includes the following key features:  

 Links to the centre of Norton and Malton; 
 Connections to key ODs such as RDC, Old 

Malton, and various leisure facilities;   
 Helps address the key pinch point at Butcher 

Corner;  
 Promotes connectivity between residential 

areas to the east and strategic destinations; and 
 Likely to consist of hybrid cycle tracks where 

width permits, with complementary crossing 
points. 

 Stakeholder input identified this link as a priority; 
 The existing highway network is comparatively less 

constrained, and could represent a ‘quick win’;  
 Connectivity of many key destinations, including retail and 

employment ODs;  
 The nature of the route and purpose of the area in terms of 

place and movement suggests opportunity for a relatively fast 
direct route into Malton; 

 This route encompasses Primary walking / cycling routes;  
 The central location of the routes means many trips will either 

end within or make use of any associated interventions.  

 

 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/140

Page 194



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 128 of 132 

Table 6-12 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 6 - Pasture Lane Residential Route 

Corridor Location 

 

Corridor Description Rationale 

Part of a northerly orbital route through Malton.  

This corridor includes the following key features:  

 Runs through predominantly residential areas, as 
well as established employment sites and 
schools; 

 Connects to Corridors 2 and 5, enabling local 
people to access the wider network; and 
Likely to consist of a package of measure to 
promote on-road cycling and increase 
permeability for active modes. 

 Stakeholder input identified this link as a priority; 
 Connectivity of many key destinations, including residential, 

educational, and employment ODs;  
 The existing highway sees higher volumes of traffic and 

higher speeds than are commensurate with the place status 
of the area, creating a need for intervention; 

 Orbital connections ensure that routes do not only cater for 
journeys via the town centre;  

 This route encompasses Primary walking / cycling routes; 
and 

 Could be a beneficial scheme in its own right due to 
pedestrian / placemaking emphasis.  

 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/141

Page 195



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 129 of 132 

Table 6-13 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 7 - Langton Road Radial 

Corridor Location 

 

Corridor Description Rationale 

A central southern corridor extending through Norton 
and connecting to Corridors 1&2.  

This corridor includes the following key features:  

 Runs through predominantly residential areas, as 
well as a number of educational establishments; 

 Connects to Corridors 1, 2, and 8, enabling local 
people to access the wider network; and 
Likely to consist of a package of measure to 
promote on-road cycling and increase 
permeability for active modes, with the potential 
for hybrid tracks where width permits. 

 Stakeholder input identified this link as a priority; 
 Connectivity of many key destinations, including residential, 

educational, and employment ODs;  
 The central nature of the route allows permeability from 

local streets more conducive to cycling on the carriageway, 
and provides direct connections to a number of other 
proposed routes, including access to the respective town 
centres and transport hubs; and 

 Could be a beneficial scheme in its own right due to 
pedestrian / placemaking emphasis 

 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/142

Page 196



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 130 of 132 

Table 6-14 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 8 - Norton Grove Loop  

Corridor Location 

 

Corridor Description Rationale 

An eastern loop in Norton encompassing Commercial 
Street/Scarborough Road and key employment areas.  

This corridor includes the following key features:  

 Runs through differing street types and purposes, 
including the town centre core, residential areas, and 
a proportionately large employment site; 

 Connects to Corridors 1, 2, and 7, enabling local 
people to access the wider network; and 
Likely to consist of a package of varied measures 
depending on the type of area and local conditions to 
promote on-road cycling and increase permeability for 
active modes, with the potential for hybrid tracks 
where width permits.  

 Stakeholder input identified this link as a priority; 
 Connectivity of many key destinations, including 

residential and employment ODs;  
 The route includes Commercial Street and Scarborough 

Road, the main local shopping area in the town, and 
would contribute towards a commensurate sense of 
place;   

 The central nature of the route allows permeability from 
local streets more conducive to cycling on the 
carriageway, and provides direct connections to a 
number of other proposed routes, including access to 
the respective town centres and transport hubs; and 

 Could be a beneficial scheme in its own right due to 
pedestrian / placemaking emphasis. 

 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/143

Page 197



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 131 of 132 

Table 6-15 – Recommended Priorities: Corridor 9 - Malton Town Curve 

Corridor Location 

 

Corridor Description Rationale 

A northern orbital loop around the periphery of the town 
centre in Malton.  

This corridor includes the following key features:  

 Facilitates permeability from various other corridors 
and local streets into the town centre core; 

 Could tie in to the Malton – Pickering route and 
enhance these proposals;  
Likely to consist of a package of varied measures 
depending on the type of area and local conditions.  

 Brings together many of the proposed corridors, 
increasing permeability into the town centre and 
contributing toward placemaking; 

 Could provide an alternative route, avoiding Butcher 
Corner, between the York Road and Old Malton Road 
Corridors;  

 Connections with Malton - Pickering Route offers 
longer distance connectivity  

 The route encircles Malton town centre, the main local 
shopping area in the town and centre for the District, 
and could contribute towards a commensurate sense 
of place;  

 The route also avoids the busy centre and Butcher 
Corner, providing more desirable connections to York 
Road and Old Malton Road;  

 The central nature of the route allows permeability 
from local streets more conducive to cycling on the 
carriageway, and provides direct connections to a 
number of other proposed routes, including access to 
the respective town centres and transport hubs; and 

 Could be a beneficial scheme in its own right due to 
pedestrian / placemaking emphasis. 

 

  

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/144

Page 198



 

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN PUBLIC | WSP 
Project No.: 70054112 | Our Ref No.: 70054112-FIN July 2021 
North Yorkshire County Council Page 132 of 132 

6.6 NEXT STEPS 

6.6.1. The long list of priorities should now be taken forward for further development, with the following 

tasks undertaken: 

 Review the long list of priorities and consider whether any further emerging priorities should be 

added; 

 Agree a preferred routing option for cycling and walking respectively, within the identified 

corridors;  

 Audit the preferred routing option for each priority corridor to understand the existing conditions in 

relation to key DfT design criteria for cycling and walking schemes;  

 Develop scheme concepts detailing proposed improvements for each corridor and associated 

cost estimates. Proposals should be in line with latest guidance (such as Local Transport Note 

1/20, Manual for Streets etc); and 

 Undertake a prioritisation exercise on the long list of priority schemes to identify improvements 

into the short (typically <3 years), medium (typically <5 years) and long term (typically >5 years). 

6.6.2. The output from the tasks above will be a pipeline of cycling and walking improvements for delivery 

in the short, medium and long term, which can be put forward for emerging funding opportunities.  

6.6.3. It is essential to involve stakeholders throughout the development of priority schemes and secure  

support for any proposals put forward for emerging funding opportunities.  

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/145

Page 199



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public 

 
 

 
FINAL NETWORK PLANS 

 

 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/146

Page 200



 

PUBLIC 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Amber Court 

William Armstrong Drive 

Newcastle upon Tyne 

NE4 7YQ 

 

wsp.com 
 

Appendix A

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/147

Page 201



Appendix B 

 

Initial equality impact assessment screening form 
(As of October 2015 this form replaces ‘Record of decision not to carry out an EIA’) 
 
This form records an equality screening process to determine the relevance of 
equality to a proposal, and a decision whether or not a full EIA would be 
appropriate or proportionate.  
 

Directorate  Business and Environmental Services 

Service area Highways and Transportation 

Proposal being screened Approval of Malton & Norton Local Cycling and 
Walking Infrastructure Plan Phase 1 and approval 
of use of reserves to deliver Phase 2 
 

Officer(s) carrying out screening  William Britton / Keisha Moore 

What are you proposing to do? Formalise a Phase 1 cycle and walking 
infrastructure plan for Malton & Norton and 
access funding to deliver Phase 2.  

Why are you proposing this? What 
are the desired outcomes? 

Approval of the Phase 1 documents and spend for 
Phase 2 will enable the County Council to be in a 
better position to bid for money towards schemes 
and receive contributions from developers. 
 

Does the proposal involve a 
significant commitment or removal 
of resources? Please give details. 

No 
 

Is there likely to be an adverse impact on people with any of the following protected 
characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010, or NYCC’s additional agreed 
characteristics? 
As part of this assessment, please consider the following questions: 

 To what extent is this service used by particular groups of people with protected 
characteristics? 

 Does the proposal relate to functions that previous consultation has identified as 
important? 

 Do different groups have different needs or experiences in the area the proposal relates 
to? 
 

If for any characteristic it is considered that there is likely to be a significant adverse 
impact or you have ticked ‘Don’t know/no info available’, then a full EIA should be 
carried out where this is proportionate. You are advised to speak to your Equality rep 
for advice if you are in any doubt. 
 

Protected characteristic Yes No Don’t know/No 
info available 

Age     

Disability     

Sex (Gender)     

Race     

Sexual orientation     

Gender reassignment     

Religion or belief     

Pregnancy or maternity     

Marriage or civil partnership     

NYCC additional characteristic 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/148

Page 202

http://nyccintranet/content/equalities-contacts


Appendix B 

 

People in rural areas     

People on a low income     

Carer (unpaid family or friend)     

Does the proposal relate to an area 
where there are known 
inequalities/probable impacts (e.g. 
disabled people’s access to public 
transport)? Please give details. 

Unknown at this stage, this process will look to 
approve corridors in principle. There would be a 
further requirement for EIA as part of the 
detailed design process.  

Will the proposal have a significant 
effect on how other organisations 
operate? (e.g. partners, funding 
criteria, etc.). Do any of these 
organisations support people with 
protected characteristics? Please 
explain why you have reached this 
conclusion.  

No  

Decision (Please tick one option) EIA not 
relevant or 
proportionate:  

  Continue to 
full EIA: 

 

Reason for decision No adverse impact on any of the protected 
characteristics. When preparing the phase 2 
designs, consideration will be taken to those with 
protected characteristics, specifically reduced 
mobility. In addition, such initial designs will 
reference available guidance and comply with 
any legal requirements.  

Signed (Assistant Director or 
equivalent) 

 
 

Date  
 

 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/149

Page 203



Appendix C 

 

Climate change impact assessment                                                                                                                                                                                                            
 
The purpose of this assessment is to help us understand the likely impacts of our decisions on the environment of North Yorkshire and on our 
aspiration to achieve net carbon neutrality by 2030, or as close to that date as possible. The intention is to mitigate negative effects and identify 
projects which will have positive effects. 
 
This document should be completed in consultation with the supporting guidance. The final document will be published as part of the decision 
making process and should be written in Plain English. 
 
If you have any additional queries which are not covered by the guidance please email climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Title of proposal Malton & Norton Phase 1 Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 

Brief description of proposal To seek approval of the Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Plan Phase 1 and permission to use North Yorkshire County 
Council reserves to fund Phase 2.  

Directorate  BES 

Service area Highways and Transportation  

Lead officer William Britton 

Names and roles of other people involved in 
carrying out the impact assessment 

Keisha Moore 

Date impact assessment started 21/10/21 

 
 
 

Please note: You may not need to undertake this assessment if your proposal will be subject to any of the following:  
Planning Permission 
Environmental Impact Assessment 
Strategic Environmental Assessment 
 
However, you will still need to summarise your findings in in the summary section of the form below. 
 
Please contact climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk for advice.  
 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/150

P
age 204

mailto:climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk
mailto:climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk


Appendix C 

 

 
 

Options appraisal  
Were any other options considered in trying to achieve the aim of this project? If so, please give brief details and explain why alternative options were not 
progressed. 
 
 
This project delivered the Phase 1 report for developing LCWIPs for Malton & Norton, in line with Government policy and guidance. As this is part of the 
process for developing cycling and walking infrastructure, no other alternative options were considered.  
 
 
 
 

What impact will this proposal have on council budgets? Will it be cost neutral, have increased cost or reduce costs?  
 
Please explain briefly why this will be the result, detailing estimated savings or costs where this is possible. 
 
 
Funding has been identified to complete Phase 2 of the project (subject to funding approval). Once the draft designs have been completed in Phase 2, these 
will remain draft until funding becomes available from central government, Section 106 monies or any other suitable funding source. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/151

P
age 205



Appendix C 

 

How will this proposal impact on 

the environment? 

 

N.B. There may be short term 

negative impact and longer term 

positive impact. Please include all 

potential impacts over the lifetime 

of a project and provide an 

explanation.  

P
o

s
it

iv
e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

(P
la

c
e
 a

 X
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n

t)
 

N
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

(P
la

c
e
 a

 X
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n

t)
 

N
e

g
a

ti
v

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

(P
la

c
e
 a

 X
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n

t)
 

Explain why will it have this effect and over 

what timescale?  

 

Where possible/relevant please include: 

 Changes over and above business as 

usual 

 Evidence or measurement of effect 

 Figures for CO2e 

 Links to relevant documents 

 

Explain how you plan to 

mitigate any negative 

impacts. 

 

Explain how you plan to 

improve any positive 

outcomes as far as 

possible. 

Minimise greenhouse 

gas emissions e.g. 

reducing emissions from 

travel, increasing energy 

efficiencies etc. 

 

Emissions 

from travel 

 *     

Emissions 

from 

constructio

n 

 *  Phase 1 is the identification of a high-level 

walking and cycling network, and does not 

involve physical construction at this point.  

  

Emissions 

from 

running of 

buildings 

 *     

Other  *     

Minimise waste: Reduce, reuse, 

recycle and compost e.g. reducing 

use of single use plastic 

  *     

Reduce water consumption  *     

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/152

P
age 206



Appendix C 

 

How will this proposal impact on 

the environment? 

 

N.B. There may be short term 

negative impact and longer term 

positive impact. Please include all 

potential impacts over the lifetime 

of a project and provide an 

explanation.  

P
o

s
it

iv
e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

(P
la

c
e
 a

 X
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n

t)
 

N
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

(P
la

c
e
 a

 X
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n

t)
 

N
e

g
a

ti
v

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

(P
la

c
e
 a

 X
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n

t)
 

Explain why will it have this effect and over 

what timescale?  

 

Where possible/relevant please include: 

 Changes over and above business as 

usual 

 Evidence or measurement of effect 

 Figures for CO2e 

 Links to relevant documents 

 

Explain how you plan to 

mitigate any negative 

impacts. 

 

Explain how you plan to 

improve any positive 

outcomes as far as 

possible. 

Minimise pollution (including air, 

land, water, light and noise) 

 

 *      

Ensure resilience to the effects of 

climate change e.g. reducing flood 

risk, mitigating effects of drier, hotter 

summers  

 *     

Enhance conservation and wildlife 

 

 *     

Safeguard the distinctive 

characteristics, features and special 

qualities of North Yorkshire’s 

landscape  

 

 *    

 

 

Other (please state below) 

 

 *     

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/153

P
age 207



Appendix C 

 

 

Are there any recognised good practice environmental standards in relation to this proposal? If so, please detail how this proposal meets those 

standards. 

 

N/A 

 

 

Summary Summarise the findings of your impact assessment, including impacts, the recommendation in relation to addressing impacts, including any legal 
advice, and next steps. This summary should be used as part of the report to the decision maker. 
 
The output of Phase 1 is the production of a cycling and walking network map that also identifies a series of high-level priority corridors to take forward for 
further development in Phase 2 of the project. Phase 2 will see the development of a series of draft designs for the priority corridors identified in Phase 1. 
 
Phase 1 does not have an identified direct impact on climate change, however subsequent phases of this work will need to be assessed, especially when 
funding has been secured to begin delivering interventions.  
 
The overall intention of the schemes is to help increase walking and cycling, which should have a long term positive impact on climate change.  
 

 

Sign off section 
 
This climate change impact assessment was completed by: 
 

Name William Britton 

Job title Transport Planning Officer  

Service area Highways and Transport  

Directorate BES 

Signature W Britton 

Completion date 21/10/2021 

 
Authorised by relevant Assistant Director (signature): 
 
Date: 
 

 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – Executive Members 
Malton & Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan/154

P
age 208



 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – BES Executive Members 
Changes to Services to be delivered by Yorwaste Ltd using the Teckal Procurement Exemption /1 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

North Yorkshire County Council 
 

Business and Environmental Services 
 

Executive Members 
 

12 November 2021 
 

Changes to Services delivered by Yorwaste Ltd using the ‘Teckal’ Procurement Exemption 
 

Report of the Head of Service – Waste Management 
 
1.0  Purpose of Report: 
 
1.1 To report to the Executive Member for Open to Business and the Assistant Director (Travel, 

Environmental & Countryside Services) a proposed additional service to be delivered by 
Yorwaste Ltd through a directly awarded contract using the ‘Teckal’ procurement 
exemption. 

 
1.2 To seek the necessary approvals to implement the change and vary the Services Contract 

with Yorwaste Ltd. 
 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 Services Contract 
 
2.1.1 On 18 March 2014, the County Council Executive agreed: 

 The principle of awarding relevant contracts for future waste services to Yorwaste Ltd 
without competitive procurement, where the conditions for the Teckal exemption are 
satisfied. 

 To delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Business and Environmental 
Services (BES) to determine which future waste service contracts are to be awarded 
to Yorwaste Ltd. 

 
2.1.2 To be able to use the Teckal exemption, Yorwaste Ltd has to satisfy three tests pursuant to 

paragraph 12(4) of the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR 2015): 
 The first is that the Contracting Authorities who are the shareholders of the company 

must exercise the same level of control over the company as they do over their own 
departments.  North Yorkshire County Council (“NYCC”) and City of York Council 
(“CYC”) are the shareholders of the company and collectively have more than 50% of 
the voting members on the board;  

 The second is that a minimum of 80% of the turnover of the company must be 
generated from work delivered to its shareholders (the 80:20 rule); and 

 The third is that there is no direct private capital participation in the company. 
 
2.1.3 On 18 September 2015, NYCC and Yorwaste Ltd entered into a contract (“the Services 

Contract”) for the provision of waste management services utilising Teckal exemption.  CYC 
and Yorwaste Ltd entered into separate services contracts at the same time. The individual 
services being provided are detailed in a series of schedules to the Services Contract 
(“Schedule”), each Schedule setting out the specification in relation to each service.  The 
addition or removal of services is achieved by varying the agreement to add or remove 
Schedule(s). 

 
2.1.4  There is a potential conflict of interest in relation to the fact that the Corporate Director of 

BES is also a Director of Yorwaste Ltd. For this reason, any Council decisions made in 

Page 209

Agenda Item 7



 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – BES Executive Members 
Changes to Services to be delivered by Yorwaste Ltd using the Teckal Procurement Exemption /2 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

relation to Yorwaste Ltd were delegated to the Assistant Director, Travel, Environmental 
and Countryside Services on 26 July 2011.  

 
2.2 Contract Schedules 
 
2.2.1 NYCC has responsibility for some historical Closed Landfill Sites (CLS), which are sites that 

were not subject to regulation or permit falling under the Landfill Directive 1999 as their 
closure predated the implementation of the Directive Regulations.  These sites may be 
subject to controls under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, which relate to 
contaminated land.  NYCC seeks to minimise its risk where the land has the potential to 
cause significant harm or pollution by continuing to undertake monitoring.  

 
In addition, there is a requirement to monitor other CLS which fall within the regulatory 
regime under the Landfill Directive 1999 and which are subject to and held under the terms 
of Environment Agency permits. 

 
2.2.2 The management and monitoring of the CLS is currently split between three organisations: 

 NYCC Waste Management currently undertake the ‘management’ of the CLS   
 WSP undertake the ‘routine monitoring’ on behalf of NYCC 
 Yorwaste Ltd are also assisting NYCC with a discrete piece of specialist work to 

manage one of the CLS.   
 
2.2.3 NYCC would like Yorwaste Ltd to undertake both the management and monitoring (and 

continue with the specialist work) of the CLS in the future, as there are benefits they could 
bring when delivering this service.   

 
2.2.4 The existing Services Contract between NYCC and Yorwaste Ltd can be varied pursuant to 

clause 16 and schedule 7 of the Services Contract and a new CLS Schedule added.  Both 
NYCC and Yorwaste Ltd would like the new arrangement to start on the 01 January 2022.   

 
3.0  Benefits of the services being delivered by Yorwaste Ltd 
 
3.1  Benefits to NYCC include: 

 There would be a holistic approach to CLS management as opposed to the current 
arrangement, which is split across three organisations; 

 Yorwaste have existing specialist staff undertaking CLS management and monitoring 
work at Yorwaste Ltd landfill sites, who have the correct skills and experience. NYCC 
staff do not have a dedicated resource to undertake this work; 

 Routine repair and maintenance work that is currently slow to be progressed will be 
undertaken by Yorwaste Ltd in a timely and cost effective manner; 

 NYCC would get better value for money; and 
 Yorwaste Ltd are a local company so they can react and travel to sites quickly. 

 
4.0  Risk Management 
 
4.1 Yorwaste Ltd have set out how they will provide the service in a diligent and professional 

manner, by addressing the following: 
 Staff qualifications, training and experience 
 Specialist equipment and software used to deliver the service 
 Details of the equipment servicing and calibration 
 Details of the national guidance/ relevant industry standards used to determine 

monitoring parameters, frequencies and interpretation of results 
 Monitoring procedures, methodologies, and risk assessments 
 Details of the accredited laboratory used for ground water and surface water sampling 

analysis 
 Technically Competent Manager (TCM) evidence 

Page 210



 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – BES Executive Members 
Changes to Services to be delivered by Yorwaste Ltd using the Teckal Procurement Exemption /3 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

 Copies of all correspondence with Environment Agency (EA) Compliance 
Assessment Reports & details of any EA meetings 

 Environmental Management System / BSI ISO 14001 accreditation and results of 
annual BSI audits. 

 
4.2 NYCC will undertake annual audits to confirm Yorwaste Ltd are delivering the service in a 

diligent and competent manner to agreed national and relevant industry standards, to 
minimise the risk to the Authority to an acceptable level.   

 
4.3 NYCC has Public Liability cover for injury and damage to third parties should NYCC be 

negligent, including sudden and unforeseeable pollution. NYCC also have financial loss 
insurance for third parties in respect of NYCC’s statutory duty and responsibilities under the 
Official’s Indemnity policy. NYCC’s insurers would take a ‘dim view’ if a claim was brought 
under the OI policy because Yorwaste did not have Professional Indemnity (PI) cover in 
place.  Yorwaste was provided with a quote for PI insurance for financial loss that would 
exclude NYCC as Shareholders, but would cover Third Parties.  This option was 
unaffordable. NYCC could also suffer its own financial loss if an incident affected the value 
of NYCC property. In reality however, the likelihood of Yorwaste Ltd getting the 
management and monitoring wrong and being negligent is low.   

 
5.0  Legal Implications 
 
5.1  Yorwaste Ltd is a ‘Teckal’ company meaning that contracts are permitted to be directly 

awarded to it without the need for a procurement exercise by its owning Authorities.  The 
variation of the Services Contract to include a new CLS Schedule are therefore in 
accordance with Regulation 12(4) and (5) of the PCR 2015. 

 
5.2 In accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules, a procurement Gateway 3 

report was signed on 11 September 2015 to record the decision to award the Services 
Contract.  This variation to the Services Contract requires a Gateway 4(a) Contract 
Extension / Variation report under the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules.  The 
Procurement Assurance Board approved the Gateway 4(a) Contract Variation report on 20 
October 2021.  

 
6.0  Financial Implications 
 
6.1  There are no procurement costs using the proposed approach. 
 
6.2 NYCC would get better value for money overall.  There will be two types of charges: 

 Annual charge of £55,538 that will cover management and routine monitoring.  It has 
been calculated that if WSP were asked to undertake all of the above work the annual 
charge would be £63,738, thus demonstrating the value for money by using 
Yorwaste. The costs will continue to be funded from the Closed Landfill Site budget.  

 Pass Through Costs for items such as repair and maintenance work and project work.  
This is subject to approval by the NYCC Waste Management Service before 
proceeding with the work.  This will ensure works are completed in a timely and cost 
effective manner. 
 

6.3 Yorwaste Ltd are currently required under the Services Contract to show value for money in 
all services that they currently deliver on behalf of the Council. Both NYCC and Yorwaste 
Ltd will monitor the new Schedule against a range of agreed performance indicators to 
ensure value for money is being delivered.   

 
6.4  There is an insurance risk highlighted in section 4.3 of this report.  The financial implications 

of this are NYCC could suffer its own financial loss if an incident affected the value of 
NYCC property.  In reality however, the likelihood of Yorwaste Ltd getting the management 
and monitoring wrong and being negligent, which would result in an incident, is low.  NYCC 

Page 211



 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – BES Executive Members 
Changes to Services to be delivered by Yorwaste Ltd using the Teckal Procurement Exemption /4 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

would retain overall liability for the closed landfill sites irrespective of the contractor 
undertaking environmental management and monitoring.     

 
7.0  Equalities Implications 
 
7.1 There are no impacts on any of the protected characteristics for equalities as a result of the 

matters discussed in this report. An Equalities Impact Assessment screening form is 
attached at Annex A. 

 
8.0 Climate Change Implications 
 
8.1 There are no climate change implications. 
 
9.0  Summary 
 
9.1 On 18 March 2014 the Council’s Executive agreed the principle of awarding relevant 

contracts for future waste services to Yorwaste Ltd without competitive procurement, where 
the conditions for the Teckal exemption are satisfied.   

 
9.2 On 18 September 2015 the Council and Yorwaste Ltd entered into the Services Contract for 

the provision of waste management services, for a 10 year period with two 5 year 
extensions, following a period of work undertaken to ensure that the company met the 
conditions of the Teckal Exemption.   

 
9.3 This report and decision is to vary the Services Contract to include a new Schedule for the 

Management and Monitoring of the Closed Landfill Sites. 
 
10.0  Recommendations  
 
10.1 The BES Executive Member for Open to Business and the Assistant Director (Travel, 

Environmental & Countryside Services) note the contents of the report. 
 
10.2 The Assistant Director (Travel, Environmental and Countryside Services) makes the 

following decision in consultation with the BES Executive Member for Open to Business, 
that decision being delegated by the Corporate Director (BES) due to a potential conflict of 
interest as described in paragraph 2.1.4 of the report: 
i. Addition of a new Schedule to the Services Contract between NYCC and Yorwaste 

Ltd to deliver the Management and Monitoring of the Closed Landfill Sites  
 

 
 
PETER JEFFREYS 
Head of Service, Waste 
 
 
Author of Report:  Suzanne Williamson 
 
 
Background documents: None 
 
 

Page 212



ANNEX A 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – BES Executive Members 
Changes to Services to be delivered by Yorwaste Ltd using the Teckal Procurement Exemption /5 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

 
Initial equality impact assessment screening form 
(As of October 2015 this form replaces ‘Record of decision not to carry out an EIA’) 
This form records an equality screening process to determine the relevance of equality to a 
proposal, and a decision whether or not a full EIA would be appropriate or proportionate.  
Directorate  BES 
Service area Waste Management 
Proposal being screened Changes to Yorwaste Services Contract 
Officer(s) carrying out screening  Suzanne Williamson 
What are you proposing to do? To obtain approval to vary the Yorwaste Services 

Contract to add a new Schedule to deliver the 
Management and Monitoring of the Closed Landfill 
Sites 

Why are you proposing this?  
What are the desired outcomes? 

To provide a holistic approach to the Management 
and Monitoring of the Closed Landfill Sites. 
 

Does the proposal involve a 
significant commitment or removal of 
resources? Please give details. 

No 

 
Is there likely to be an adverse impact on people with any of the following protected 
characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010, or NYCC’s additional agreed 
characteristics? 
As part of this assessment, please consider the following questions: 
 To what extent is this service used by particular groups of people with protected 

characteristics? 
 Does the proposal relate to functions that previous consultation has identified as important? 
 Do different groups have different needs or experiences in the area the proposal relates to? 
If for any characteristic it is considered that there is likely to be a significant adverse 
impact or you have ticked ‘Don’t know/no info available’, then a full EIA should be carried 
out where this is proportionate. You are advised to speak to your Equality rep for advice if 
you are in any doubt. 
Protected characteristic Yes No Don’t know/No 

info available 
Age    
Disability    
Sex (Gender)    
Race    
Sexual orientation    
Gender reassignment    
Religion or belief    
Pregnancy or maternity    
Marriage or civil partnership    
NYCC additional characteristic 
People in rural areas    
People on a low income    
Carer (unpaid family or friend)    

 
Does the proposal relate to an area where 
there are known inequalities/probable 
impacts (e.g. disabled people’s access to 
public transport)? Please give details. 

No 

Will the proposal have a significant effect 
on how other organisations operate? (e.g. 
partners, funding criteria, etc.).  

No 
 
 

Page 213



ANNEX A 

NYCC – 12 November 2021 – BES Executive Members 
Changes to Services to be delivered by Yorwaste Ltd using the Teckal Procurement Exemption /6 

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE 

Do any of these organisations support 
people with protected characteristics?  
Please explain why you have reached this 
conclusion.  
Decision (Please tick one option) EIA not relevant 

or proportionate: 
 Continue to 

full EIA: 
 

Reason for decision Variation of the Services Contract does not have 
adverse impacts on people with protected 
characteristics. 

Signed (Assistant Director or equivalent) Michael Leah 
Assistant Director Travel, Environmental and 
Countryside Services 
 

Date 1 October 2021 
 
 

 
 

Page 214


	Agenda
	4 A64 National Highways Consultation Response
	5 DfT-OZEV Future of Transport Regulatory Review EVs
	6 Malton and Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan
	Malton and Norton Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan
	Appendix A - C no signatures

	7 Changes to Services to be delivered by Yorwaste Ltd using the Teckal Procurement Exemption

